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Change in unfunded pensions obligation, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (23)   (116)   (139) 

Change in derivative fair value, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      40   33   73 
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Other comprehensive income

          682 

Total comprehensive income

         $2,437 

Capital contributions from noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      195  

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      (825)  

Disposition of businesses

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      (8)  

Issuance of treasury stock

  �      �      (1.2)   18   (20)   �      �      �     

Issuance of common stock under benefit plans and exercise of stock options, net of income tax

  3.7   �      �      �      18   �      �      �     

Stock compensation

  �      �      �      �      38   �      �      �     
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Balance at December 31, 2009

  677.2  $7   9.5  $(126)  $6,868  $650  $(2,724)  $4,205  
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Net income

  �      �      �      �      �      9   �      1,050  $1,059 

Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (5)   �      (5) 

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      486   124   610 

Change in unfunded pensions obligation, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (22)   (66)   (88) 
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Change in derivative fair value, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (80)   �      (80) 

Other comprehensive income (as restated)

          437 

Total comprehensive income (as restated)

         $1,496 

Cumulative effect of consolidation of entities under variable interest entity accounting guidance

  �      �      �      �      �      (47)   (38)   15  

Cumulative effect of deconsolidation of entities under variable interest entity accounting guidance

  �      �      �      �      �      1   �      �     

Capital contributions from noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      35  

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      (1,220)  

Disposition of businesses

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      (208)  

Acquisition of treasury stock

  �      �      8.4   (99)   �      �      �      �     

Issuance of common stock
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  125.5   1   �      �      1,566   �      �      �     

Issuance of common stock under benefit plans and exercise of stock options, net of income tax

  2.2   �      (0.6)   9   9   �      �      �     

Stock compensation

  �      �      �      �      26   �      �      �     

Changes in the carrying amount of redeemable stock of subsidiaries

  �      �      �      �      �      7   �      �     

Acquisition of subsidiary shares from noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      (25)   �      �      5  
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Balance at December 31, 2010

  804.9  $8   17.3  $(216)  $8,444  $620  $(2,383)  $3,940  
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Net income

  �      �      �      �      �      58   �      1,472  $1,530 

Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (1)   �      (1) 

Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (143)   (153)   (296) 

Change in unfunded pensions obligation, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (41)   (169)   (210) 

Change in derivative fair value, net of income tax

  �      �      �      �      �      �      (190)   (52)   (242) 

Other comprehensive income

          (749) 

Total comprehensive income

         $781 
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Capital contributions from noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      8  

Distributions to noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      (1,254)  

Disposition of businesses

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      (27)  

Acquisition of treasury stock

  �      �      25.5   (279)   �      �      �      �     

Issuance of common stock under benefit plans and exercise of stock options, net of income tax

  2.7   �      (0.4)   6   18   �      �      �     

Stock compensation

  �      �      �      �      26   �      �      �     

Net gain on sale of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      19   �      �      �     

Sale of subsidiary shares to noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      16  

Acquisition of subsidiary shares from noncontrolling interests

  �      �      �      �      �      �      �      2  
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Balance at December 31, 2011

  807.6  $8   42.4  $(489)  $8,507  $678  $(2,758)  $3,783  
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See Accompanying Notes to these Consolidated Financial Statements
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THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

1. GENERAL AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The AES Corporation is a holding company (the �Parent Company�) that through its subsidiaries and affiliates, (collectively, �AES� or �the
Company�) operates a geographically diversified portfolio of electricity generation and distribution businesses. Generally, given this holding
company structure, the liabilities of the individual operating entities are not recourse to the parent and are isolated to the operating entities. Most
of our operating entities are structured as limited liability entities, which limit the liability of shareholders. The structure is generally the same
regardless of whether a subsidiary is consolidated under a voting or variable interest model.

On November 28, 2011, AES completed its acquisition of 100% common stock of DPL Inc. (�DPL�), the parent company of Dayton Power &
Light Company (�DP&L�), a utility based in Ohio, pursuant to the terms and conditions of a definitive agreement (the �Merger Agreement�) dated
April 19, 2011. Upon completion of the acquisition, DPL became a wholly owned subsidiary of AES. DPL�s operating results for the period
November 28, 2011 through December 31, 2011 have been included in the Consolidated Statement of Operations with no comparable amounts
for 2010. In accordance with the accounting guidance on business combinations, DPL�s net assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the
acquisition have been included in the Consolidated Balance Sheet beginning on November 28, 2011. See Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions
for additional information.

CORRECTION OF AN ERROR�Certain amounts related to the dispositions of businesses presented in the Consolidated Statement of Changes
in Equity in our 2010 Form 10-K were incorrectly excluded from consolidated comprehensive income for the period because the Company
failed to reflect the change in foreign currency translation adjustments and derivative fair value as an offset to net income for the period in the
determination of comprehensive income for four business dispositions in 2010. As a result, comprehensive income was understated by $213
million; it was previously reported as $1,283 million and has now been restated to $1,496 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. There
was no impact on amounts presented on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2010 or the Consolidated Statement of Operations
and Statement of Cash Flows for the year ended December 31, 2010.

PRINCIPLES OF CONSOLIDATION�The Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company include the accounts of The AES Corporation,
its subsidiaries and controlled affiliates. Furthermore, variable interest entities (�VIEs�) in which the Company has a variable interest have been
consolidated where the Company is the primary beneficiary. Investments in which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence,
but not control, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting. All intercompany transactions and balances have been eliminated in
consolidation.

A VIE is an entity (a) that has a total equity investment at risk that is not sufficient to finance its activities without additional subordinated
financial support or (b) where the group of equity holders does not have (i) the ability to make significant decisions about the entity�s activities,
(ii) the obligation to absorb the entity�s expected losses or (iii) the right to receive the entity�s expected residual returns or (c) where the voting
rights of some equity holders are not proportional to their obligations to absorb expected losses, receive expected residual returns, or both, and
substantially all of the entity�s activities either involve or are conducted on behalf of an investor that has disproportionately few voting rights.

The determination of which party has the power to direct the activities that most significantly impact the economic performance of the VIE
could require significant judgment and assumptions. That determination considers the purpose and design of the business, the risks that the
business was designed to create and pass along to other entities, the activities of the business that can be directed and which party can direct
them, and the
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THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

expected relative impact of those activities on the economic performance of the business through its life. The businesses for which significant
judgment and assumptions were required were primarily certain generation businesses who have power purchase agreements (�PPAs�) to sell
energy exclusively or primarily to a single counterparty for the term of those agreements. For these generation businesses, the counterparty has
the power to dispatch energy and, in some instances, to make decisions regarding the sale of excess energy. As such, the counterparty has the
power to direct certain activities that significantly impact the economic performance of the business primarily through the cash flows and gross
margin, if any, earned by the business from the sale of energy to the counterparty and sometimes through the counterparty�s absorption of fuel
price risk. However, the counterparty usually does not have the power to direct any of the other activities that could significantly impact the
economic performance. These other activities include: daily operation and management, maintenance, repairs and capital expenditures, plant
expansion, decisions regarding the overall financing of ongoing operations and budgets and, in some instances, decisions regarding the sale of
excess energy. As such, AES has the power to direct some activities of the business that significantly impact its economic performance,
primarily through the cash flows and gross margin earned from capacity payments received from being available to produce energy and from the
sale of energy to other entities (particularly during any period beyond the end of the power purchase agreement). For these businesses, the
determination as to which set of activities most significantly impact the economic performance of the business requires significant judgment and
the use of assumptions. The Company concluded that the activities directed by the counterparty were less significant than those directed by AES.

DP&L has undivided interests in seven generation facilities and numerous transmission facilities. These undivided interests in jointly-owned
facilities are accounted for on a pro rata basis in our consolidated financial statements. Certain expenses, primarily fuel costs for the generating
units, are allocated to the joint owners based on their energy usage. The remaining expenses, investments in fuel inventory, plant materials and
operating supplies and capital additions are allocated to the joint owners in accordance with their respective ownership interests.

Deconsolidations

Thames �AES Thames, LLC (�Thames�), a 208 MW coal-fired plant in Connecticut, filed petitions for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 in
the U.S. Bankruptcy Court on February 1, 2011. Effective that date, the Company lost control of the business and was no longer able to exercise
significant influence over its operating and financial policies. In accordance with the accounting guidance on consolidation, Thames was
deconsolidated on February 1, 2011 and was subsequently accounted for as a cost method investment. At the time of deconsolidation, Thames
had total assets and total liabilities of $158 million and $170 million, respectively. Subsequently, the Company paid $5 million in satisfaction of
a pre-existing guarantee. On January 23, 2012, Thames� request to convert to Chapter 7 liquidation was approved indicating the resolution of
bankruptcy proceedings. Prior period operating results of Thames have been classified as discontinued operations. See Note 22� Discontinued
Operations and Held for Sale Businesses for further information.

Eastern Energy�On December 30, 2011, AES Eastern Energy Limited Partnership (�AES Eastern Energy�) and 13 affiliated entities and on
December 31, 2011, AES New York Equity, LLC filed petitions for bankruptcy protection under Chapter 11 in the U.S. Bankruptcy Court
(collectively referred to as the �New York entities�). Effective that date, the Company lost control of the business and was no longer able to
exercise significant influence over its operating and financial policies. In accordance with the accounting guidance on consolidation, the New
York entities were deconsolidated at December 31, 2011 and are now accounted for as a cost method investment. At the time of deconsolidation,
the New York entities had total assets and total liabilities of $166 million and $289 million, respectively. A net gain of $123 million has been
deferred pending the
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Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 14



Table of Contents

THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

resolution of the bankruptcy proceedings. Prior period operating results of Eastern Energy have been classified as discontinued operations. See
Note 22� Discontinued Operations and Held for Sale Businesses for further information.

Borsod�AES Borsod Kft (�Borsod�), a Hungarian subsidiary formerly operating two generation plants in Hungary, entered liquidation on
November 7, 2011. Effective that date, the Company lost control of the business and was no longer able to exercise significant influence over its
operating and financial policies. In accordance with the accounting guidance on consolidation, Borsod was deconsolidated and is now accounted
for as a cost method investment. At the time of deconsolidation, Borsod had total assets and total liabilities of $9 million and $18 million,
respectively. A net gain of $9 million has been deferred pending the resolution of liquidation proceedings. Prior period operating results of
Borsod have been classified as discontinued operations. See Note 22� Discontinued Operations and Held for Sale Businesses for further
information.

USE OF ESTIMATES�The preparation of these consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted
in the United States of America (�U.S. GAAP�) requires the Company to make estimates and assumptions that affect reported amounts of assets
and liabilities and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the consolidated financial statements, as well as the reported
amounts of revenue and expenses during the reporting period. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Items subject to such estimates
and assumptions include: the carrying amount and estimated useful lives of long-lived assets; impairment of goodwill, long-lived assets and
equity method investments; valuation allowances for receivables and deferred tax assets; the recoverability of deferred regulatory assets; the
estimation of deferred regulatory liabilities; the fair value of financial instruments; the fair value of assets and liabilities acquired in a business
combination accounted for under the purchase method; the determination of noncontrolling interest using the hypothetical liquidation at book
value (�HLBV�) method for certain wind generation partnerships; pension liabilities; environmental liabilities; and potential litigation claims and
settlements.

On January 1, 2011, the Company changed its estimates related to depreciation on property, plant and equipment at its Brazilian concessionary
utility and generation businesses. Based on information received from regulators, the depreciation rates and salvage values for its concession
assets were adjusted on a prospective basis to reflect a remuneration basis, which represents the reimbursement expected by the Company at the
end of the respective concession periods. For the year ended December 31, 2011, the impact to the consolidated statement of operations was an
increase in depreciation expense of $68 million and a decrease in net income attributable to The AES Corporation of $18 million, or $0.02 per
share.

DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND RECLASSIFICATIONS�A discontinued operation is a component of the Company that either has
been disposed of or is classified as held for sale. A component of the Company comprises operations and cash flows that can be clearly
distinguished, operationally and for financial reporting purposes, from the rest of the Company. Prior period amounts have been retrospectively
revised to reflect the businesses determined to be discontinued operations, as further discussed in Note 22�Discontinued Operations and Held for
Sale Businesses. Cash flows at discontinued and held for sale businesses are included within the relevant categories within operating, investing
and financing activities. As cash at such businesses is reported within Current assets of discontinued and held for sale businesses, the aggregate
amount of cash flows is offset by the net (increase) decrease in cash of discontinued and held for sale businesses, which is presented as a
separate line item in the Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows.

FAIR VALUE�Fair value, as defined in the fair value measurement accounting guidance, is the price that would be received to sell an asset or
paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market
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THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

participants at the measurement date, or exit price. The Company applies the fair value measurement accounting guidance to financial assets and
liabilities in determining the fair value of investments in marketable debt and equity securities, included in the consolidated balance sheet line
items �Short-term investments� and �Other assets (noncurrent),� derivative assets, included in �Other current assets� and �Other assets (noncurrent)� and
derivative liabilities, included in �Accrued and other liabilities (current)� and �Other long-term liabilities.� The Company applies the fair value
measurement guidance to nonfinancial assets and liabilities upon the acquisition of a business or in conjunction with the measurement of an
impairment loss on an asset group or goodwill under the accounting guidance for the impairment of long-lived assets or goodwill.

The fair value measurement accounting guidance requires that the Company make assumptions that market participants would use in pricing an
asset or liability based on the best information available. These factors include nonperformance risk (the risk that the obligation will not be
fulfilled) and credit risk of the reporting entity (for liabilities) and of the counterparty (for assets). The fair value measurement guidance
prohibits the inclusion of transaction costs and any adjustments for blockage factors in determining the instruments� fair value. The principal or
most advantageous market should be considered from the perspective of the reporting entity.

Fair value, where available, is based on observable quoted market prices. Where observable prices or inputs are not available, several valuation
models and techniques are applied. These models and techniques attempt to maximize the use of observable inputs and minimize the use of
unobservable inputs. The process involves varying levels of management judgment, the degree of which is dependent on the price transparency
of the instruments or market and the instruments� complexity.

To increase consistency and enhance disclosure of fair value, the fair value measurement accounting guidance creates a fair value hierarchy to
prioritize the inputs used to measure fair value into three categories. An asset or liability�s level within the fair value hierarchy is based on the
lowest level of input significant to the fair value measurement, where Level 1 is the highest and Level 3 is the lowest. The three levels are
defined as follows:

Level 1�unadjusted quoted prices in active markets accessible by the reporting entity for identical assets or liabilities. Active markets are those in
which transactions for the asset or liability occur with sufficient frequency and volume to provide pricing information on an ongoing basis.

Level 2�pricing inputs other than quoted market prices included in Level 1 which are based on observable market data, that are directly or
indirectly observable for substantially the full term of the asset or liability. These include quoted market prices for similar assets or liabilities,
quoted market prices for identical or similar assets in markets that are not active, adjusted quoted market prices, inputs from observable data
such as interest rate and yield curves, volatilities or default rates observable at commonly quoted intervals or inputs derived from observable
market data by correlation or other means. The fair value of most over-the-counter derivatives derived from internal valuation models using
market inputs and most investments in marketable debt securities qualify as Level 2.

Level 3�pricing inputs that are unobservable, or less observable, from objective sources. Unobservable inputs are only used to the extent
observable inputs are not available. These inputs maintain the concept of an exit price from the perspective of a market participant and should
reflect assumptions of other market participants. An entity should consider all market participant assumptions that are available without
unreasonable cost and effort. These are given the lowest priority and are generally used in internally developed methodologies to generate
management�s best estimate of the fair value when no observable market data is available. The fair
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

value of the Company�s reporting units determined using a discounted cash flows valuation model for goodwill impairment assessment and the
fair value of the Company�s long-lived asset groups determined using a discounted cash flows valuation model for the long-lived asset
impairment assessments qualify as Level 3.

Any transfers between the fair value hierarchy levels are recognized at the end of the reporting period.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS�The Company considers unrestricted cash on hand, deposits in banks, certificates of deposit and
short-term marketable securities, with an original or remaining maturity at the date of acquisition of three months or less, to be cash and cash
equivalents. The carrying amounts of such balances approximate fair value.

RESTRICTED CASH�Restricted cash includes cash and cash equivalents which are restricted as to withdrawal or usage. The nature of
restrictions includes restrictions imposed by financing agreements such as security deposits kept as collateral, debt service reserves, maintenance
reserves and others, as well as restrictions imposed by long-term PPAs. On December 31, 2011, the Company reclassified approximately $130
million from restricted cash to cash and cash equivalents as it did not view certain restrictions in the financing arrangements of certain
subsidiaries to be substantive in nature. Amounts at December 31, 2010 were immaterial and therefore were not reclassified for comparative
presentation purposes.

INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES�Short-term investments in marketable debt and equity securities consist of securities with
original or remaining maturities in excess of three months but less than one year. The Company�s marketable investments are primarily
unsecured debentures, certificates of deposit, government debt securities and money market funds.

Marketable debt securities that the Company has both the positive intent and ability to hold to maturity are classified as held-to-maturity and are
carried at amortized cost. Other marketable securities that the Company does not intend to hold to maturity are classified as available-for-sale or
trading and are carried at fair value. Available-for-sale investments are marked-to-market at the end of each reporting period, with unrealized
holding gains or losses, which represent changes in the market value of the investment, reflected in accumulated other comprehensive loss
(�AOCL�), a separate component of equity. In measuring the other-than-temporary impairment of debt securities, the Company identifies two
components: 1) the amount representing the credit loss, which is recognized as �other non-operating expense� in the Consolidated Statements of
Operations; and 2) the amount related to other factors, which is recognized in AOCL unless there is a plan to sell the security, in which case it
would be recognized in earnings. The amount recognized in AOCL for held-to-maturity debt securities is then amortized in earnings over the
remaining life of such securities.

Investments classified as trading are marked-to-market on a periodic basis through the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Interest and
dividends on investments are reported in interest income and other income, respectively. Gains and losses on sales of investments are determined
using the specific identification method.

See Note 4�Fair Value and the Company�s fair value policy for additional discussion regarding the determination of the fair value of the
Company�s investments in marketable debt and equity securities.

ACCOUNTS AND NOTES RECEIVABLE AND ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL ACCOUNTS�Accounts and Notes receivable are
carried at amortized cost. The Company periodically assesses the collectability of accounts receivable considering factors such as specific
evaluation of collectability, historical
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

collection experience, the age of accounts receivable and other currently available evidence of the collectability, and records an allowance for
doubtful accounts for the estimated uncollectable amount as appropriate. Certain of our businesses charge interest on accounts receivable either
under contractual terms or where charging interest is a customary business practice. In such cases, interest income is recognized on an accrual
basis. In situations where the collection of interest is uncertain, interest income is recognized as cash is received. Individual accounts and notes
receivable are written off when they are no longer deemed collectible. Included in �Noncurrent Other Assets� are long-term financing receivables
of $295 million, primarily with certain Latin American governmental bodies. These receivables have contractual maturities of greater than one
year and are being collected in installments. Of the total $295 million, amounts of $232 million and $49 million, respectively, relate to our
businesses in Argentina and the Dominican Republic. The remaining amount relates to our distribution businesses in Brazil.

In April 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-02, Receivables (Topic 310), �A Creditor�s Determination of Whether a Restructuring Is a
Troubled Debt Restructuring� which provides additional guidance and clarification to help creditors determine whether a creditor has granted a
concession and whether a debtor is experiencing financial difficulties for purposes of determining whether a restructuring constitutes a troubled
debt restructuring. The Company adopted ASU No. 2011-2 on July 1, 2011. The adoption did not have any impact on the Company�s financial
position, results of operations or cash flows.

INVENTORY�Inventory primarily consists of coal, fuel oil and other raw materials used to generate power, and spare parts and supplies used to
maintain power generation and distribution facilities. Inventory is carried at lower of cost or market. Cost is the sum of the purchase price and
incidental expenditures and charges incurred to bring the inventory to its existing condition or location. Cost is determined under the first-in,
first-out (�FIFO�), average cost or specific identification method. Generally, cost is reduced to market value if the market value of inventory has
declined and it is probable that the utility of inventory, in its disposal in the ordinary course of business, will not be recovered through revenue
earned from the generation of power.

LONG-LIVED ASSETS�Long-lived assets include property, plant and equipment, assets under capital leases and intangible assets subject to
amortization (i.e., finite-lived intangible assets).

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment are stated at cost, net of accumulated depreciation. The costs of renewals and improvements that extend the useful
life of property, plant and equipment are capitalized.

Construction progress payments, engineering costs, insurance costs, salaries, interest and other costs directly relating to construction in progress
are capitalized during the construction period, provided the completion of the project is deemed probable, or expensed at the time the Company
determines that development of a particular project is no longer probable. The continued capitalization of such costs is subject to ongoing risks
related to successful completion, including those related to government approvals, site identification, financing, construction permitting and
contract compliance. Construction in progress balances are transferred to electric generation and distribution assets when an asset group is ready
for its intended use. Government subsidies and income tax credits are recorded as a reduction to property, plant and equipment and reflected in
cash flows from investing activities.

Depreciation, after consideration of salvage value and asset retirement obligations, is computed primarily using the straight-line method over the
estimated useful lives of the assets, which are determined on a composite
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or component basis. Maintenance and repairs are charged to expense as incurred. Capital spare parts, including rotable spare parts, are included
in electric generation and distribution assets. If the spare part is considered a component, it is depreciated over its useful life after the part is
placed in service. If the spare part is deemed part of a composite asset, the part is depreciated over the composite useful life even when being
held as a spare part.

Intangible Assets Subject to Amortization

Finite-lived intangible assets are amortized over their useful lives which range from 1 � 50 years. The Company accounts for purchased emission
allowances as intangible assets and records an expense when utilized or sold. Granted emission allowances are valued at zero.

Impairment of Long-lived Assets

The Company evaluates the impairment of long-lived assets (asset group) using internal projections of undiscounted cash flows when
circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of such assets may not be recoverable or the assets meet the held for sale criteria under the
relevant accounting standards. Events or changes in circumstances that may necessitate a recoverability evaluation may include but are not
limited to: adverse changes in the regulatory environment, unfavorable changes in power prices or fuel costs, increased competition due to
additional capacity in the grid, technological advancements, declining trends in demand, an expectation that it is more likely than not that the
asset will be disposed of before the end of its previously estimated useful life, etc. The carrying amount of a long-lived asset (asset group) may
not be recoverable if it exceeds the sum of undiscounted cash flows expected to result from the use and eventual disposal of the asset (asset
group). In such cases, fair value of the long-lived asset (asset group) is determined in accordance with the fair value measurement accounting
guidance. The excess of carrying amount over fair value, if any, is recognized as an impairment expense. For regulated assets, an impairment
expense could be reduced by the establishment of a regulatory asset, if recovery through approved rates was probable. For non-regulated assets,
impairment is recognized as an expense against earnings.

DEFERRED FINANCING COSTS�Costs incurred in connection with the issuance of long-term debt are deferred and amortized over the
related financing period using the effective interest method or the straight-line method when it does not differ materially from the effective
interest method. Make-whole payments in connection with early debt retirements are classified as cash flows used in investing activities.

EQUITY METHOD INVESTMENTS�Investments in entities over which the Company has the ability to exercise significant influence, but not
control, are accounted for using the equity method of accounting and reported in �Investments in and advances to affiliates� on the Consolidated
Balance Sheets. The Company periodically assesses the recoverability of its equity method investments. If an identified event or change in
circumstances requires an impairment evaluation, management assesses the fair value based on valuation methodologies, including discounted
cash flows, estimates of sale proceeds and external appraisals, as appropriate. The difference between the carrying amount of the equity method
investment and its estimated fair value is recognized as impairment when the loss in value is deemed other-than-temporary and included in �Other
non-operating expense� in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The Company discontinues the application of the equity method when an investment is reduced to zero and the Company is not otherwise
committed to provide further financial support to the investee. The Company resumes the application of the equity method if the investee
subsequently reports net income to the extent that the Company�s share of such net income equals the share of net losses not recognized during
the period in which the equity method of accounting was suspended.
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GOODWILL AND INDEFINITE-LIVED INTANGIBLE ASSETS�The Company recognizes goodwill as an asset representing the future
economic benefits arising from other assets acquired in a business combination that are not individually identified and separately recognized.
The Company evaluates goodwill and indefinite-lived intangible assets for impairment on an annual basis and whenever events or changes in
circumstances necessitate an evaluation for impairment. The Company�s annual impairment testing date is October 1.

Goodwill:

The Company evaluates goodwill impairment at the reporting unit level, which is an operating segment, as defined in the segment reporting
accounting guidance, or a component (i.e., one level below an operating segment). In determining its reporting units, the Company starts with its
management reporting structure. Operating segments are identified and then analyzed to identify components (usually businesses) which make
up these operating segments. Two or more components are combined into a single reporting unit if they share the economic similarity criteria
prescribed by the accounting guidance. Assets and liabilities are allocated to a reporting unit if the assets will be employed by or a liability
relates to the operations of the reporting unit or would be considered by a market participant in determining its fair value. Goodwill resulting
from an acquisition is assigned to the reporting units that are expected to benefit from the synergies of the acquisition. Generally, each AES
business constitutes a reporting unit.

In December 2010, the FASB issued ASU No. 2010-28, Intangibles�Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), �When to Perform Step 2 of the Goodwill
Impairment Test for Reporting Units with Zero or Negative Carrying Amounts�, which amended the accounting guidance related to goodwill. The
amendment modified Step One of the goodwill impairment test for reporting units with zero or negative carrying amounts. For those reporting
units, an entity is required to perform Step Two of the goodwill impairment test if it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment exists,
eliminating an entity�s ability to assert that a reporting unit is not required to perform Step Two because the carrying amount of the reporting unit
is zero or negative, despite the existence of qualitative factors that indicate the goodwill is more likely than not impaired. In determining whether
it is more likely than not that a goodwill impairment exists, an entity should consider whether there are any adverse qualitative factors indicating
that an impairment may exist. The Company adopted ASU No. 2010-28 on January 1, 2011. The adoption did not have any impact on the
Company as none of its reporting units with goodwill has a zero or negative carrying amount.

In September 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-08, Intangibles�Goodwill and Other (Topic 350), �Testing Goodwill for Impairment� which
amended the existing guidance for goodwill impairment testing. Under the amendments in ASU No. 2011-08, an entity has the option to first
assess qualitative factors to determine whether the existence of events or circumstances leads to a determination that it is more likely than not
that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount. If, after this qualitative assessment, an entity determines that it is not more
likely than not that the fair value of a reporting unit is less than its carrying amount, then performing the two-step impairment test is
unnecessary. Also, an entity has the option to bypass the qualitative assessment for any reporting unit in any period and proceed directly to
performing the first step of the two-step goodwill impairment test. The amendments did not change the existing accounting guidance on how
Step 1 and Step 2 of the goodwill impairment test are performed. In addition, an entity is no longer permitted to carry forward its detailed
calculation of a reporting unit�s fair value from a prior year as previously permitted under the existing guidance. ASU No. 2011-08 is effective
for annual and interim goodwill impairment tests performed for fiscal periods beginning on or after December 15, 2011 and early adoption is
permitted. AES elected to adopt ASU No. 2011-8 early for its 2011 annual goodwill impairment evaluations performed at October 1 each year
and qualitatively assessed certain of its reporting units for goodwill impairment evaluation. The adoption did not have an impact on the
Company�s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.
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Goodwill impairment evaluation is performed in two steps. In Step 1, the carrying amount of a reporting unit is compared to its fair value and if
the fair value exceeds the carrying amount, Step 2 is unnecessary. If the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit�s fair value, this could
indicate potential impairment and Step 2 of the goodwill evaluation process is required to determine if goodwill is impaired and to measure the
amount of impairment loss to recognize, if any. In determining the implied fair value of goodwill for impairment measurement, the accounting
guidance requires measuring all assets and liabilities, including unrecognized assets and liabilities, at fair value, as would be done in a business
combination. When a Step 2 analysis is required to be completed, the fair value of individual assets and liabilities is determined using valuations
(which in some cases may be based in part on third party valuation reports), or other observable sources of fair value, as appropriate. If the
carrying amount of goodwill exceeds its implied fair value, the excess is recognized as an impairment loss.

Most of the Company�s reporting units are not publicly traded. Therefore, the Company estimates the fair value of its reporting units under the
fair value measurement accounting guidance which requires making assumptions that a market participant would make in a hypothetical sale
transaction at the testing date. The fair value of a reporting unit is estimated using internal budgets and forecasts, adjusted for any market
participants� assumptions and discounted at the rate of return required by a market participant. The Company considers both market and
income-based approaches to determine a range of fair value, but typically concludes that the value derived using an income-based approach is
more representative of fair value due to the lack of direct market comparables. The Company does use market data to corroborate and determine
the reasonableness of the fair value derived from the income-based discounted cash flow analysis.

Indefinite-lived Intangible Assets:

The Company�s indefinite-lived intangible assets primarily include land use rights, easements, concessions and trade name. These are tested for
impairment on an annual basis or whenever events or changes in circumstances necessitate an evaluation for impairment. If the carrying amount
of an intangible asset exceeds its fair value, the excess is recognized as impairment expense.

ACCOUNTS PAYABLE AND OTHER ACCRUED LIABILITIES�Accounts payable consists of amounts due to trade creditors related to the
Company�s core business operations. The nature of these payables include amounts owed to vendors and suppliers for items such as energy
purchased for resale, fuel, maintenance, inventory and other raw materials. Other accrued liabilities include items such as income taxes,
regulatory liabilities, legal contingencies and employee related costs including payroll, benefits and related taxes.

REGULATORY ASSETS AND LIABILITIES�The Company accounts for certain of its regulated operations in accordance with the
accounting standards on regulated operations. As a result, AES records assets and liabilities that result from the regulated ratemaking process
that are not recognized under GAAP for non-regulated entities. Regulatory assets generally represent incurred costs that have been deferred due
to the probability of future recovery in customer rates. Regulatory liabilities generally represent obligations to make refunds to customers.

Management continually assesses whether the regulatory assets are probable of future recovery by considering factors such as applicable
regulatory changes, recent rate orders applicable to other regulated entities and the status of any pending or potential deregulation legislation. If
future recovery of costs previously deferred ceases to be probable, the related regulatory assets are written off and recognized in continuing
operations.

PENSION AND OTHER POSTRETIREMENT PLANS�In accordance with the accounting guidance on defined benefit pension and other
postretirement plans, the Company recognizes in its Consolidated Balance Sheets an asset or liability reflecting the funded status of pension and
other postretirement plans with current year
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changes in the funded status recognized in AOCL, except for those plans at certain of the Company�s regulated utilities that can recover portions
of their pension and postretirement obligations through future rates. All plan assets are recorded at fair value. AES follows the measurement date
provisions of the accounting guidance, which require a year-end measurement date of plan assets and obligations for all defined benefit plans.

INCOME TAXES�Deferred tax assets and liabilities are recognized for the future tax consequences attributable to differences between the
financial statement carrying amounts of the existing assets and liabilities, and their respective income tax bases. The Company establishes a
valuation allowance when it is more likely than not that all or a portion of a deferred tax asset will not be realized. The Company�s tax positions
are evaluated under a more-likely-than-not recognition threshold and measurement analysis before they are recognized for financial statement
reporting.

Uncertain tax positions have been classified as noncurrent income tax liabilities unless expected to be paid within one year. The Company�s
policy for interest and penalties related to income tax exposures is to recognize interest and penalties as a component of the provision for income
taxes in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

ASSET RETIREMENT OBLIGATIONS�In accordance with the accounting standards for asset retirement obligations, the Company records
the fair value of the liability for a legal obligation to retire an asset in the period in which the obligation is incurred. When a new liability is
recognized, the Company capitalizes the costs of the liability by increasing the carrying amount of the related long-lived asset. The liability is
accreted to its present value each period and the capitalized cost is depreciated over the useful life of the related asset. Upon settlement of the
obligation, the Company eliminates the liability and, based on the actual cost to retire, may incur a gain or loss.

NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS�Noncontrolling interests are classified as a separate component of equity in the Consolidated Balance
Sheets and Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity. Additionally, net income and comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling
interests are reflected separately from consolidated net income and comprehensive income in the Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Equity. Any change in ownership of a subsidiary while the controlling financial interest is retained is
accounted for as an equity transaction between the controlling and noncontrolling interests. Losses continue to be attributed to the noncontrolling
interests, even when the noncontrolling interests� basis has been reduced to zero.

Although in general, the noncontrolling ownership interest in earnings is calculated based on ownership percentage, certain of the Company�s
wind businesses use the HLBV method in consolidation. HLBV uses a balance sheet approach, which measures the Company�s equity in income
or loss by calculating the change in the amount of net worth the partners are legally able to claim based on a hypothetical liquidation of the entity
at the beginning of a reporting period compared to the end of that period. This method is used in Wind Generation partnerships which contain
agreements designating different allocations of value among investors, where the allocations change in form or percentage over the life of the
partnership.

GUARANTOR ACCOUNTING�In accordance with the accounting standards on guarantees, at the inception of a guarantee, the Company
records the fair value of a guarantee as a liability, with the offset dependent on the circumstances under which the guarantee was issued.

TRANSFER OF FINANCIAL ASSETS�Effective January 1, 2010, the Company prospectively adopted the new accounting guidance on
transfers of financial assets, which among other things: removes the concept of a qualifying special purpose entity; introduces the concept of
participating interests and specifies that in order to
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qualify for sale accounting a partial transfer of a financial asset or a group of financial assets should meet the definition of a participating
interest; clarifies that an entity should consider all arrangements made contemporaneously with or in contemplation of a transfer; and, requires
enhanced disclosures to provide financial statement users with greater transparency about transfers of financial assets and a transferor�s
continuing involvement with transfers of financial assets accounted for as sales. Upon adoption on January 1, 2010, the Company recognized
$40 million as accounts receivable and as an associated secured borrowing on its Consolidated Balance Sheet; both have since increased to $50
million as of December 31, 2011, as additional interests in receivables have been sold. While securitizing these accounts receivable through IPL
Funding, a special purpose entity, IPL, the Company�s integrated utility in Indianapolis, had previously recognized the transaction as a sale, but
had not recognized the accounts receivable and secured borrowing on its balance sheet. Under the facility, interests in these accounts receivable
are sold, on a revolving basis, to unrelated parties (the Purchasers) up to the lesser of $50 million or an amount determinable under the facility
agreement. The Purchasers assume the risk of collection on the interest sold without recourse to IPL, which retains the servicing responsibilities
for the interest sold. While no direct recourse to IPL exists, IPL risks loss in the event collections are not sufficient to allow for full recovery of
the retained interests. No servicing asset or liability is recorded since the servicing fee paid to IPL approximates a market rate. Under the new
accounting guidance, the retained interest in these securitized accounts receivable does not meet the definition of a participating interest, thereby
requiring the Company to recognize on its Consolidated Balance Sheet the portion transferred and the proceeds received as accounts receivable
and a secured borrowing, respectively.

FOREIGN CURRENCY TRANSLATION�A business� functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environment in which the
business operates and is generally the currency in which the business generates and expends cash. Subsidiaries and affiliates whose functional
currency is a currency other than the U.S. Dollar translate their assets and liabilities into U.S. Dollars at the current exchange rates in effect at
the end of the fiscal period. The revenue and expense accounts of such subsidiaries and affiliates are translated into U.S. Dollars at the average
exchange rates that prevailed during the period. Translation adjustments are included in AOCL. Gains and losses on intercompany foreign
currency transactions that are long-term in nature and which the Company does not intend to settle in the foreseeable future, are also recognized
in AOCL. Gains and losses that arise from exchange rate fluctuations on transactions denominated in a currency other than the functional
currency are included in determining net income.

REVENUE RECOGNITION�Revenue from Utilities is classified as regulated in the Consolidated Statements of Operations. Revenue from the
sale of energy is recognized in the period during which the sale occurs. The calculation of revenue earned but not yet billed is based on the
number of days not billed in the month, the estimated amount of energy delivered during those days and the estimated average price per
customer class for that month. Differences between actual and estimated unbilled revenue are usually immaterial. The Company has businesses
where it makes sales and purchases of power to and from Independent System Operators (�ISOs�) and Regional Transmission Organizations
(�RTOs�). In those instances, the Company accounts for these transactions on a net hourly basis because the transactions are settled on a net hourly
basis. Revenue from Generation businesses is classified as non-regulated and is recognized based upon output delivered and capacity provided,
at rates as specified under contract terms or prevailing market rates. Certain of the Company PPAs meet the definition of an operating lease or
contain similar arrangements. Typically, minimum lease payments from such PPAs are recognized as revenue on a straight line basis over the
lease term whereas contingent rentals are recognized when earned. Revenue is recorded net of any taxes assessed on and collected from
customers, which are remitted to the governmental authorities.

In October 2009, the FASB issued ASU No. 2009-13, Revenue Recognition (Topic 605), �Multiple-Deliverable Revenue Arrangements�, which
amended the accounting guidance related to revenue recognition.

181

Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 23



Table of Contents

THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

The amended guidance provides primarily two changes to the prior guidance for multiple-element revenue arrangements. The first eliminated
the requirement that there be �objective and reliable evidence� of fair value for any undelivered items in order for a delivered item to be treated as
a separate unit of accounting. The second required that the consideration from multiple-element revenue arrangements be allocated to all the
deliverables based on their relative selling price at the inception of the arrangement. AES adopted the standard on January 1, 2011. AES elected
prospective adoption and applied the revised guidance to all revenue arrangements entered into or materially modified after the date of adoption.
The adoption of ASU No. 2009-13 did not have a material impact on the financial position and results of operations of AES and is not expected
to have a material impact in future periods.

SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION�The Company grants share-based compensation in the form of stock options and restricted stock units.
The Company accounts for stock-based compensation plans under the accounting guidance on stock-based compensation, which requires entities
to recognize compensation costs relating to share-based payments in their financial statements. That cost is measured on the grant date based on
the fair value of the equity or liability instrument issued and is expensed on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period, net of
estimated forfeitures. Currently, the Company uses a Black-Scholes option pricing model to estimate the fair value of stock options granted to its
employees.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES�General and administrative expenses include corporate and other expenses related to
corporate staff functions and initiatives, primarily executive management, finance, legal, human resources and information systems, which are
not directly allocable to our business segments. Additionally, all costs associated with business development efforts are classified as general and
administrative expenses.

DERIVATIVES AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES�Derivatives primarily consist of interest rate swaps, cross currency swaps, foreign currency
instruments, and commodity and embedded derivatives. The Company enters into various derivative transactions in order to hedge its exposure
to certain market risks. AES primarily uses derivative instruments to manage its interest rate, foreign currency and commodity exposures. The
Company does not enter into derivative transactions for trading purposes.

Under the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging, the Company recognizes all contracts that meet the definition of a derivative, except
those designated as normal purchase or normal sale at inception, as either assets or liabilities in the Consolidated Balance Sheets and measures
those instruments at fair value. Changes in the fair value of derivatives are recognized in earnings unless specific hedge criteria are met. Gains
and losses related to derivative instruments that qualify as hedges are recognized in the same category as generated by the underlying asset or
liability. Gains or losses on derivatives that do not qualify for hedge accounting are recognized as interest expense for interest rate and cross
currency derivatives, foreign currency transaction gains or losses for foreign currency derivatives, and non-regulated revenue or non-regulated
cost of sales for commodity derivatives.

The accounting standards for derivatives and hedging enable companies to designate qualifying derivatives as hedging instruments based on the
exposure being hedged. These hedge designations include fair value hedges and cash flow hedges. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that
is highly effective, designated and qualifies as a fair value hedge are recognized in earnings as offsets to the changes in fair value of the exposure
being hedged. The Company has no fair value hedges at this time. Changes in the fair value of a derivative that is highly effective, designated
and qualifies as a cash flow hedge are deferred in AOCL and are recognized into earnings as the hedged transactions affect earnings. Any
ineffectiveness is recognized in earnings immediately.
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The ineffective portion is recognized as interest expense for interest rate and cross currency hedges, foreign currency transaction gains or losses
for foreign currency hedges, and non-regulated revenue or non-regulated cost of sales for commodity hedges. For all hedge contracts, the
Company maintains formal documentation of the hedge and effectiveness testing in accordance with the accounting standards for derivatives and
hedging. If AES determines that the derivative is not highly effective as a hedge, hedge accounting will be discontinued prospectively.

For cash flow hedges of forecasted transactions, AES estimates the future cash flows of the forecasted transactions and evaluates the probability
of the occurrence and timing of such transactions. Changes in conditions or the occurrence of unforeseen events could require discontinuance of
hedge accounting or could affect the timing of the reclassification of gains or losses on cash flow hedges from AOCL into earnings.

The Company has elected not to offset net derivative positions in the financial statements. Accordingly, the Company does not offset such
derivative positions against the fair value of amounts (or amounts that approximate fair value) recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral
(a receivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) under master netting arrangements.

See Note 4�Fair Value and the Company�s fair value policy for additional discussion regarding the determination of the fair value of the
Company�s derivative assets and liabilities.

Accounting Pronouncements Issued But Not Yet Effective

The following accounting standards have been issued, but as of December 31, 2011 are not yet effective for and have not been adopted by AES.

ASU No. 2011-04, Fair Value Measurements (Topic 820), �Amendments to Achieve Common Fair Value Measurement and Disclosure
Requirements in U.S. GAAP and IFRSs�

In May 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-04, which among other requirements, prohibits the use of the block discount factor for all fair
value level hierarchies; permits an entity to measure the fair value of its financial instruments on a net basis when the related market risks are
managed on a net basis; states the highest and best use concept is no longer relevant in the measurement of financial assets and liabilities;
clarifies that a reporting entity should disclose quantitative information about the unobservable inputs used in Level 3 measurements and that the
application of premiums and discounts is related to the unit of account for the asset or liability being measured at fair value; and requires
expanded disclosures to describe the valuation process used for Level 3 measurements and the sensitivity of Level 3 measurements to changes in
unobservable inputs. In addition, entities are required to disclose the hierarchy level for items which are not measured at fair value in the
statement of financial position, but for which fair value is required to be disclosed. ASU No. 2011-04 is effective for the first interim or annual
period beginning on or after December 15, 2011, or January 1, 2012 for AES. The adoption is not expected to have a material impact on the
Company�s financial position, results of operations or cash flows.

ASU No. 2011-10, Property, Plant, and Equipment (Topic 360), �Derecognition of in Substance Real Estate�a Scope Clarification�

In December 2011, the FASB issued ASU No. 2011-10, which clarifies that when a parent (reporting entity) ceases to have a controlling
financial interest (as described in Subtopic 810-10) in a subsidiary that is in substance real estate as a result of default on the subsidiary�s
nonrecourse debt, the reporting entity should apply
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the guidance in Subtopic 360-20 to determine whether it should derecognize the in substance real estate. Generally, a reporting entity would not
satisfy the requirements to derecognize the in substance real estate before the legal transfer of the real estate to the lender and the extinguishment
of the related nonrecourse indebtedness. That is, even if the reporting entity ceases to have a controlling financial interest under Subtopic
810-10, the reporting entity would continue to include the real estate, debt, and the results of the subsidiary�s operations in its consolidated
financial statements until legal title to the real estate is transferred to legally satisfy the debt. ASU No. 2011-10 should be applied on a
prospective basis to deconsolidation events occurring after the effective date. Prior periods should not be adjusted even if the reporting entity has
continuing involvement with previously derecognized in substance real estate entities. ASU No. 2011-10 is effective for fiscal years, and interim
periods within those years, beginning on or after June 15, 2012. Early adoption is permitted. The adoption of ASU No. 2011-10 is not expected
to have a material impact on the Company�s financial position and results of operations.

2. INVENTORY

As of December 31, 2011, 81% of the Company�s inventory was valued using average cost, 17% was determined using the FIFO method and the
remaining inventory was valued using the specific identification method. The following table summarizes our inventory balances as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
Coal, fuel oil and other raw materials $ 444 $ 272
Spare parts and supplies 345 280

Total $ 789 $ 552

3. PROPERTY, PLANT & EQUIPMENT

The following table summarizes the components of the electric generation and distribution assets and other property, plant and equipment with
their estimated useful lives:

Estimated December 31,
Useful Life 2011 2010

(in millions)
Electric generation and distribution facilities 5 -  69 yrs. $ 27,627 $ 23,133
Other buildings 3 - 50 yrs. 2,927 2,085
Furniture, fixtures and equipment 3 - 31 yrs. 481 484
Other 1 - 46 yrs. 913 812

Total electric generation and distribution assets and other 31,948 26,514
Accumulated depreciation (9,145) (8,643) 

Net electric generation and distribution assets and other(1) $ 22,803 $ 17,871
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(1) Net electric generation and distribution assets and other related to our businesses included in discontinued operations or held for sale of
$622 million and $1.2 billion as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, were excluded from the table above and were included in
the noncurrent assets of discontinued and held for sale businesses.

The amounts in the table above are stated net of impairment losses recognized as further discussed in Note 20�Impairment Expense.
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The following table summarizes interest capitalized during development and construction on qualifying assets for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Interest capitalized during development and construction $ 176 $ 188 $ 183
Government subsidies and recoveries of liquidated damages from construction delays are reflected as a reduction in the related projects�
construction costs. During 2011, the Company recovered liquidated damages of �139 million ($180 million) from the EPC contractor at Maritza,
which were used to reduce the carrying amount of related plant and equipment. Approximately $13.5 billion of property, plant and equipment,
net of accumulated depreciation, was mortgaged, pledged or subject to liens as of December 31, 2011.

Depreciation expense, including the amortization of assets recorded under capital leases, was $1.2 billion, $1.1 billion and $891 million for the
years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

Net electric generation and distribution assets and other include unamortized internal use software costs of $157 million and $164 million as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Amortization expense associated with software costs was $46 million, $50 million and $46 million
for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009.

The following table summarizes regulated and non-regulated generation and distribution property, plant and equipment and accumulated
depreciation as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
Regulated assets $ 14,468 $ 12,006
Regulated accumulated depreciation (5,029) (4,961) 

Regulated generation, distribution assets, and other, net 9,439 7,045

Non-regulated assets 17,480 14,508
Non-regulated accumulated depreciation (4,116) (3,682) 

Non-regulated generation, distribution assets, and other, net 13,364 10,826

Net electric generation and distribution assets, and other $ 22,803 $ 17,871

The following table summarizes the amounts recognized, which were related to asset retirement obligations, for the years ended December 31,
2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
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(in millions)
Balance at January 1 $ 88 $ 60
Additional liabilities incurred 1 22
Assumed in business combination 24 �  
Accretion expense 6 5
Change in estimated cash flows (1) 1
Translation adjustments (1) �  

Balance at December 31 $ 117 $ 88
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The Company�s asset retirement obligations covered by the relevant guidance primarily include active ash landfills, water treatment basins and
the removal or dismantlement of certain plant and equipment. The fair value of legally restricted assets for purposes of settling asset retirement
obligations was $1 million at December 31, 2011. There were no legally restricted assets at December 31, 2010.

Ownership of Coal-Fired Facilities

DP&L has undivided ownership interests in seven coal-fired generation facilities jointly owned with other utilities. As of December 31, 2011,
DP&L had $48 million of construction work in process at such facilities. DP&L�s share of the operating costs of such facilities is included in
Cost of Sales in the Consolidated Statement of Operations and its share of investment in the facilities is included in Property, Plant and
Equipment in the Consolidated Balance Sheet. DP&L�s undivided ownership interest in such facilities at December 31, 2011 is as follows:

DP&L Share DP&L Investment

Ownership

Production
Capacity
(MW)

Gross

Plant
In Service

Accumulated
Depreciation

Construction
Work In
Process

($ in millions)
Production Units:
Beckjord Unit 6 50% 210 $ �  $ �  $ �  
Conesville Unit 4 17% 129 �  �  2
East Bend Station 31% 186 �  �  2
Killen Station 67% 402 331 �  4
Miami Fort Units 7 and 8 36% 368 239 1 2
Stuart Station 35% 820 181 1 14
Zimmer Station 28% 365 161 2 24
Transmission various 34 �  �  

Total 2,480 $ 946 $ 4 $ 48

4. FAIR VALUE

The fair value of current financial assets and liabilities, debt service reserves and other deposits approximate their reported carrying amounts.
The fair value of non-recourse debt is estimated differently based upon the type of loan. In general, the carrying amount of variable rate debt is a
close approximation of its fair value. For fixed rate loans, the fair value is estimated using quoted market prices or discounted cash flow
analyses. See Note 11�Debt for additional information on the fair value and carrying value of debt. The fair value of interest rate swap, cap and
floor agreements, foreign currency forwards, swaps and options, and energy derivatives is the estimated net amount that the Company would
receive or pay to sell or transfer the agreements as of the balance sheet date.

The estimated fair values of the Company�s assets and liabilities have been determined using available market information. By virtue of these
amounts being estimates and based on hypothetical transactions to sell assets or transfer liabilities, the use of different market assumptions
and/or estimation methodologies may have a material effect on the estimated fair value amounts.
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The following table summarizes the carrying amount and fair value of certain of the Company�s financial assets and liabilities as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010 

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

(in millions)
Assets
Marketable securities $ 1,356 $ 1,356 $ 1,760 $ 1,760 
Derivatives 120 120 119 119 

Total assets $ 1,476 $ 1,476 $ 1,879 $ 1,879 

Liabilities
Debt $ 22,573 $ 23,065 $ 18,788 $ 19,374 
Derivatives 690 690 358 358 

Total liabilities $ 23,263 $ 23,755 $ 19,146 $ 19,732 

Valuation Techniques:

The fair value measurement accounting guidance describes three main approaches to measuring the fair value of assets and liabilities: (1) market
approach; (2) income approach and (3) cost approach. The market approach uses prices and other relevant information generated from market
transactions involving identical or comparable assets or liabilities. The income approach uses valuation techniques to convert future amounts to a
single present value amount. The measurement is based on current market expectations of the return on those future amounts. The cost approach
is based on the amount that would currently be required to replace an asset. The Company measures its investments and derivatives at fair value
on a recurring basis. Additionally, in connection with annual or event-driven impairment evaluations, certain nonfinancial assets and liabilities
are measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis. These include long-lived tangible assets (i.e., property, plant and equipment), goodwill and
intangible assets (e.g., sales concessions, land use rights and emissions allowances, etc.). In general, the Company determines the fair value of
investments and derivatives using the market approach and the income approach, respectively. In the nonrecurring measurements of nonfinancial
assets and liabilities, all three approaches are considered; however, fair value estimated under the income approach is often selected.

Investments

The Company�s investments measured at fair value generally consist of marketable debt and equity securities. Equity securities are measured at
fair value using quoted market prices. Debt securities primarily consist of unsecured debentures, certificates of deposit and government debt
securities held by our Brazilian subsidiaries. Returns and pricing on these instruments are generally indexed to the CDI (Brazilian equivalent to
London Inter-Bank Offered Rate, or LIBOR, a benchmark interest rate widely used by banks in the interbank lending market) or Selic (overnight
borrowing rate) rates in Brazil. Fair value is determined from comparisons to market data obtained for similar assets and are considered Level 2
in the fair value hierarchy. For more detail regarding the fair value of investments see Note 5�Investments in Marketable Securities.

Derivatives
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instruments. The derivatives are primarily interest rate swaps to hedge non-recourse debt to establish a fixed rate on variable rate debt, foreign
exchange instruments to hedge against currency fluctuations, commodity derivatives to hedge against commodity price fluctuations and
embedded derivatives associated with commodity contracts. The Company�s subsidiaries are counterparties to various over-the-counter
derivatives, which include interest rate swaps and options, foreign currency options and forwards and commodity swaps. In addition, the
Company�s subsidiaries are counterparties to certain PPAs and fuel supply agreements that are derivatives or include embedded derivatives.

For the derivatives where there is a standard industry valuation model, the Company uses that model to estimate the fair value. For the
derivatives (such PPAs and fuel supply agreements that are derivatives or include embedded derivatives) where there is not a standard industry
valuation model, the Company has created internal valuation models to estimate the fair value, using observable data to the extent available. For
all derivatives, with the exception of those classified as Level 1, the income approach is used, which consists of forecasting future cash flows
based on contractual notional amounts and applicable and available market data as of the valuation date. The following are among the most
common market data inputs used in the income approach: volatilities, spot and forward benchmark interest rates (such as LIBOR and Euro Inter
Bank Offered Rate (�EURIBOR�)), foreign exchange rates and commodity prices. Forward rates with the same tenor as the derivative instrument
being valued are generally obtained from published sources, with these forward rates being assessed quarterly at a portfolio-level for
reasonableness versus comparable, published information provided from another source. In situations where significant inputs are not
observable, the Company uses relevant techniques to best estimate the inputs, such as regression analysis, Monte Carlo simulation or prices for
similarly traded instruments available in the market.

For each derivative, with the exception of those classified as Level 1, the income approach is used to estimate the cash flows over the remaining
term of the contract. Those cash flows are then discounted using the relevant spot benchmark interest rate (such as LIBOR or EURIBOR) plus a
spread that reflects the credit or nonperformance risk. This risk is estimated by the Company using credit spreads and risk premiums that are
observable in the market, whenever possible, or estimated borrowing costs based on bank quotes, industry publications and/or information on
financing closed on similar projects. To the extent that management can estimate the fair value of these assets or liabilities without the use of
significant unobservable inputs, these derivatives are classified as Level 2.

The Company�s methodology to fair value its derivatives is to start with any observable inputs, however, in certain instances the published
forward rates or prices may not extend through the remaining term of the contract and management must make assumptions to extrapolate the
curve, which necessitates the use of unobservable inputs, such as proxy commodity prices or historical settlements to forecast forward prices. In
addition, in certain instances, there may not be third party data readily available, which requires the use of unobservable inputs. Similarly, in
certain instances, the spread that reflects the credit or nonperformance risk is unobservable. The fair value hierarchy of an asset or a liability is
based on the level of significance of the input assumptions. An input assumption is considered significant if it affects the fair value by at least
10%. Assets and liabilities are transferred to Level 3 when the use of unobservable inputs becomes significant. Similarly, when the use of
unobservable input becomes insignificant for Level 3 assets and liabilities, they are transferred to Level 2. Transfers in and out of Level 3 are
from and to Level 2 and are determined as of the end of the reporting period.

The only Level 1 derivative instruments as of December 31, 2011 are exchange-traded commodity futures for which the pricing is observable in
active markets, and as such these are not expected to transfer to other levels.
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Nonfinancial Assets and Liabilities

For nonrecurring measurements derived using the income approach, fair value is determined using valuation models based on the principles of
discounted cash flows (�DCF�). The income approach is most often used in the impairment evaluation of long-lived tangible assets, goodwill and
intangible assets. The Company has developed internal valuation models for such valuations; however, an independent valuation firm may be
engaged in certain situations. In such situations, the independent valuation firm largely uses DCF valuation models as the primary measure of
fair value though other valuation approaches are also considered. A few examples of input assumptions to such valuations include
macroeconomic factors such as growth rates, industry demand, inflation, exchange rates and power and commodity prices. Whenever possible,
the Company attempts to obtain market observable data to develop input assumptions. Where the use of market observable data is limited or not
possible for certain input assumptions, the Company develops its own estimates using a variety of techniques such as regression analysis and
extrapolations.

For nonrecurring measurements derived using the market approach, recent market transactions involving the sale of identical or similar assets
are considered. The use of this approach is limited because it is often difficult to find sale transactions of identical or similar assets. This
approach is used in the impairment evaluations of certain intangible assets. Otherwise, it is used to corroborate the fair value determined under
the income approach.

For nonrecurring measurements derived using the cost approach, fair value is typically determined using the replacement cost approach. Under
this approach, the depreciated replacement cost of assets is determined by first determining the current replacement cost of assets and then
applying the remaining useful life percentages to such cost. Further adjustments for economic and functional obsolescence are made to the
depreciated replacement cost. This approach involves a considerable amount of judgment, which is why its use is limited to the measurement of
a few long-lived tangible assets. Like the market approach, this approach is also used to corroborate the fair value determined under the income
approach.

Fair Value Considerations:

In determining fair value, the Company considers the source of observable market data inputs, liquidity of the instrument, the credit risk of the
counterparty and the risk of the Company�s or its counterparty�s nonperformance. The conditions and criteria used to assess these factors are:

Sources of market assumptions

The Company derives most of its market assumptions from market efficient data sources (e.g., Bloomberg, Reuters, and Platt�s). To determine
fair value, where market data is not readily available, management uses comparable market sources and empirical evidence to develop its own
estimates of market assumptions.

Market liquidity

The Company evaluates market liquidity based on whether the financial or physical instrument, or the underlying asset, is traded in an active or
inactive market. An active market exists if the prices are fully transparent to market participants, can be measured by market bid and ask quotes,
the market has a relatively large proportion of trading volume as compared to the Company�s current trading volume and the market has a
significant number of market participants that will allow the market to rapidly absorb the quantity of the assets
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traded without significantly affecting the market price. Another factor the Company considers when determining whether a market is active or
inactive is the presence of government or regulatory controls over pricing that could make it difficult to establish a market based price when
entering into a transaction.

Nonperformance risk

Nonperformance risk refers to the risk that the obligation will not be fulfilled and affects the value at which a liability is transferred or an asset is
sold. Nonperformance risk includes, but may not be limited to, the Company or counterparty�s credit and settlement risk. Nonperformance risk
adjustments are dependent on credit spreads, letters of credit, collateral, other arrangements available and the nature of master netting
arrangements. The Company and its subsidiaries are parties to various interest rate swaps and options; foreign currency options and forwards;
and derivatives and embedded derivatives which subject the Company to nonperformance risk. The financial and physical instruments held at
the subsidiary level are generally non-recourse to the Parent Company.

Nonperformance risk on the investments held by the Company is incorporated in the fair value derived from quoted market data to mark the
investments to fair value.

The Company adjusts for nonperformance or credit risk on its derivative instruments by deducting a credit valuation adjustment (�CVA�). The
CVA is based on the margin or debt spread of the Company�s subsidiary or counterparty and the tenor of the respective derivative instrument.
The counterparty for a derivative asset position is considered to be the bank or government sponsored banking entity or counterparty to the PPA
or commodity contract. The CVA for asset positions is based on the counterparty�s credit ratings and debt spreads or, in the absence of readily
obtainable credit information, the respective country debt spreads are used as a proxy. The CVA for liability positions is based on the Parent
Company�s or the subsidiary�s current debt spread, the margin on indicative financing arrangements, or in the absence of readily obtainable credit
information, the respective country debt spreads are used as a proxy. All derivative instruments are analyzed individually and are subject to
unique risk exposures.
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Recurring Measurements

The following table sets forth, by level within the fair value hierarchy, the Company�s financial assets and liabilities that were measured at fair
value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. Financial assets and liabilities have been classified in their entirety based on the
lowest level of input that is significant to the fair value measurement. The Company�s assessment of the significance of a particular input to the
fair value measurement requires judgment, and may affect the determination of the fair value of the assets and liabilities and their placement
within the fair value hierarchy levels.

Quoted Market
Prices in Active

Market
for

Identical Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Total
December 31,

2011
(in millions)

Assets
Available-for-sale securities $ 1 $ 1,339 $ �  $ 1,340
Trading securities 12 �  �  12
Derivatives 2 52 66 120

Total assets $ 15 $ 1,391 $ 66 $ 1,472

Liabilities
Derivatives $ �  $ 476 $ 214 $ 690

Total liabilities $ �  $ 476 $ 214 $ 690

Quoted
Market
Prices
in

Active
Market
for

Identical
Assets
(Level
1)

Significant
Other

Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable

Inputs
(Level 3)

Total
December

31,
2010

(in millions)
Assets
Available-for-sale securities $ 8 $ 1,700 $ 42 $ 1,750
Trading securities 10 �  �  10
Derivatives �  58 61 119

Total assets $ 18 $ 1,758 $ 103 $ 1,879
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Liabilities
Derivatives $ �  $ 346 $ 12 $ 358

Total liabilities $ �  $ 346 $ 12 $ 358
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The following table presents a reconciliation of derivative assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010 (presented net by type of derivative):

Year Ended December 31, 2011
Interest
Rate

Cross
Currency

Foreign
Currency

Commodity
& Other Total

(in millions)
Balance at beginning of period $ (1) $ 10 $ 22 $ 18 $ 49
Total gains (losses) (realized and unrealized):
Included in earnings(1) �  (4) 32 (71) (43) 
Included in other comprehensive income (13) (37) �  �  (50) 
Included in regulatory assets �  �  �  8 8
Settlements �  13 (3) (8) 2
Transfers of assets (liabilities) into Level 3(2) (117) �  �  �  (117) 
Transfers of (assets) liabilities out of Level 3(2) 3 �  �  �  3

Balance at end of period $ (128) $ (18) $ 51 $ (53) $ (148) 

Total gains (losses) for the period included in earnings attributable to
the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to assets and liabilities
held at the end of the period $ �  $ (2) $ 29 $ (71) $ (44) 

Year Ended December 31, 2010
Interest
Rate

Cross
Currency

Foreign
Currency

Commodity
& Other Total

(in millions)
Balance at beginning of period $ (12) $ (12) $ �  $ 24 $ �  
Total gains (losses) (realized and unrealized):
Included in earnings(1) 1 4 25 21 51
Included in other comprehensive income (12) 13 �  �  1
Included in regulatory assets (3) �  �  1 (2) 
Settlements 7 5 (1) (28) (17) 
Transfers of assets (liabilities) into Level 3(2) �  �  (2) �  (2) 
Transfers of (assets) liabilities out of Level 3(2) 18 �  �  �  18

Balance at end of period $ (1) $ 10 $ 22 $ 18 $ 49

Total gains (losses) for the period included in earnings attributable
to the change in unrealized gains (losses) relating to assets and
liabilities held at the end of the period $ �  $ 7 $ 24 $ 9 $ 40
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(1) The gains (losses) included in earnings for these Level 3 derivatives are classified as follows: interest rate and cross currency derivatives as
interest expense, foreign currency derivatives as foreign currency transaction gains (losses) and commodity and other derivatives as either
non-regulated revenue, non-regulated cost of sales, or other expense. See Note 6�Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activities for further
information regarding the classification of gains and losses included in earnings in the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(2) Transfers in and out of Level 3 are determined as of the end of the reporting period and are from and to Level 2. The only Level 1
derivative instruments as of December 31, 2011 are exchange-traded commodity futures for which the pricing is observable in active
markets, and as such these are not expected to transfer to other levels. The (assets) liabilities transferred out of Level 3 are primarily the
result of a decrease in the
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significance of unobservable inputs used to calculate the credit valuation adjustments of these derivative instruments. Similarly, the assets
(liabilities) transferred into Level 3 are primarily the result of an increase in the significance of unobservable inputs used to calculate the
credit valuation adjustments of these derivative instruments.

The following table presents a reconciliation of available-for-sale securities measured at fair value on a recurring basis using significant
unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Year Ended December 31,

2011 2010
(in millions)

Balance at beginning of period(1) $ 42 $ 42
Settlements (42) �  

Balance at end of period $ �  $ 42

Total gains (losses) for the period included in earnings attributable to the change in unrealized gains/losses
relating to assets held at the end of the period $ �  $ �  

(1) Available-for-sale securities in Level 3 are variable rate demand notes which have failed remarketing and for which there are no longer
adequate observable inputs to measure the fair value.

Nonrecurring Measurements:

For purposes of impairment evaluation, the Company measured the fair value of long-lived assets and equity method investments under the fair
value measurement accounting guidance. To measure the amount of impairment, the Company compares the fair value of assets and liabilities at
the evaluation date to the carrying amount at the end of the month prior to the evaluation date. The following table summarizes major categories
of assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurring basis during the period and their level within the fair value hierarchy:

Year Ended December 31, 2011
Carrying
Amount

Fair Value Gross
(Gain) LossLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3

(in millions)
Long-lived assets held and used:
Wind turbines and deposits $ 161 $ �  $ 45 $ �  $ 116
Tisza II 94 �  �  42 52
Kelanitissa 66 �  �  24 42
Bohemia 14 �  5 �  9
Discontinued operations and businesses held for sale:
Edelap, Edes and Central Dique 350 �  4 �  346
Carbon reduction projects 49 �  �  �  40(1)

Wind projects 22 �  �  �  22
Borsod(2) (9) �  �  �  �  
Eastern Energy(2) (123) �  �  �  �  
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Thames(2) (7) �  �  �  �  
Brazil Telecom businesses 142 �  893 �  (751) 
Equity method affiliates:
Yangcheng 100 �  �  26 74
Goodwill:
Chigen 17 �  �  �  17
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Year Ended December 31, 2010

Carrying
Amount

Fair Value Gross

(Gain) LossLevel 1 Level 2 Level 3
(in millions)

Long-lived assets held and used:
Southland (Huntington Beach) $ 288 $ �  $ �  $ 88 $ 200
Tisza II 160 �  �  75 85
Deepwater 83 �  �  4 79
Discontinued operations and businesses held for sale:
Eastern Energy 827 �  �  �  827
Barka 20 �  124 �  (104) 
Ras Laffan 120 �  226 �  (106) 
Goodwill:
Deepwater 18 �  �  �  18
Other 3 �  �  �  3

(1) The carrying amounts and fair value of the asset groups also include other assets and liabilities; however, impairment expense recognized
was limited to the carrying amounts of long-lived assets.

(2) The businesses, currently in liquidation/bankruptcy proceedings, had negative carrying amounts at the measurement date. Related gains on
deconsolidation have been deferred pending the resolution of bankruptcy protection/liquidation proceedings.

Long-lived Assets Held and Used

Wind Turbines and Deposits�During the third quarter of 2011, the Company determined that certain wind turbines and deposits held by our
Wind Generation business were impaired. The long-lived assets with a carrying amount of $161 million were written down to their estimated
fair value of $45 million under the market approach. This resulted in the recognition of asset impairment expense of $116 million for the year
ended December 31, 2011.

Tisza II�In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company determined there were impairment indicators for the long-lived assets at Tisza II, our
gas-fired generation plant in Hungary. The asset group had a carrying amount of $94 million and was written down to its estimated fair value of
$42 million resulting in the recognition of asset impairment expense of $52 million.

Kelanitissa�In 2011, the Company determined the long-lived assets at Kelanitissa, our diesel-fired plant in Sri Lanka, were impaired. The
long-lived assets with a carrying amount of $66 million were written down to their estimated fair value of $24 million based on a discounted
cash flow analysis. This resulted in the recognition of asset impairment expense of $42 million for the year ended December 31, 2011.

For further discussion of these impairments, see Note 20�Impairment Expense.

Discontinued Operations and Held for Sale Businesses

Edelap, Edes and Central Dique�During the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company sold its ownership interest in two distribution companies
Empresa Distribuidora La Plata S.A. (�Edelap�), Empresa Distribuidora de Energia Sur S.A. (�Edes�) and a 68 MW generation plant, Central Dique
S.A. (collectively, �Argentina distribution businesses�) in Argentina. These businesses had a carrying amount of $350 million, which was written
down to the net sale price of $4 million resulting in a loss on disposal of $346 million.
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Carbon Reduction Projects�In 2011, the Company determined that it would sell its interest in carbon reduction projects, our emission reduction
credit projects in Asia and Latin America. The long-lived asset groups with an aggregate carrying amount of $49 million were written down to
their estimated fair value of $5 million based on discounted cash flows analysis.

Wind Projects�In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company determined that it would not pursue certain wind development projects in Poland and
the U.K. The operating results of these projects have been presented as discontinued operations as they met the applicable criteria for reporting
discontinued operations. The intangible assets, primarily project development rights, with an aggregate carrying amount of $22 million were
fully written off based on discounted cash flows analysis.

Eastern Energy, Thames and Borsod�In 2011, these businesses filed for bankruptcy protection and/or liquidation. As of December 31, 2011,
they were accounted for as cost method investments with the prior period operating results presented as discontinued operations. Gains resulting
from their deconsolidation have been deferred pending the finalization of liquidation/bankruptcy proceedings. See Note 1�General and Summary
of Significant Accounting Policies, Principles of Consolidation for further information.

Brazil Telecom Businesses�In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company completed the sale of its ownership interest in two telecommunication
businesses in Brazil. The businesses had a carrying amount of $142 million and were sold for $893 million (net of selling costs) resulting in a
gain of $751 million before income tax and noncontrolling interests.

For further discussion, see Note 22�Discontinued Operations and Held for Sale Businesses.

Equity Method Affiliate

Yangcheng International Power Generating Co. Ltd. (�Yangcheng�)�During the third quarter of 2011, the Company determined that the carrying
amount of Yangcheng, a 2,100 MW venture in China in which AES owns a 25% interest, had incurred an other-than-temporary impairment.
Yangcheng�s carrying amount of $100 million was written down to its estimated fair value of $26 million determined under the income approach,
resulting in the recognition of other non-operating expense of $74 million for the year ended December 31, 2011. See Note 7�Investments In and
Advances to Affiliates and Note 8�Other Non-Operating Expense for further information.

Goodwill

During the third quarter of 2011, the Company determined there were impairment indicators for the goodwill at Chigen, our holding company in
China that holds AES� interests in Chinese ventures, including its investment in Yangcheng. Goodwill of $17 million was written down to its
implied fair value of zero during an interim impairment evaluation, resulting in the recognition of goodwill impairment of $17 million for the
year ended December 31, 2011.

For further discussion, see Note 9�Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.

Long-lived Assets Held and Used

Tisza II and Southland (Huntington Beach). During the third quarter of 2010, the Company determined there were impairment indicators for the
long-lived assets at Tisza II, our gas-fired generation plant in Hungary, and Southland, our gas-fired generation plants in California. These
long-lived assets had carrying amounts of $160
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million and $288 million, respectively, and were written down to their fair value of $75 million and $88 million, respectively. These resulted in
the recognition of asset impairment expense of $85 million and $200 million, respectively, during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Deepwater. In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company determined there were impairment indicators for the long-lived assets at Deepwater, our
pet-coke-fired generation facility in Texas. These long-lived assets had a carrying amount of $83 million and were written down to their fair
value of $4 million. This resulted in the recognition of asset impairment expense of $79 million.

For further discussion of these impairments, see Note 20�Impairment Expense.

Discontinued Operations and Held for Sale Businesses

In the fourth quarter of 2010, the Company determined there were impairment indicators for the long-lived assets at Eastern Energy. These
long-lived assets had a carrying amount of $827 million and were considered fully impaired. As a result, an impairment loss of $827 million was
recognized, which is included in Income from operations of discontinued businesses in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.

The Company determined the fair value of nonfinancial assets and liabilities of our held for sale businesses during the year ended December 31,
2010. These businesses included Barka in Oman, Ras Laffan in Qatar, and Eastern Energy, our coal-fired generation plants in New York.

For further discussion, see Note 22�Discontinued Operations and Held for Sale Businesses.

Goodwill

During the third quarter of 2010, the Company determined there were impairment indicators for the long-lived assets and goodwill at Deepwater,
our pet coke-fired generation plant in Texas. Goodwill with an aggregate carrying amount of $18 million was written down to its implied fair
value of zero, resulting in the recognition of goodwill impairment of $18 million for the year ended December 31, 2010.

For further discussion, see Note 9�Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets.
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5. INVESTMENTS IN MARKETABLE SECURITIES

The following table sets forth the Company�s investments in marketable debt and equity securities classified as trading and available-for-sale as
of December 31, 2011 and 2010 by type of investment and by level within the fair value hierarchy. The security types are determined based on
the nature and risk of the security and are consistent with how the Company manages, monitors and measures its securities.

December 31,
2011 2010

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
(in millions)

AVAILABLE-FOR-SALE:(1)

Debt securities:
Unsecured debentures(2) $ �  $ 665 $ �  $ 665 $ �  $ 719 $ �  $ 719
Certificates of deposit(2) �  576 �  576 �  873 �  873
Government debt securities �  31 �  31 �  47 �  47
Other �  �  �  �  �  �  42 42

Subtotal �  1,272 �  1,272 �  1,639 42 1,681
Equity securities:
Mutual funds �  67 �  67 1 61 �  62
Common stock 1 �  �  1 7 �  �  7

Subtotal 1 67 �  68 8 61 �  69

Total available-for-sale 1 1,339 �  1,340 8 1,700 42 1,750

TRADING:
Equity securities:
Mutual funds 12 �  �  12 10 �  �  10

Total trading 12 �  �  12 10 �  �  10

TOTAL $ 13 $ 1,339 $ �  $ 1,352 $ 18 $ 1,700 $ 42 $ 1,760

Held-to-maturity securities 4 �  

Total marketable securities $ 1,356 $ 1,760

(1) Amortized cost approximated fair value at December 31, 2011 and 2010, with the exception of certain common stock investments with a
cost basis of $4 million and $6 million carried at their fair value of $1 million and $7 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
In 2011, the Company recognized an other than temporary impairment of $3 million in net income on these investments.

(2)
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Unsecured debentures are instruments similar to certificates of deposit that are held primarily by our subsidiaries in Brazil. The unsecured
debentures and certificates of deposit included here do not qualify as cash equivalents and meet the definition of a security under the
relevant guidance and are therefore classified as available-for-sale securities.

As of December 31, 2011, all available-for-sale debt securities had stated maturities less than one year. As of December 31, 2010, all
available-for-sale debt securities had stated maturities less than one year with the exception of $42 million of securities, primarily variable rate
demand notes, held by IPL, a subsidiary of the Company in Indiana. These securities, classified as other debt securities in the table above, had
stated maturities of greater than ten years, and were called at par during 2011.
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The following table summarizes the pre-tax gains and losses related to available-for-sale securities for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009. As noted above, the Company recognized an other than temporary impairment of $3 million in 2011. There was no
other-than-temporary impairment of marketable securities recognized in earnings or other comprehensive income for the years ended
December 31, 2010 or 2009.

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Gains included in earnings that relate to trading securities held at the reporting date $ 1 $ �  $ 1
Unrealized gains (losses) on available-for-sale securities included in other comprehensive income 2 2 10
Gains reclassified out of other comprehensive income into earnings �  �  2
Proceeds from sales of available-for-sale securities 6,119 5,852 4,440
Gross realized gains on sales 3 2 3
6. DERIVATIVE INSTRUMENTS AND HEDGING ACTIVITIES

Risk Management Objectives

The Company is exposed to market risks associated with its enterprise-wide business activities, namely the purchase and sale of fuel and
electricity as well as foreign currency risk and interest rate risk. In order to manage the market risks associated with these business activities, we
enter into contracts that incorporate derivatives and financial instruments, including forwards, futures, options, swaps or combinations thereof, as
appropriate. The Company generally applies hedge accounting to contracts as long as they are eligible under the accounting standards for
derivatives and hedging. While derivative transactions are not entered into for trading purposes, some contracts are not eligible for hedge
accounting.

Interest Rate Risk

AES and its subsidiaries generally utilize variable rate debt financing for construction projects and operations, resulting in an exposure to
interest rate risk. Interest rate swap, lock, cap and floor agreements are entered into to manage interest rate risk by effectively fixing or limiting
the interest rate exposure on the underlying financing. These interest rate contracts range in maturity through 2043, and are typically designated
as cash flow hedges. The following table sets forth, by underlying type of interest rate index, the Company�s current outstanding and maximum
outstanding notional under its interest rate derivative instruments, the weighted average remaining term and the percentage of variable-rate debt
hedged that is based on the related index as of December 31, 2011 regardless of whether the derivative instruments are in qualifying cash flow
hedging relationships:

December 31, 2011

Current Maximum(1)

Interest Rate Derivatives
Derivative
Notional

Derivative
Notional
Translated
to USD

Derivative
Notional

Derivative
Notional
Translated
to USD

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Term(1)

% of 
Debt

Currently
Hedged

by Index(2)
(in millions) (in years)

LIBOR (U.S. Dollar) 3,628 $ 3,628 4,697 $ 4,697 11 67% 
EURIBOR (Euro) 673 872 673 872 11 63% 
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LIBOR (British Pound Sterling) 58 90 82 128 13 87% 
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(1) The Company�s interest rate derivative instruments primarily include accreting and amortizing notionals. The maximum derivative notional
represents the largest notional at any point between December 31, 2011 and the maturity of the derivative instrument, which includes
forward starting derivative instruments. The weighted average remaining term represents the remaining tenor of our interest rate
derivatives weighted by the corresponding maximum notional.

(2) Excludes forecasted issuances of debt and variable-rate debt tied to other indices where the Company has no interest rate derivatives.
Cross currency swaps are utilized in certain instances to manage the risk related to fluctuations in both interest rates and certain foreign
currencies. These cross currency contracts range in maturity through 2028. The following table sets forth, by type of foreign currency
denomination, the Company�s outstanding notional amount under its cross currency derivative instruments as of December 31, 2011 which are all
in qualifying cash flow hedge relationships. These swaps are amortizing and therefore the notional amount represents the maximum outstanding
notional amount as of December 31, 2011:

December 31, 2011

Cross Currency Swaps Notional

Notional
Translated
to USD

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Term(1)

% of Debt
Currently
Hedged

by Index(2)
(in millions) (in years)

Chilean Unidad de Fomento (CLF) 6 $ 240 14 85% 

(1) Represents the remaining tenor of our cross currency swaps weighted by the corresponding notional.
(2) Represents the proportion of foreign currency denominated debt hedged by the same foreign currency denominated notional of the cross

currency swap.
Foreign Currency Risk

We are exposed to foreign currency risk as a result of our investments in foreign subsidiaries and affiliates. AES operates businesses in many
foreign countries and such operations in foreign countries may be impacted by significant fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates.
Foreign currency options and forwards are utilized, where deemed appropriate, to manage the risk related to fluctuations in certain foreign
currencies. These foreign currency contracts range in maturity through 2015. The following tables set forth, by type of foreign currency
denomination, the Company�s outstanding notional amounts over the remaining terms of its foreign currency derivative instruments as of
December 31, 2011 regardless of whether the derivative instruments are in qualifying hedging relationships:

December 31, 2011

Foreign Currency Options Notional(1)

Notional
Translated
to USD(1)

Probability
Adjusted
Notional(2)

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Term(3)

(in millions)
(in

years)
Euro (EUR) 38 $ 54 $ 52 <1
Brazilian Real (BRL) 86 52 49 <1
British Pound (GBP) 27 44 35 <1
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Philippine Peso (PHP) 414 10 7 <1

(1) Represents contractual notionals at inception of trade.
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(2) Represents the gross notional amounts times the probability of exercising the option, which is based on the relationship of changes in
the option value with respect to changes in the price of the underlying currency.

(3) Represents the remaining tenor of our foreign currency options weighted by the corresponding notional.

December 31, 2011

Foreign Currency Forwards Notional

Notional
Translated
to USD

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Term(1)

(in millions) (in years)
Euro (EUR) 113 $ 154 2
Chilean Peso (CLP) 72,169 145 <1
British Pound (GBP) 11 16 <1
Argentine Peso (ARS) 61 13 <1
Colombian Peso (COP) 23,993 13 <1
Hungarian Forint (HUF) 1,236 5 <1

(1) Represents the remaining tenor of our foreign currency forwards weighted by the corresponding notional.
In addition, certain of our subsidiaries have entered into contracts which contain embedded derivatives that require separate valuation and
accounting due to the fact that the item being purchased or sold is denominated in a currency other than the functional currency of that
subsidiary or the currency of the item. These contracts range in maturity through 2025. The following table sets forth, by type of foreign
currency denomination, the Company�s outstanding notional over the remaining terms of its foreign currency embedded derivative instruments as
of December 31, 2011:

December 31, 2011

Embedded Foreign Currency Derivatives Notional

Notional
Translated
to USD

Weighted
Average
Remaining
Term(1)

(in millions) (in years)
Philippine Peso (PHP) 13,692 $ 312 2
Argentine Peso (ARS) 938 218 11
Kazakhstani Tenge (KZT) 29,635 200 8
Euro (EUR) 3 3 9

(1) Represents the remaining tenor of our foreign currency embedded derivatives weighted by the corresponding notional.
Commodity Price Risk

We are exposed to the impact of market fluctuations in the price of electricity, fuel and environmental credits. Although we primarily consist of
businesses with long-term contracts or retail sales concessions (which provide our distribution businesses with a franchise to serve a specific
geographic region), a portion of our current and expected future revenues are derived from businesses without significant long-term purchase or
sales contracts. These businesses subject our results of operations to the volatility of prices for electricity, fuel and environmental credits in
competitive markets. We have used a hedging strategy, where appropriate, to hedge our financial performance against the effects of fluctuations
in energy commodity prices.
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The PPAs and fuel supply agreements entered into by the Company are evaluated to determine if they meet the definition of a derivative or
contain embedded derivatives, either of which require separate valuation and accounting. To be a derivative under the accounting standards for
derivatives and hedging, an agreement would need to have a notional and an underlying, require little or no initial net investment and could be
net settled. Generally, these agreements do not meet the definition of a derivative, often due to the inability to be net settled. On a quarterly
basis, we evaluate the markets for the commodities to be delivered under these agreements to determine if facts and circumstances have changed
such that the agreements could then be net settled and meet the definition of a derivative.

Nonetheless, certain of the PPAs and fuel supply agreements entered into by certain of the Company�s subsidiaries are derivatives or contain
embedded derivatives requiring separate valuation and accounting. These agreements range in maturity through 2024. The following table sets
forth by type of commodity the Company�s outstanding notionals for the remaining term of its commodity derivative and embedded derivative
instruments as of December 31, 2011:

December 31, 2011

Commodity Derivatives Notional

Weighted

Average

Remaining
Term(1)

(in millions) (in years)
Natural gas (MMBtu) 31 12
Petcoke (Metric tons) 13 12
Aluminum (MWh) 16(2) 8
Heating Oil (Gallons) 3 1
Coal (Metric tons) 4 3

(1) Represents the remaining tenor of our commodity and embedded derivatives weighted by the corresponding volume.
(2) Sonel�s PPA with its primary offtaker, an aluminum smelter, contains an embedded derivative which reflects the linkage

of our energy contract pricing, in part, to the price of aluminum as quoted on the London Metals Exchange, a global
metals exchange (as required by contract). The linkage between the contract price of power based on forecasted forward
aluminum price curves and the Cameroon market price for power provides for economic alignment between Sonel�s
financial results under the PPA and the offtaker�s financial performance. However, to the extent there are fluctuations in
the price of aluminum as compared to the market price for power under our PPA, we may be exposed to significant
swings in earnings through mark-to-market adjustments of the embedded derivative as the market price for aluminum
has proven to be volatile.
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Accounting and Reporting

The following table sets forth the Company�s derivative instruments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 by type of derivative and by level within
the fair value hierarchy. Derivative assets and liabilities are recognized at their fair value. Derivative assets and liabilities are combined with
other balances and included in the following captions in our Consolidated Balance Sheets: current derivative assets in other current assets,
noncurrent derivative assets in other noncurrent assets, current derivative liabilities in accrued and other liabilities and long-term derivative
liabilities in other long-term liabilities.

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(in millions) (in millions)
Assets
Current assets:
Foreign currency derivatives $ �  $ 24 $ 4 $ 28 $ �  $ 3 $ 3 $ 6
Commodity and other derivatives 2 16 3 21 �  2 3 5

Total current assets 2 40 7 49 �  5 6 11

Noncurrent assets:
Interest rate derivatives �  �  �  �  �  49 �  49
Cross currency derivatives �  �  1 1 �  �  12 12
Foreign currency derivatives �  3 58 61 �  �  27 27
Commodity and other derivatives �  9 �  9 �  4 16 20

Total noncurrent assets �  12 59 71 �  53 55 108

Total assets $ 2 $ 52 $ 66 $ 120 $ �  $ 58 $ 61 $ 119

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Interest rate derivatives $ �  $ 97 $ 22 $ 119 $ �  $ 118 $ �  $ 118
Cross currency derivatives �  �  5 5 �  �  2 2
Foreign currency derivatives �  5 1 6 �  13 �  13
Commodity and other derivatives �  17 6 23 �  �  �  �  

Total current liabilities �  119 34 153 �  131 2 133

Long-term liabilities:
Interest rate derivatives �  334 106 440 �  200 1 201
Cross currency derivatives �  �  14 14 �  �  �  �  
Foreign currency derivatives �  10 10 20 �  15 8 23
Commodity and other derivatives �  13 50 63 �  �  1 1

Total long-term liabilities �  357 180 537 �  215 10 225
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Total liabilities $ �  $ 476 $ 214 $ 690 $ �  $ 346 $ 12 $ 358
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The following table sets forth the fair value and balance sheet classification of derivative instruments as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Designated

as
Hedging

Instruments

Not Designated
as Hedging
Instruments Total

Designated
as

Hedging
Instruments

Not Designated
as Hedging
Instruments Total

(in millions) (in millions)
Assets
Current assets:
Foreign currency derivatives $ 10 $ 18 $ 28 $ �  $ 6 $ 6
Commodity and other derivatives 2 19 21 �  5 5

Total current assets 12 37 49 �  11 11

Noncurrent assets:
Interest rate derivatives �  �  �  49 �  49
Cross currency derivatives 1 �  1 12 �  12
Foreign currency derivatives 3 58 61 �  27 27
Commodity and other derivatives �  9 9 �  20 20

Total noncurrent assets 4 67 71 61 47 108

Total assets $ 16 $ 104 $ 120 $ 61 $ 58 $ 119

Liabilities
Current liabilities:
Interest rate derivatives $ 110 $ 9 $ 119 $ 107 $ 11 $ 118
Cross currency derivatives 5 �  5 2 �  2
Foreign currency derivatives 1 5 6 8 5 13
Commodity and other derivatives �  23 23 �  �  �  

Total current liabilities 116 37 153 117 16 133

Long-term liabilities:
Interest rate derivatives 425 15 440 186 15 201
Cross currency derivatives 14 �  14 �  �  �  
Foreign currency derivatives �  20 20 �  23 23
Commodity and other derivatives 3 60 63 �  1 1

Total long-term liabilities 442 95 537 186 39 225

Total liabilities $ 558 $ 132 $ 690 $ 303 $ 55 $ 358
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The Company has elected not to offset net derivative positions in the financial statements. Accordingly, the Company does not offset such
derivative positions against the fair value of amounts (or amounts that approximate fair value) recognized for the right to reclaim cash collateral
(a receivable) or the obligation to return cash collateral (a payable) under master netting arrangements. At December 31, 2011 and 2010, we held
$3 million and $0 million, respectively, of cash collateral that we received from counterparties to our derivative positions. Beyond the cash
collateral held by us, our derivative assets are exposed to the credit risk of the respective counterparty and, due to this credit risk, the fair value
of our derivative assets (as shown in the above two tables) have been reduced by a credit valuation adjustment. Also, at December 31, 2011 and
2010, we had $16 million and $0 million, respectively, of cash collateral posted with (held by) counterparties to our derivative positions.
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The table below sets forth the pre-tax accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) expected to be recognized as an increase (decrease) to
income from continuing operations before income taxes over the next twelve months as of December 31, 2011 for the following types of
derivative instruments:

Accumulated 
Other

Comprehensive
Income
(Loss)(1)

(in millions)
Interest rate derivatives $ (101) 
Cross currency derivatives $ (1)  
Foreign currency derivatives $ 7
Commodity and other derivatives $ (1) 

(1) Excludes a loss of $94 million expected to be recognized as part of the sale of Cartagena, which closed on February 9,
2012, and is further discussed in Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions.

The balance in accumulated other comprehensive loss related to derivative transactions will be reclassified into earnings as interest expense is
recognized for interest rate hedges and cross currency swaps (except for the amount reclassified to foreign currency transaction gains and losses
to offset the remeasurement of the foreign currency-denominated debt being hedged by the cross currency swaps), as depreciation is recognized
for interest rate hedges during construction, as foreign currency transaction gains and losses are recognized for hedges of foreign currency
exposure, and as electricity sales and fuel purchases are recognized for hedges of forecasted electricity and fuel transactions. These balances are
included in the consolidated statements of cash flows as operating and/or investing activities based on the nature of the underlying transaction.

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, pre-tax gains (losses) of $0 million, $(1) million, and $0 million net of noncontrolling
interests, respectively, were reclassified into earnings as a result of the discontinuance of a cash flow hedge because it was probable that the
forecasted transaction would not occur by the end of the originally specified time period (as documented at the inception of the hedging
relationship) or within an additional two-month time period thereafter.
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The following table sets forth the pre-tax gains (losses) recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss (�AOCL�) and earnings related to the
effective portion of derivative instruments in qualifying cash flow hedging relationships, as defined in the accounting standards for derivatives
and hedging, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Gains (Losses)

Recognized in
AOCL

Consolidated

Statement of Operations

Gains (Losses)

Reclassified

from AOCL
into Earnings

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(in millions) (in millions)

Interest rate derivatives $ (475)(1) $ (243)(1) $ 49 Interest expense $ (125)(2) $ (108)(2) $ (72)(2)

Non-regulated cost of sales (3)  (2) �  
Net equity in earnings of
affiliates (4)  (1)  �  

Cross currency derivatives (36)  11 48 Interest expense (10)  (1)  2
Foreign currency transaction
gains (losses) (16)  25 43

Foreign currency derivatives
24 (9)  2

Foreign currency transaction
gains (losses) 1 (3)  �  

Commodity and other
derivatives �  (8)  120 Non-regulated revenue �  (3) �  (3) 3(3)

Non-regulated cost of sales (2)  �  �  

Total $ (487) $ (249) $ 219 $ (159) $ (90) $ (24) 

(1) Includes $(49) million and $(29) million related to Cartagena for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, which was
consolidated prospectively beginning January 1, 2010 under VIE accounting guidance.

(2) Includes amounts that were reclassified from AOCL related to derivative instruments that previously, but no longer, qualify for cash flow
hedge accounting. Excludes $0 million, $(113) million and $(35) million related to discontinued operations for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

(3) Excludes $0 million, $11 million and $190 million related to discontinued operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and
2009, respectively.

The following table sets forth the pre-tax gains (losses) recognized in earnings related to the ineffective portion of derivative instruments in
qualifying cash flow hedging relationships, as defined in the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging, for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009:

Classification in

Consolidated Statement of Operations

Gains (Losses)

Recognized in Earnings
  2011    2010    2009  

(in millions)
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Interest rate derivatives Interest expense $ (6) $ (15) $ (8) 
Net equity in earnings of affiliates (2)  �  (1) (1)  

Cross currency derivatives Interest expense (4)  5 (11)  
Foreign currency derivatives Foreign currency transaction gains

(losses) �  (1) �  (1) �  (1)

Total $ (12) $ (10) $ (20) 

205

Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 61



Table of Contents

THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

(1) De minimis amount.
The following table sets forth the pre-tax gains (losses) recognized in earnings related to derivative instruments not designated as hedging
instruments under the accounting standards for derivatives and hedging, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

Classification

in Consolidated

Statement of Operations

Gains (Losses)

Recognized in Earnings

    2011        2010        2009    
(in millions)

Interest rate derivatives Interest expense $ (4)  $ (9)  $ (26) 
Foreign currency derivatives Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) 57 (36)  (38)  

Net equity in earnings of affiliates �  (2)  �  
Commodity and other derivatives Non-regulated revenue (71)  21 1

Regulated revenue 1 �  �  
Non-regulated cost of sales (9)  5 (30)  
Regulated cost of sales (5)  �  �  

Total $ (31) $ (21) $ (93) 

In addition, DPL and IPL have derivative instruments for which the gains and losses are accounted for in accordance with accounting standards
for regulated operations, as regulatory assets or liabilities. Gains and losses due to changes in the fair value of these derivatives are probable of
recovery through future rates and are initially recognized as an adjustment to the regulatory asset or liability and recognized through earnings
when the related costs are recovered through rates. Therefore, these gains and losses are excluded from the above table. The following table sets
forth the change in regulatory assets and liabilities resulting from the change in the fair value of these derivatives for the years ended
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

2011 2010
(in millions)

(Increase) decrease in regulatory assets $ (5) $ (3) 
Increase (decrease) in regulatory liabilities $ 8 $ 1

Credit Risk-Related Contingent Features

Gener, our generation business in Chile, has cross currency swap agreements with counterparties to swap Chilean inflation indexed bonds issued
in December 2007 into U.S. Dollars. The derivative agreements contain credit contingent provisions which would permit the counterparties with
which Gener is in a net liability position to require collateral credit support when the fair value of the derivatives exceeds the unsecured
thresholds established in the agreements. These thresholds vary based on Gener�s credit rating. If Gener�s credit rating were to fall below the
minimum threshold established in the swap agreements, the counterparties can demand immediate collateralization of the entire mark-to-market
loss of the swaps (excluding credit valuation adjustments), which was $18 million at December 31, 2011. The mark-to-market value of the
swaps was in a net asset position at December 31, 2010. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, Gener had not posted collateral to support these
swaps.
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DPL, our utility in Ohio, has certain over-the-counter commodity derivative contracts under master netting agreements that contain provisions
that require its debt to maintain an investment-grade credit rating from credit
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rating agencies. If its debt were to fall below investment grade, the business would be in violation of these provisions, and the counterparties to
the derivative contracts could request immediate payment or demand immediate and ongoing full overnight collateralization of the
mark-to-market loss (excluding credit valuation adjustments), which was $28 million as of December 31, 2011. As of December 31, 2011, DPL
had posted $16 million of cash collateral directly with third parties and in a broker margin account and held $3 million of cash collateral that it
received from counterparties to its derivative instruments that were in an asset position.

7. INVESTMENTS IN AND ADVANCES TO AFFILIATES

The following table summarizes the relevant effective equity ownership interest and carrying values for the Company�s investments accounted
for under the equity method as of December 31, 2011 and 2010.

December 31,
Affiliate Country 2011 2010 2011 2010

Carrying Value Ownership Interest %
(in millions)

AES Solar Energy Ltd. Europe $ 225 $ 256 50% 50% 
AES Solar Power LLC United States 91 8 50% 50% 
AES Solar Power, PR, LLC Puerto Rico 8 �  50% 0% 
Barry(1) United Kingdom �  �  100% 100% 
CET(1) Brazil 14 22 72% 72% 
Chigen affiliates(2) China 30 146 25% 25% 
China Wind(3) China 75 69 49% 49% 
Elsta Netherlands 197 202 50% 50% 
Entek Turkey 121 �  50% 0% 
Guacolda Chile 186 149 35% 35% 
IC Ictas Energy Group Turkey 161 151 51% 51% 
InnoVent(1) France 32 31 40% 40% 
JHRH China 59 39 49% 35% 
OPGC India 203 224 49% 49% 
Trinidad Generation Unlimited(1) Trinidad 19 20 10% 10% 
Other affiliates 1 3

Total investments in and advances to affiliates $ 1,422 $ 1,320

(1) Represent VIEs in which the Company holds a variable interest, but is not the primary beneficiary.
(2) Represent our investments in Chengdu AES Kaihua Gas Turbine Company Ltd. and Yangcheng International Power Generating Co. Ltd.
(3) Represent our investments in Guohua AES (Huanghua) Wind Power Co. Ltd., Guohua AES (Hulunbeier) Wind Power Co. Ltd.,

Guohua AES (Chenba�-erhu) Wind Power Co. Ltd., and Guohua AES (Xinba�-erhu) Wind Power Co. Ltd.
AES Solar Energy Ltd.� In the fourth quarter of 2011, AES Solar Energy Ltd. (�AES Solar�), recognized a $40 million other-than-temporary
impairment of a cost method investment in a manufacturer of solar panels. The Company�s share of impairment was $20 million, which was
recorded within �Net equity in earnings of affiliates� in the Consolidated Statement of Operations.
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Energy Partners II, LP. This joint venture was created to develop and construct a 24 MW project in Guayama, Puerto Rico. The investment
balance at December 31, 2011 was $8 million.

AES Barry Ltd.�The Company holds a 100% ownership interest in AES Barry Ltd. (�Barry�), a dormant entity in the United Kingdom that
disposed of its generation and other operating assets. Due to a debt agreement, no material financial or operating decisions can be made without
the banks� consent, and the Company does not control Barry. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, other long-term liabilities included $52 million
and $53 million, respectively, related to this debt agreement.

Cayman Energy Trader (�CET�)�In 2010, the Company transferred its 14.8% voting interest in Companhia Energética de Minas Gerais (�CEMIG�),
an integrated utility in Brazil, through SEB, a Brazilian subsidiary, to a third party. The buyer also assumed a debt with Banco Nacional de
Desenvolvimento Econômico e Social (�BNDES�) in the amount of approximately $1.4 billion (the �BNDES Loan�) including all unpaid interest
and penalties. In exchange, SEB received $25 million and obtained a full release from any claims of BNDES and originating from the BNDES
Loan. CEMIG was previously accounted for as an equity method investment due to the Company�s representation on its board of directors. The
transfer resulted in the recognition of a $115 million pre-tax gain reflected in �Net equity in earnings of affiliates� in the Consolidated Statement of
Operations for the year ended December 31, 2010. Additionally, $70 million of net tax expense resulting from the CEMIG transfer was recorded
as �income tax expense,� rather than equity earnings, since the expense is attributable to a consolidated corporate level partner in the CEMIG
investment. The Company retains its ownership in CET.

Chigen affiliates�In 2011, the Company recognized an other-than-temporary impairment of $74 million on Yangcheng, an equity method
investment in China. See Note 8�Other Non-Operating Expense for further information.

Entek� In February 2011, the Company acquired a 49.6% interest in Entek Elektrik Uretim A.S. (�Entek�) for approximately $136 million.
Additional purchase consideration of $13 million was paid in May 2011, increasing the total purchase consideration to $149 million. Entek owns
and operates two gas-fired generation facilities in Turkey with an aggregate capacity of 312 MW and is also engaged in an energy trading
business. The Company has significant influence, but not control, of Entek and, accordingly, the investment has been accounted for under the
equity method of accounting.

Jianghe Rural Electrification Development Co., LTD (�JHRH�)�On June 3, 2010, the Company acquired a 35% ownership in this joint venture
which operates seven hydro plants in China. In April 2011, the Company acquired an additional 14% ownership for $15 million, increasing its
total ownership to 49%.

Trinidad Generation Unlimited (�TGU�)�Although the Company�s ownership in TGU is 10%, the Company accounts for the investment as an
equity method investment due to the Company�s ability to exercise significant influence through the supermajority vote requirement for any
significant future project development activities. TGU had four gas turbines commence commercial operations in 2011.
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Summarized Financial Information

The following tables summarize financial information of the Company�s 50%-or-less owned affiliates and majority-owned unconsolidated
subsidiaries that are accounted for using the equity method.

50%-or-less Owned Affiliates
Majority-Owned

Unconsolidated  Subsidiaries
Years ended December 31, 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010     2009    

(in millions) (in millions)
Revenue $ 1,668 $ 1,341 $ 1,229 $ 24 $ 20 $ 158
Gross margin 258 207 240 24 18 71
Net income (loss) (5) 100 110 (5) 7 (5) 

December 31, 2011 2010 2011 2010
(in millions) (in millions)

Current assets $ 1,182 $ 948 $ 58 $ 114
Noncurrent assets 4,298 4,131 519 646
Current liabilities 899 687 109 144
Noncurrent liabilities 1,720 1,597 269 242
Noncontrolling interests (240) (206) �  125
Stockholders� equity 3,101 3,001 199 249
At December 31, 2011, retained earnings included $136 million related to the undistributed earnings of the Company�s 50%-or-less owned
affiliates. Distributions received from these affiliates were $36 million, $49 million and $35 million for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009, respectively. As of December 31, 2011, the aggregate carrying amount of our investments in equity affiliates exceeded the
underlying equity in their net assets by $145 million.

Refer to Item 1 of this Form 10-K for additional information on these affiliates.

8. OTHER NON-OPERATING EXPENSE

Other non-operating expense of $82 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 primarily consisted of other-than-temporary impairments of
equity method investments in China. During the third quarter of 2011 as part of the quarterly close process, the Company evaluated its
investment in Yangcheng, a 2,100 MW coal-fired plant in China, for other-than-temporary-impairment. AES owns a 25% interest in Yangcheng
and the remaining equity interest in the venture is held by Chinese partners. During the nine months ended September 30, 2011, coal prices
continued an upward trend in China, thereby reducing the operating margin of coal generation facilities. During this time, there was no
corresponding increase in tariffs to compensate for higher coal prices. Power prices in China are tightly regulated by the national and provincial
governments, which often limit power generators� ability to pass through increases in fuel costs to customers. In addition, under the Yangcheng
venture agreement, AES will surrender its equity interest to the venture partners in 2016 without additional compensation. During the nine
months ended September 30, 2011, management continued to monitor the situation and in the third quarter determined that it was unlikely that
there would be a reversal in the trends in coal prices during the remaining term of the venture. Accordingly, in September 2011, management
revised downward its forecasts of earning and cash flows over the remaining term of the venture. The revised forecasts were significantly lower
than management�s earlier estimates such that the carrying amount of the investment in Yangcheng was considered to have incurred an
other-than-temporary-impairment. In determining the fair value of our investment, management used a discounted cash flow analysis based on
probability-weighted revised cash
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distribution forecasts under multiple scenarios. As of September 30, 2011, Yangcheng had a carrying amount of $100 million which was written
down to its estimated fair value of $26 million, and the difference was recognized as other non-operating expense.

Other non-operating expense of $7 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 primarily consisted of an other-than-temporary impairment of
an equity method investment. During the second quarter of 2010, AES decided to not pursue its investment in a project to generate
environmental offset credits and recognized the other-than-temporary impairment.

Other non-operating expense of $12 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 primarily consisted of impairment charges on a cost method
investment in a company developing a commercial facility for a �blue gas� (coal to gas) technology project.

9. GOODWILL AND OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS

The following table summarizes the changes in the carrying amount of goodwill, by segment for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010.

Latin
America 

-
Generation

Latin
America -
Utilities

North
America -
Generation

North
America -
Utilities

Europe -
Generation

Asia -
Generation

Corporate
and
Other Total

Balance as of December 31, 2009
Goodwill $ 926 $ 140 $ 111 $ �  $ 137 $ 78 $ 101 $ 1,493
Accumulated impairment losses (24) (7) (20) �  (137) �  (6) (194) 

Net balance 902 133 91 �  �  78 95 1,299
Impairment losses �  �  (18) �  �  �  (3) (21) 
Foreign currency translation and
other �  �  (10) �  �  3 �  (7) 
Balance as of December 31, 2010
Goodwill 926 140 101 �  137 81 101 1,486
Accumulated impairment losses (24) (7) (38) �  (137) �  (9) (215) 

Net balance 902 133 63 �  �  81 92 1,271
Impairment losses �  �  �  �  �  (17) �  (17) 
Goodwill acquired during the year(1) �  �  �  2,489 �  �  �  2,489
Foreign currency translation and
other �  �  (10) �  �  �  �  (10) 
Balance as of December 31, 2011
Goodwill 926 140 91 2,489 137 81 101 3,965
Accumulated impairment losses (24) (7) (38) �  (137) (17) (9) (232) 

Net balance $ 902 $ 133 $ 53 $ 2,489 $ �  $ 64 $ 92 $ 3,733
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(1) Represents goodwill resulting from the acquisition of DPL, which was allocated to the two newly established reporting units identified
within DPL. See Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions for further information.

During the third quarter of 2011, the Company identified higher coal prices and the resulting reduced operating margins in China as an
impairment indicator for the goodwill at Chigen, our wholly-owned subsidiary that holds equity interests in Chinese ventures and reported in the
Asia Generation segment. A significant downward revision of cash flow forecasts indicated that the fair value of Chigen reporting unit was
lower than its carrying amount. As of September 30, 2011, Chigen had goodwill of $17 million. The Company performed an interim impairment
evaluation of Chigen�s goodwill and determined that goodwill had no implied fair value. As a result, the entire carrying amount of $17 million
was recognized as goodwill impairment in the third quarter.

During the third quarter of 2010, Deepwater, our petcoke-fired merchant generation facility in Texas, reported in the North America Generation
segment, incurred a goodwill impairment of $18 million. The Company determined the adverse market conditions as an impairment indicator,
performed the two-step goodwill impairment test and recognized the entire $18 million carrying amount of goodwill as goodwill impairment in
the third quarter.

In 2009, Kilroot, our coal fired power plant in the United Kingdom, reported in the Europe Generation segment, incurred a goodwill impairment
of $118 million. Factors contributing to the impairment included: reduced profit expectations based on latest estimates of future commodity
prices and reduced expectations on the recovery of cash flows on the existing plant following the Company�s decision to forgo capital
expenditures to meet emission allowance requirements taking effect in 2024. Additionally, one of our subsidiaries located in the Ukraine and
reported within �Corporate and Other� incurred a goodwill impairment loss of $4 million.

The following tables summarize the balances comprising other intangible assets in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Gross
Balance

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Balance

Gross
Balance

Accumulated
Amortization

Net
Balance

(in millions) (in millions)
Subject to Amortization
Project development rights(1) $ 102 $ �  $ 102 $ 117 $ �  $ 117
Sales concessions 156 (92) 64 162 (89) 73
Contractual payment rights(2) 69 (13) 56 65 (4) 61
Land use rights 49 (4) 45 50 (2) 48
Management rights 39 (13) 26 66 (30) 36
Emission allowances(3) 18 �  18 8 �  8
Electric security plan 88 (9) 79 �  �  �  
Customer contracts 45 (3) 42 �  �  �  
Customer relationships 30 �  30 �  �  �  
Other(4) 71 (30) 41 70 (26) 44

Subtotal 667 (164) 503 538 (151) 387
Indefinite-Lived Intangible Assets
Land use rights 52 �  52 51 �  51
Emission allowances(5) 4 �  4 8 �  8
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Trademark/Trade name 5 �  5 �  �  �  
Other 2 �  2 2 �  2

Subtotal 63 �  63 61 �  61

Total $ 730 $ (164) $ 566 $ 599 $ (151) $ 448
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(1) Represent development rights, including but not limited to, land control, various permits and right to acquire equity interests in
development projects resulting from asset acquisitions by our Wind group. A portion of these development rights was recognized as a loss
on disposal of discontinued operations when certain development projects were abandoned during the fourth quarter of 2011. See Note
22�Discontinued Operations and Held for Sale Businesses for further information.

(2) Represent legal rights to receive system reliability payments from the regulator.
(3) Acquired or purchased emission allowances are expensed when utilized and included in net income for the year.
(4) Consists of various intangible assets including PPAs and transmission rights, none of which is individually significant.
(5) Represent perpetual emission allowances without an expiration date.
The following table summarizes, by category, intangible assets acquired during the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011

Amount

Subject to

Amortization/

Indefinite-Lived

Weighted

Average

Amortization
Period

Amortization
Method

(in
millions) (in years)

Electric security plan(2) $ 88 Subject to amortization 1 Straight line
Customer relationship(1)(3) 30 Subject to amortization 12 Straight line
Customer contracts(1)(4) 45 Subject to amortization 3 Other
Trademark/Trade name(1)(5) 5 Indefinite-lived N/A N/A
Other 4 Subject to amortization Various As utilized

Total $ 172

December 31, 2010

Amount

Subject to

Amortization/

Indefinite-Lived

Weighted

Average

Amortization
Period

Amortization
Method

(in millions) (in years)
Project development rights $ 141 Subject to amortization Various Straight line
Contractual payment rights 65 Subject to amortization 10 Straight line
Emission allowances 14 Subject to amortization Various As utilized
Land use rights 7 Indefinite-lived N/A N/A

Total $ 227
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(1) Represents intangible assets arising from the acquisition of DPL. See Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions for further information.
(2) Electric Security Plan is a rate plan for the supply and pricing of electric generation service applicable to Ohio�s electric utilities under

state law. It provides a level of price stability to consumers of electricity as compared to market-based electricity prices. The plan
was recognized as an intangible asset since the prices under the plan are higher than market prices charged by competitive retailers or
CRES.
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(3) Customer relationships represent the value assigned to customer information possessed by DPL in the preliminary purchase price
allocation, where DPL has regular contact with the customer, and the customer has the ability to make direct contact with DPL. See
Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions for further information.

(4) The amortization method used reflects the pattern in which the economic benefits of the intangible asset are consumed.
(5) Trademarks/Trade name represent the value assigned to trade name of DPLER, DPL�s subsidiary engaged in competitive retail

business in Ohio.
The following table summarizes the estimated amortization expense, broken down by intangible asset category, for 2012 through 2016:

Estimated amortization expense
2012 2013 2014 2015 2016

(in millions)
Contractual payment rights $ 9 $ 9 $ 9 $ 9 $ 3
Sales concessions 6 6 6 6 5
Customer relationships & contracts 35 11 4 3 3
Electric security plan 79 �  �  �  �  
All other 9 6 4 4 4

Total $ 138 $ 32 $ 23 $ 22 $ 15

Intangible asset amortization expense was $36 million, $14 million and $16 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009,
respectively.
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10. REGULATORY ASSETS & LIABILITIES

The Company has recorded regulatory assets and liabilities that it expects to pass through to its customers in accordance with, and subject to,
regulatory provisions as follows:

December 31,
2011 2010 Recovery Period
(in millions)

REGULATORY ASSETS
Current regulatory assets:
Brazil tariff recoveries:(1)

Energy purchases $ 79 $ 62 Over tariff reset period
Transmission costs, regulatory fees and other 185 82 Over tariff reset period
El Salvador tariff recoveries(2) 108 67 Over tariff reset period
Other(3) 19 1 Various

Total current regulatory assets 391 212

Noncurrent regulatory assets:
Defined benefit pension obligations at IPL and DPL(4)(5) 399 235 Various
Income taxes recoverable from customers(4)(6) 76 66 Various
Brazil tariff recoveries:(1)

Energy purchases 84 18 Over tariff reset period
Transmission costs, regulatory fees and other 86 32 Over tariff reset period
Deferred Midwest ISO costs(7) 80 80 To be determined
Other(3) 122 39 Various

Total noncurrent regulatory assets 847 470

TOTAL REGULATORY ASSETS $ 1,238 $ 682

REGULATORY LIABILITIES
Current regulatory liabilities:
Brazil tariff reset adjustment(8) $ 190 $ �  To be determined
Efficiency program costs(9) 29 58 Over tariff reset period
Brazil tariff recoveries:(1)

Energy purchases 305 118 Over tariff reset period
Transmission costs, regulatory fees and other 172 71 Over tariff reset period
Other(10) 37 37 Various

Total current regulatory liabilities 733 284

Noncurrent regulatory liabilities:
Asset retirement obligations(11) 649 509 Over life of assets
Brazil special obligations(12) 422 435 To be determined
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Brazil tariff recoveries:(1)

Energy purchases 76 69 Over tariff reset period
Transmission costs, regulatory fees and other 64 57 Over tariff reset period
Efficiency program costs(9) 44 54 Over tariff reset period
Other(10) 24 8 Various

Total noncurrent regulatory liabilities 1,279 1,132

TOTAL REGULATORY LIABILITIES $ 2,012 $ 1,416
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(1) Recoverable per National Electric Energy Agency (�ANEEL�) regulations through the Annual Tariff Adjustment (�IRT�). These costs are
generally non-controllable costs and primarily consist of purchased electricity, energy transmission costs and sector costs that are
considered volatile. These costs are recovered in 24 installments through the annual IRT process and are amortized over the tariff reset
period.

(2) Deferred fuel costs incurred by our El Salvador subsidiaries associated with purchase of energy from the El Salvador spot market and the
power generation plants. In El Salvador, the deferred fuel adjustment represents the variance between the actual fuel costs and the fuel
costs recovered in the tariffs. The variance is recovered semi-annually at the tariff reset period.

(3) Includes assets with and without a rate of return. Other current regulatory assets that did not earn a rate of return were $12 million and $0
million, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Other noncurrent regulatory assets that did not earn a rate of return were
$37 million and $14 million, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Other Current and Noncurrent Regulatory Assets primarily
consist of:

� Unamortized losses on long-term debt reacquired or redeemed in prior periods at IPL and DPL, which are amortized over the lives of
the original issues in accordance with the FERC and PUCO rules.

� Unamortized carrying charges and certain other costs related to Petersburg unit 4 at IPL.

� Deferred storm costs incurred to repair 2008 storm damage at DPL, which have been deferred until such time that DPL seeks
recovery in a future rate proceeding.

(4) Past expenditures on which the Company does not earn a rate of return.
(5) The regulatory accounting standards allow the defined pension and postretirement benefit obligation to be recorded as a regulatory asset

equal to the previously unrecognized actuarial gains and losses and prior service costs that are expected to be recovered through future
rates. Pension expense is recognized based on the plan�s actuarially determined pension liability. Recovery of costs is probable, but not yet
determined. Pension contributions made by our Brazilian subsidiaries are not included in regulatory assets as those contributions are not
covered by the established tariff in Brazil.

(6) Probable of recovery through future rates, based upon established regulatory practices, which permit the recovery of current taxes. This
amount is expected to be recovered, without interest, over the period as book-tax temporary differences reverse and become current taxes.

(7) Transmission service costs and other administrative costs from IPL�s participation in the Midwest ISO market, which are recoverable but
do not earn a rate of return. Recovery of costs is probable, but the timing is not yet determined.

(8) In July 2011, the Brazilian energy regulator (the �Regulator�) postponed the periodic review and reset of a component of Eletropaulo�s
regulated tariff, which determines the margin to be earned by Eletropaulo. The review and reset of this tariff component is performed
every four years. From July 2011 through December 2011, Eletropaulo continued to invoice customers under the existing tariff rate, as
required by the Regulator. Management believes that it is probable that the new tariff rate will be lower than the existing tariff rate,
resulting in future refunds to customers, and has estimated the amount of this liability. Accordingly, as of December 31, 2011, Eletropaulo
recognized a regulatory liability. It is at least reasonably possible that future events confirming the final amount of the regulatory liability
or a change in the estimated amount of the liability will occur in the near term as the periodic review and tariff reset process progresses
with the Regulator in 2012. The primary factor in the ongoing discussions between Eletropaulo and the Regulator that causes the estimate
to be sensitive to change is the regulatory asset base which will be used by the Regulator to determine the return included in the revised
tariff. The final amount of the regulatory liability may differ from the estimated amount recognized as of December 31, 2011.

(9) Payments received for costs expected to be incurred to improve the efficiency of our plants in Brazil that are refunded as part of the IRT.
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(10) Other Current and Noncurrent Regulatory Liabilities primarily consist of the cost incurred by electricity generators due to variance in
energy prices during rationing periods (�Free Energy�). Our Brazilian subsidiaries are authorized to recover or refund this cost associated
with monthly energy price variances between the wholesale energy market prices owed to the power generation plants producing Free
Energy and the capped price reimbursed by the local distribution companies which are passed through to the final customers through
energy tariffs.

(11) Obligations for removal costs which do not have an associated legal retirement obligation as defined by the accounting standards on
asset retirement obligations.

(12) Obligations established by ANEEL in Brazil associated with electric utility concessions and represent amounts received from customers or
donations not subject to return. These donations are allocated to support energy network expansion and to improve utility operations to
meet customers� needs. The term of the obligation is established by ANEEL. Settlement shall occur when the concession ends.

The current regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded in �Other current assets� and �Accrued and other liabilities,� respectively, on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The noncurrent regulatory assets and liabilities are recorded in �Other noncurrent assets� and �Other
long-term liabilities,� respectively, in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

The following table summarizes regulatory assets by region as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
Latin America $ 546 $ 265
North America 692 417

Total regulatory assets $ 1,238 $ 682

The following table summarizes regulatory liabilities by region as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
Latin America $ 1,333 $ 890
North America 679 526

Total regulatory liabilities $ 2,012 $ 1,416

11. DEBT

The Company has two types of debt reported on its Consolidated Balance Sheets: non-recourse and recourse debt. Non-recourse debt is used to
fund investments and capital expenditures for the construction and acquisition of electric power plants, wind projects, distribution companies
and other project-related investments at our subsidiaries. Non-recourse debt is generally secured by the capital stock, physical assets, contracts
and cash flows of the related subsidiary. Absent guarantees, intercompany loans or other credit support, the default risk is limited to the
respective business and is without recourse to the Parent Company and other subsidiaries, though the Company�s equity investments and/or
subordinated loans to projects (if any) are at risk. Recourse debt is direct borrowings by the Parent Company and is used to fund development,
construction or acquisitions, including serving as funding for equity investments or loans to the affiliates. The Parent Company�s debt is, among
other things, recourse to the Parent Company and is structurally subordinated to the affiliates� debt.
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The following table summarizes the carrying amount and estimated fair values of the Company�s recourse and non-recourse debt as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

Carrying
Amount

Fair
Value

(in millions)
Non-recourse debt $ 16,088 $ 16,425 $ 14,176 $ 14,506
Recourse debt 6,485 6,640 4,612 4,868

Total debt $ 22,573 $ 23,065 $ 18,788 $ 19,374

Recourse and non-recourse debt are carried at amortized cost. The fair value of recourse debt is estimated based on quoted market prices. The
fair value of non-recourse debt is estimated differently based upon the type of loan. The fair value of fixed rate loans is estimated using quoted
market prices, if available, or a discounted cash flow analysis. In the discounted cash flow analysis, the discount rate is based on the credit rating
of the individual debt instruments, if available, or the credit rating of the subsidiary. If the subsidiary�s credit rating is not available, a synthetic
credit rating is determined using certain key metrics, including cash flow ratios and interest coverage, as well as other industry specific factors.
For subsidiaries located outside the U.S., in the event that the country rating is lower than the credit rating previously determined, the country
rating is used for the purposes of the discounted cash flow analysis. The fair value of recourse and non-recourse debt excludes accrued interest at
the valuation date.

The estimated fair value was determined using available market information as of December 31, 2011 and 2010. The Company is not aware of
any factors that would significantly affect the estimated fair value amounts since December 31, 2011.

NON-RECOURSE DEBT

The following table summarizes the carrying amount and terms of non-recourse debt as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,

NON-RECOURSE DEBT
Interest
Rate(1) Maturity 2011 2010

(in millions)
VARIABLE RATE:(2)

Bank loans 2.95% 2012 � 2028 $ 3,453 $ 3,079
Notes and bonds 11.70% 2012 �2040 2,178 2,982
Debt to (or guaranteed by) multilateral, export credit agencies or
development banks(3) 3.30% 2012 � 2027 1,989 1,848
Other 3.83% 2012 � 2041 321 363
FIXED RATE:
Bank loans 8.24% 2012 � 2023 412 424
Notes and bonds 6.56% 2012 � 2061 7,021 4,829

6.57% 2012 � 2027 513 467
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Debt to (or guaranteed by) multilateral, export credit agencies or
development banks(3)

Other 11.85% 2012 � 2039 201 184

SUBTOTAL $ 16,088(4) $ 14,176(4)

Less: Current maturities (2,152)  (2,533)  

TOTAL $ 13,936 $ 11,643
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(1) Weighted average interest rate at December 31, 2011.
(2) The Company has interest rate swaps and interest rate option agreements in an aggregate notional principal amount of approximately

$3.6 billion on non-recourse debt outstanding at December 31, 2011. The swap agreements economically change the variable interest rates
on the portion of the debt covered by the notional amounts to fixed rates ranging from approximately 1.44% to 6.98%. The option
agreements fix interest rates within a range from 1.00% to 7.00%. The agreements expire at various dates from 2016 through 2028.

(3) Multilateral loans include loans funded and guaranteed by bilaterals, multilaterals, development banks and other similar institutions.
(4) Non-recourse debt of $704 million and $945 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, was excluded from non-recourse

debt and included in current and long-term liabilities of held for sale and discontinued businesses in the accompanying Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

Non-recourse debt as of December 31, 2011 is scheduled to reach maturity as set forth in the table below:

December 31,
Annual

Maturities
(in millions)

2012 $ 2,152
2013 1,389
2014 1,697
2015 851
2016 2,301
Thereafter 7,698

Total non-recourse debt $ 16,088

As of December 31, 2011, AES subsidiaries with facilities under construction had a total of approximately $1.4 billion of committed but unused
credit facilities available to fund construction and other related costs. Excluding these facilities under construction, AES subsidiaries had
approximately $1.2 billion in a number of available but unused committed revolving credit lines to support their working capital, debt service
reserves and other business needs. These credit lines can be used in one or more of the following ways: solely for borrowings; solely for letters
of credit; or a combination of these uses. The weighted average interest rate on borrowings from these facilities was 14.75% at December 31,
2011.

On October 3, 2011, Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc. (�Dolphin II�), a newly formed, wholly-owned special purpose indirect subsidiary of AES,
entered into an indenture (the �Indenture�) with Wells Fargo Bank, N.A. (the �Trustee�) as part of its issuance of $450 million aggregate principal
amount of 6.50% senior notes due 2016 (the �2016 Notes�) and $800 million aggregate principal amount of 7.25% senior notes due 2021 (the
�7.25% 2021 Notes�, together with the 2016 Notes, the �notes�) to finance the acquisition (the �Acquisition�) of DPL. Upon closing of the acquisition
on November 28, 2011, Dolphin II was merged into DPL with DPL being the surviving entity and obligor. The 2016 Notes and the 7.25% 2021
Notes are included under �Notes and bonds� in the non-recourse detail table above. See Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions for further
information.

Interest on the 2016 Notes and the 7.25% 2021 Notes accrues at a rate of 6.50% and 7.25% per year, respectively, and is payable on April 15 and
October 15 of each year, beginning April 15, 2012. Prior to September 15, 2016 with respect to the 2016 Notes and July 15, 2021 with respect to
the 7.25% 2021 Notes, DPL may redeem some or all of the 2016 Notes or 7.25% 2021 Notes at par, plus a �make-whole� amount set forth in
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the Indenture and accrued and unpaid interest. At any time on or after September 15, 2016 or July 15, 2021 with respect to the 2016 Notes and
7.25% 2021 Notes, respectively, DPL may redeem some or all of the 2016 Notes or 7.25% 2021 Notes at par plus accrued and unpaid interest.
The proceeds from issuance of the notes were used to partially finance the DPL acquisition.

Non-Recourse Debt Covenants, Restrictions and Defaults

The terms of the Company�s non-recourse debt include certain financial and non-financial covenants. These covenants are limited to subsidiary
activity and vary among the subsidiaries. These covenants may include but are not limited to maintenance of certain reserves, minimum levels of
working capital and limitations on incurring additional indebtedness. Compliance with certain covenants may not be objectively determinable.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, approximately $639 million and $595 million, respectively, of restricted cash was maintained in accordance
with certain covenants of the non-recourse debt agreements, and these amounts were included within �Restricted cash� and �Debt service reserves
and other deposits� in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

Various lender and governmental provisions restrict the ability of certain of the Company�s subsidiaries to transfer their net assets to the Parent
Company. Such restricted net assets of subsidiaries amounted to approximately $3.3 billion at December 31, 2011.

The following table summarizes the Company�s subsidiary non-recourse debt in default or accelerated as of December 31, 2011 and is included
in the current portion of non-recourse debt unless otherwise indicated:

Primary Nature
of  Default

December 31, 2011
Subsidiary Default Net Assets

(in millions)
Maritza Covenant $ 905 $ 204
Sonel Covenant 331 305
Kelanitissa Covenant 16 48

Total $ 1,252

None of the subsidiaries that are currently in default are subsidiaries that met the applicable definition of materiality under AES� corporate debt
agreements as of December 31, 2011 in order for such defaults to trigger an event of default or permit acceleration under such indebtedness. The
bankruptcy or acceleration of material amounts of debt at such entities would cause a cross default under the recourse senior secured credit
facility. However, as a result of additional dispositions of assets, other significant reductions in asset carrying values or other matters in the
future that may impact our financial position and results of operations or the financial position or results of the individual subsidiary, it is
possible that one or more of these subsidiaries could fall within the definition of a �material subsidiary� and thereby upon a bankruptcy or
acceleration of its non-recourse debt, trigger an event of default and possible acceleration of the indebtedness under the AES Parent Company�s
outstanding debt securities.
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RECOURSE DEBT

The following table summarizes the carrying amount and terms of recourse debt of the Company as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
RECOURSE DEBT Interest Rate Maturity 2011 2010

(in millions)
Senior Secured Term Loan LIBOR + 1.75% 2011 $ �  $ 200
Senior Unsecured Note 8.875% 2011 �  129
Senior Unsecured Note 8.375% 2011 �  134
Senior Unsecured Note 7.75% 2014 500 500
Revolving Loan under Senior Secured Credit Facility(1) LIBOR + 3.00% 2015 295 �  
Senior Unsecured Note 7.75% 2015 500 500
Senior Unsecured Note 9.75% 2016 535 535
Senior Unsecured Note 8.00% 2017 1,500 1,500
Senior Secured Term Loan LIBOR + 3.25% 2018 1,042 �  
Senior Unsecured Note 8.00% 2020 625 625
Senior Unsecured Note 7.375% 2021 1,000 �  
Term Convertible Trust Securities 6.75% 2029 517 517
Unamortized discounts (29) (28) 

SUBTOTAL $ 6,485 $ 4,612
Less: Current maturities (305) (463) 

Total $ 6,180 $ 4,149

(1) Subsequent to year end the loan was substantially repaid and is expected to be repaid in full prior to March 31, 2012.
Recourse debt as of December 31, 2011 is scheduled to reach maturity as set forth in the table below:

December 31,
Annual

Maturities
(in millions)

2012 $ 305
2013 11
2014 509
2015 511
2016 523
Thereafter 4,626

Total recourse debt $ 6,485

Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 86



Recourse Debt Transactions

During the year ended December 31, 2011, the Company issued recourse debt of $2.05 billion as outlined below. The proceeds of the debt were
used to partially finance the Company�s acquisition of DPL as discussed further in Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions.

On May 27, 2011, the Company secured a $1.05 billion term loan under a senior secured credit facility (the �senior secured term loan�). The senior
secured term loan bears annual interest, at the Company�s option, at a
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variable rate of LIBOR plus 3.25% or Base Rate plus 2.25%, and matures in 2018. The senior secured term loan is subject to certain customary
representations, covenants and events of default.

On June 15, 2011, the Company issued $1 billion aggregate principal amount of 7.375% senior unsecured notes maturing July 1, 2021 (the
�7.375% 2021 Notes�). Upon a change of control, the Company must offer to repurchase the 7.375% 2021 Notes at a price equal to 101% of
principal, plus accrued and unpaid interest. The 7.375% 2021 Notes are also subject to certain covenants restricting the ability of the Company
to incur additional secured debt; to enter into sale-lease back transactions; to consolidate, merge, convey or transfer substantially all of its assets;
as well as other covenants and events of default that are customary for debt securities similar to the 7.375% 2021 Notes. The Company entered
into interest rate locks in May 2011 to hedge the risk of changes in LIBOR until the issuance of the 7.375% 2021 Notes. The Company paid $24
million to settle those interest rate locks as of June 15, 2011. The payment was recognized in accumulated other comprehensive loss and is being
amortized over the life of the 7.375% 2021 Notes as an adjustment to interest expense using the effective yield method.

Recourse Debt Covenants and Guarantees

Certain of the Company�s obligations under the senior secured credit facility are guaranteed by its direct subsidiaries through which the Company
owns its interests in the AES Shady Point, AES Hawaii, AES Warrior Run and AES Eastern Energy businesses. On December 30, 2011, AES
Eastern Energy filed for bankruptcy and was deconsolidated. See Note 1�General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for additional
information. The Company�s obligations under the senior secured credit facility are, subject to certain exceptions, secured by:

(i) all of the capital stock of domestic subsidiaries owned directly by the Company and 65% of the capital stock of certain foreign
subsidiaries owned directly or indirectly by the Company; and

(ii) certain intercompany receivables, certain intercompany notes and certain intercompany tax sharing agreements.
The senior secured credit facility is subject to mandatory prepayment under certain circumstances, including the sale of a guarantor subsidiary.
In such a situation, the net cash proceeds from the sale of a Guarantor or any of its subsidiaries must be applied pro rata to repay the term loan
using 60% of net cash proceeds, reduced to 50% when and if the parent�s recourse debt to cash flow ratio is less than 5:1. The lenders have the
option to waive their pro rata redemption.

The senior secured credit facility contains customary covenants and restrictions on the Company�s ability to engage in certain activities,
including, but not limited to, limitations on other indebtedness, liens, investments and guarantees; limitations on restricted payments such as
shareholder dividends and equity repurchases; restrictions on mergers and acquisitions, sales of assets, leases, transactions with affiliates and
off-balance sheet or derivative arrangements; and other financial reporting requirements.

The senior secured credit facility also contains financial covenants requiring the Company to maintain certain financial ratios including a cash
flow to interest coverage ratio, calculated quarterly, which provides that a minimum ratio of the Company�s adjusted operating cash flow to the
Company�s interest charges related to recourse debt of 1.3× must be maintained at all times and a recourse debt to cash flow ratio, calculated
quarterly, which provides that the ratio of the Company�s total recourse debt to the Company�s adjusted operating cash flow must not exceed a
maximum at any time of 7.5× at December 31, 2011.

The terms of the Company�s senior unsecured notes and senior secured credit facility contain certain covenants including, without limitation,
limitation on the Company�s ability to incur liens or enter into sale and leaseback transactions.
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TERM CONVERTIBLE TRUST SECURITIES

Between 1999 and 2000, AES Trust III, a wholly owned special purpose business trust, issued approximately 10.35 million of $3.375 Term
Convertible Preferred Securities (�TECONS�) (liquidation value $50) for total proceeds of $517 million and concurrently purchased $517 million
of 6.75% Junior Subordinated Convertible Debentures due 2029 (the �6.75% Debentures� of the Company). The TECONS are consolidated and
classified as long-term recourse debt on the Company�s Consolidated Balance Sheet.

AES, at its option, can redeem the 6.75% Debentures which would result in the required redemption of the TECONS issued by AES Trust III,
currently for $50 per TECON. The TECONS must be redeemed upon maturity of the 6.75% Debentures. The TECONS are convertible into the
common stock of AES at each holder�s option prior to October 15, 2029 at the rate of 1.4216, representing a conversion price of $35.17 per share.
The maximum number of shares of common stock AES would be required to issue should all holders decide to convert their securities would be
14.7 million shares.

Dividends on the TECONS are payable quarterly at an annual rate of 6.75%. The Trust is permitted to defer payment of dividends for up to
20 consecutive quarters, provided that the Company has exercised its right to defer interest payments under the corresponding debentures or
notes. During such deferral periods, dividends on the TECONS would accumulate quarterly and accrue interest, and the Company may not
declare or pay dividends on its common stock. AES has not exercised the option to defer any dividends at this time and all dividends due under
the Trust have been paid.

AES Trust III is a VIE under the relevant consolidation accounting guidance. AES� obligations under the 6.75% Debentures and other relevant
trust agreements, in aggregate, constitute a full and unconditional guarantee by AES of the TECON Trusts� obligations. Accordingly, AES
consolidates AES Trust III. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the sole assets of AES Trust III are the 6.75% Debentures.

12. COMMITMENTS

The following disclosures exclude any businesses classified as discontinued operations or held-for-sale.

OPERATING LEASES�As of December 31, 2011, the Company was obligated under long-term non-cancelable operating leases, primarily for
certain transmission lines, office rental and site leases. Rental expense for lease commitments under these operating leases for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 was $63 million, $56 million and $60 million, respectively.

The table below sets forth the future minimum lease commitments under these operating leases as of December 31, 2011 for 2012 through 2016
and thereafter:

December 31,

Future

Commitments

for Operating
Leases

(in millions)
2012 $ 57
2013 57
2014 55
2015 54
2016 54
Thereafter 730
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CAPITAL LEASES�Several AES subsidiaries lease operating and office equipment and vehicles that are considered capital lease transactions.
These capital leases are recognized in Property, Plant and Equipment within �Electric generation and distribution assets� and primarily relate to
transmission lines at our subsidiaries in Brazil. The gross value of the leased assets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $95 million and
$97 million, respectively.

The following table summarizes the future minimum lease payments under capital leases together with the present value of the net minimum
lease payments as of December 31, 2011 for 2012 through 2016 and thereafter:

December 31,

Future Minimum
Lease 

Payments
(in millions)

2012 $ 14
2013 11
2014 10
2015 9
2016 9
Thereafter 125

Total $ 178
Less: Imputed interest 106

Present value of total minimum lease payments $ 72

CONTRACTS�Operating subsidiaries of the Company have entered into contracts for the purchase of electricity from third parties that primarily
include energy auction agreements at our Brazil subsidiaries with extended terms from 2012 through 2028 and in some cases are subject to
variable quantities or prices. Purchases in the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were approximately $2.5 billion, $2.4 billion and
$2.1 billion, respectively.

The table below sets forth the future minimum commitments under these electricity purchase contracts at December 31, 2011 for 2012 through
2016 and thereafter:

December 31,

Future

Commitments

for Electricity

Purchase
Contracts
(in millions)

2012 $ 2,800
2013 2,412
2014 2,034
2015 1,995
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2016 1,979
Thereafter 23,887

Total $ 35,107

Operating subsidiaries of the Company have entered into various long-term contracts for the purchase of fuel subject to termination only in
certain limited circumstances and in some cases are subject to variable quantities or prices. Purchases in the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 were $1.7 billion, $1.7 billion and $1.2 billion, respectively.
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The table below sets forth the future minimum commitments under these fuel contracts as of December 31, 2011 for 2012 through 2016 and
thereafter:

December 31,

Future

Commitments

for Fuel
Contracts
(in millions)

2012 $ 1,980
2013 1,187
2014 790
2015 663
2016 661
Thereafter 4,875

Total $ 10,156

The Company�s subsidiaries have entered into other various long-term contracts. These contracts are mainly for construction projects, service and
maintenance, transmission of electricity and other operation services. Payments under these contracts for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 were $1.8 billion, $1.7 billion and $2.8 billion, respectively.

The table below sets forth the future minimum commitments under these other purchase contracts as of December 31, 2011 for 2012 through
2016 and thereafter:

December 31,

Future

Commitments

for Other

Purchase
Contracts
(in millions)

2012 $ 1,853
2013 1,476
2014 1,232
2015 990
2016 906
Thereafter 9,618

Total $ 16,075

13. CONTINGENCIES

ENVIRONMENTAL LIABILITIES
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The Company periodically reviews its obligations as they relate to compliance with environmental laws, including site restoration and
remediation. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had recorded liabilities of $26 million for projected environmental remediation costs. Due
to the uncertainties associated with environmental assessment and remediation activities, future costs of compliance or remediation could be
higher or lower than the amount currently accrued. Based on currently available information and analysis, the Company believes that it is
reasonably possible that costs associated with such liabilities, or as yet unknown liabilities, may exceed current reserves in amounts that could be
material but cannot be estimated as of December 31, 2011.
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GUARANTEES, LETTERS OF CREDIT

In connection with certain project financing, acquisition, power purchase, and other agreements, AES has expressly undertaken limited
obligations and commitments, most of which will only be effective or will be terminated upon the occurrence of future events. In the normal
course of business, AES has entered into various agreements, mainly guarantees and letters of credit, to provide financial or performance
assurance to third parties on behalf of AES businesses. These agreements are entered into primarily to support or enhance the creditworthiness
otherwise achieved by a business on a stand-alone basis, thereby facilitating the availability of sufficient credit to accomplish their intended
business purposes. Most of the contingent obligations primarily relate to future performance commitments which the Company or its businesses
expect to fulfill within the normal course of business. The expiration dates of these guarantees vary from less than one year to more than
15 years.

The following table summarizes the Parent Company�s contingent contractual obligations as of December 31, 2011. Amounts presented in the
table below represent the Parent Company�s current undiscounted exposure to guarantees and the range of maximum undiscounted potential
exposure. The maximum exposure is not reduced by the amounts, if any, that could be recovered under the recourse or collateralization
provisions in the guarantees. The amounts include obligations made by the Parent Company for the direct benefit of the lenders associated with
the non-recourse debt of businesses of $24 million.

Contingent contractual obligations Amount

Number
of

Agreements

Maximum
Exposure
Range for
Each

Agreement
(in millions) (in millions)

Guarantees $ 351 22 <$1 - $53
Letters of credit under the senior secured credit facility 12 11 <$1   -$7 
Cash collateralized letters of credit 261 13 <$1 - $221

Total $ 624 46

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had $9 million of commitments to invest in subsidiaries under construction and to purchase related
equipment that were not included in the letters of credit discussed above. The Company expects to fund these net investment commitments in
2012. The exact payment schedules will be dictated by the construction milestones. We expect to fund these commitments from a combination
of current liquidity and internally generated Parent Company cash flow.

During 2011, the Company paid letter of credit fees ranging from 0.250% to 3.250% per annum on the outstanding amounts of letters of credit.

LITIGATION

The Company is involved in certain claims, suits and legal proceedings in the normal course of business. The Company accrues for litigation and
claims when it is probable that a liability has been incurred and the amount of loss can be reasonably estimated. The Company has evaluated
claims in accordance with the accounting guidance for contingencies that it deems both probable and reasonably estimable and accordingly, has
recorded aggregate reserves for all claims of approximately $363 million and $443 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively.
These reserves are reported on the consolidated balance sheets within �accrued and other liabilities� and �other long-term liabilities.� A significant
portion of the reserves relate to employment,

Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 96



225

Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 97



Table of Contents

THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

non-income tax and customer disputes in international jurisdictions, principally Brazil. Certain of the Company�s subsidiaries, principally in
Brazil, are defendants in a number of labor and employment lawsuits. The complaints generally seek unspecified monetary damages, injunctive
relief, or other relief. The subsidiaries have denied any liability and intend to vigorously defend themselves in all of these proceedings. There
can be no assurance that these reserves will be adequate to cover all existing and future claims or that we will have the liquidity to pay such
claims as they arise.

The Company believes, based upon information it currently possesses and taking into account established reserves for liabilities and its
insurance coverage, that the ultimate outcome of these proceedings and actions is unlikely to have a material effect on the Company�s
consolidated financial statements. However, where no reserve has been recognized, it is reasonably possible that some matters could be decided
unfavorably to the Company and could require the Company to pay damages or make expenditures in amounts that could be material but could
not be estimated as of December 31, 2011. The material contingencies where a loss is reasonably possible primarily include: claims under
financing agreements; disputes with offtakers, suppliers and EPC contractors; alleged violation of monopoly laws and regulations; income tax
and non-income tax assessments by tax authorities; and environmental matters. In aggregate, the Company estimates that the range of potential
losses, where estimable, related to these material contingences to be in the range of $355 million to $1.7 billion. The amounts considered
reasonably possible do not include amounts reserved, as discussed above. These material contingencies do not include income tax related
contingencies which are considered part of our uncertain tax positions.

14. BENEFIT PLANS

DEFINED CONTRIBUTION PLAN�The Company sponsors one defined contribution plan (�the Plan�), qualified under section 401 of the
Internal Revenue Code. All U.S. employees of the Company are eligible to participate in the Plan except for those employees who are covered
by a collective bargaining agreement, unless such agreement specifically provides that the employee is considered an eligible employee under
the Plan. The Plan provides matching contributions in AES common stock, other contributions at the discretion of the Compensation Committee
of the Board of Directors in AES common stock and discretionary tax deferred contributions from the participants. Participants are fully vested
in their own contributions and the Company�s matching contributions. Participants vest in other company contributions ratably over a five-year
period ending on the fifth anniversary of their hire date. Company contributions to the Plan were approximately $22 million for each of the years
ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009.

DEFINED BENEFIT PLANS�Certain of the Company�s subsidiaries have defined benefit pension plans covering substantially all of their
respective employees. Pension benefits are based on years of credited service, age of the participant and average earnings. Of the 26 active
defined benefit plans as of December 31, 2011, four are at U.S. subsidiaries and the remaining plans are at foreign subsidiaries.
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The following table reconciles the Company�s funded status, both domestic and foreign, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

U.S. Foreign U.S. Foreign
(in millions)

CHANGE IN PROJECTED BENEFIT OBLIGATION:
Benefit obligation at beginning of year $ 608 $ 5,986 $ 549 $ 5,129
Service cost 8 19 7 16
Interest cost 33 564 32 510
Employee contributions �  5 �  5
Plan amendments �  �  11 �  
Plan curtailments �  5 �  �  
Plan settlements �  �  �  (2) 
Benefits paid (30) (465) (30) (409) 
Business combinations 365 �  �  14
Actuarial loss 60 371 39 474
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate change �  (696) �  249

Benefit obligation as of December 31 $ 1,044 $ 5,789 $ 608 $ 5,986

CHANGE IN PLAN ASSETS:
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of year $ 413 $ 4,730 $ 368 $ 4,042
Actual return on plan assets 6 486 46 742
Employer contributions 37 175 29 156
Employee contributions �  5 �  5
Plan settlements �  �  �  (2) 
Benefits paid (30) (465) (30) (409) 
Business combinations 336 �  �  �  
Effect of foreign currency exchange rate change �  (531) �  196

Fair value of plan assets as of December 31 $ 762 $ 4,400 $ 413 $ 4,730

RECONCILIATION OF FUNDED STATUS
Funded status as of December 31 $ (282) $ (1,389) $ (195) $ (1,256) 

The following table summarizes the amounts recognized on the Consolidated Balance Sheets related to the funded status of the plans, both
domestic and foreign, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

U.S. Foreign U.S. Foreign
(in millions)

AMOUNTS RECOGNIZED ON THE
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
Noncurrent assets $ �  $ 20 $ �  $ 32
Accrued benefit liability�current (1) (4) �  (4) 
Accrued benefit liability�long-term (281) (1,405) (195) (1,284) 

Net amount recognized at end of year $ (282) $ (1,389) $ (195) $ (1,256) 
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The following table summarizes the Company�s accumulated benefit obligation, both domestic and foreign, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

U.S. Foreign U.S. Foreign
(in millions)

Accumulated Benefit Obligation $ 1,020 $ 5,724 $ 592 $ 5,927
Information for pension plans with an accumulated benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:
Projected benefit obligation $ 1,044 $ 5,478 $ 608 $ 5,697
Accumulated benefit obligation 1,020 5,423 592 5,651
Fair value of plan assets 762 4,072 413 4,410
Information for pension plans with a projected benefit obligation in excess of plan assets:
Projected benefit obligation $ 1,044 $ 5,492 $ 608 $ 5,704
Fair value of plan assets 762 4,084 413 4,415
The table below summarizes the significant weighted average assumptions used in the calculation of benefit obligation and net periodic benefit
cost, both domestic and foreign, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

U.S.     Foreign    U.S.     Foreign    
Benefit Obligation:
Discount rates 4.67% 9.52%(2) 5.38% 9.82%(2)

Rates of compensation increase 3.94%(1) 5.98% N/A(1) 5.99% 
Periodic Benefit Cost:
Discount rate 5.38% 9.82% 5.92% 10.56% 
Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.49% 11.08% 8.00% 11.14% 
Rate of compensation increase 3.94%(1) 5.98% N/A(1) 5.99% 

(1) A U.S. subsidiary of the Company has a defined benefit obligation of $679 million and $607 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010,
respectively, and uses salary bands to determine future benefit costs rather than rates of compensation increases. Rates of compensation
increases in the table above do not include amounts related to this specific defined benefit plan.

(2) Includes an inflation factor that is used to calculate future periodic benefit cost, but is not used to calculate the benefit obligation.
The Company establishes its estimated long-term return on plan assets considering various factors, which include the targeted asset allocation
percentages, historic returns and expected future returns.

The measurement of pension obligations, costs and liabilities is dependent on a variety of assumptions. These assumptions include estimates of
the present value of projected future pension payments to all plan participants, taking into consideration the likelihood of potential future events
such as salary increases and demographic experience. These assumptions may have an effect on the amount and timing of future contributions.

The assumptions used in developing the required estimates include the following key factors:
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� salary growth;

� retirement rates;

� inflation;

� expected return on plan assets; and

� mortality rates.
The effects of actual results differing from the Company�s assumptions are accumulated and amortized over future periods and, therefore,
generally affect the Company�s recognized expense in such future periods.

Sensitivity of the Company�s pension funded status to the indicated increase or decrease in the discount rate and long-term rate of return on plan
assets assumptions is shown below. Note that these sensitivities may be asymmetric and are specific to the base conditions at year-end 2011.
They also may not be additive, so the impact of changing multiple factors simultaneously cannot be calculated by combining the individual
sensitivities shown. The December 31, 2011 funded status is affected by the December 31, 2011 assumptions. Pension expense for 2011 is
affected by the December 31, 2010 assumptions. The impact on pension expense from a one percentage point change in these assumptions is
shown in the table below (in millions):

Increase of 1% in the discount rate $ (40) 
Decrease of 1% in the discount rate $ 42
Increase of 1% in the long-term rate of return on plan assets $ (51) 
Decrease of 1% in the long-term rate of return on plan assets $ 51

The following table summarizes the components of the net periodic benefit cost, both domestic and foreign, for the years ended December 31,
2011 through 2009:

December 31,

2011 2010 2009
Components of Net Periodic Benefit Cost: U.S. Foreign U.S. Foreign U.S. Foreign

(in millions)
Service cost $ 8 $ 19 $ 7 $ 16 $ 6 $ 12
Interest cost 33 564 32 510 32 458
Expected return on plan assets (33) (508) (30) (427) (24) (373) 
Amortization of initial net asset �  �  �  (1) �  (2) 
Amortization of prior service cost 4 �  3 �  4 �  
Amortization of net loss 13 23 12 38 16 6
Loss on curtailment �  5 �  �  �  �  
Settlement gain recognized �  �  �  1 �  �  
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The following table summarizes the amounts reflected in Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss on the Consolidated Balance Sheet as of
December 31, 2011 that have not yet been recognized as components of net periodic benefit cost:

December 31, 2011

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive Loss

Amounts expected to be
reclassified to earnings
in next fiscal year

    U.S.        Foreign        U.S.        Foreign    
(in millions)

Prior service cost $ �  $ (2) $ �  $ �  
Unrecognized net actuarial loss �  (1,112) �  (40) 

Total $ �  $ (1,114) $ �  $ (40) 

The following table summarizes the Company�s target allocation for 2011 and pension plan asset allocation, both domestic and foreign, as of
December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Percentage of Plan Assets as of
December 31,

Target Allocations 2011 2010
Asset Category U.S. Foreign U.S. Foreign U.S. Foreign
Equity securities 46% 15% - 30% 42.07% 23.48% 53.51% 22.43% 
Debt securities 39% 59% - 85% 38.53% 72.55% 25.91% 73.64% 
Real estate 0% 0% - 4% 0.00% 2.34% 0.00% 2.09% 
Other 15% 0% - 6% 19.40% 1.63% 20.58% 1.84% 

Total pension assets 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 100.00% 

The U.S. plans seek to achieve the following long-term investment objectives:

� maintenance of sufficient income and liquidity to pay retirement benefits and other lump sum payments;

� long-term rate of return in excess of the annualized inflation rate;

� long-term rate of return, net of relevant fees, that meet or exceed the assumed actuarial rate; and

� long-term competitive rate of return on investments, net of expenses, that is equal to or exceeds various benchmark rates.
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The asset allocation is reviewed periodically to determine a suitable asset allocation which seeks to manage risk through portfolio diversification
and takes into account, among other possible factors, the above-stated objectives, in conjunction with current funding levels, cash flow
conditions and economic and industry trends. The following table summarizes the Company�s U.S. plan assets by category of investment and
level within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
U.S. Plans Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(in millions)
Equity securities:
Common stock $ 120 $ �  $ �  $ 120 $ 146 $ �  $ �  $ 146
Mutual funds 140 �  �  140 39 �  �  39
Debt securities:
Government debt securities 31 �  �  31 32 �  �  32
Corporate debt securities 114 �  �  114 62 �  �  62
Mutual funds(1) 135 �  �  135 2 �  �  2
Other debt securities 14 �  �  14 11 �  �  11
Other:
Cash and cash equivalents 43 �  �  43 69 �  �  69
Other investments 72 93 �  165 �  52 �  52

Total plan assets $ 669 $ 93 $ �  $ 762 $ 361 $ 52 $ �  $ 413

(1) Mutual funds categorized as debt securities consist of mutual funds for which debt securities are the primary underlying investment.
The investment strategy of the foreign plans seeks to maximize return on investment while minimizing risk. The assumed asset allocation has
less exposure to equities in order to closely match market conditions and near term forecasts. The following table summarizes the Company�s
foreign plan assets by category of investment and level within the fair value hierarchy as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010
Foreign Plans Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

(in millions)
Equity securities:
Common stock $ 26 $ �  $ �  $ 26 $ 30 $ �  $ �  $ 30
Mutual funds 427 �  �  427 510 �  �  510
Private equity(1) �  �  580 580 �  �  521 521
Debt securities:
Certificates of deposit �  5 �  5 �  4 �  4
Unsecured debentures �  20 �  20 �  19 �  19
Government debt securities 6 221 �  227 �  233 �  233
Mutual funds(2) 125 2,805 �  2,930 108 3,107 �  3,215
Other debt securities �  10 �  10 �  12 �  12
Real estate:
Real estate(1) �  �  103 103 �  �  99 99
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Other:
Cash and cash equivalents �  �  �  �  �  4 �  4
Participant loans(3) �  �  72 72 �  �  83 83

Total plan assets $ 584 $ 3,061 $ 755 $ 4,400 $ 648 $ 3,379 $ 703 $ 4,730
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(1) Plan assets of our Brazilian subsidiaries are invested in private equities and commercial real estate through the plan administrator in Brazil.
The fair value of these assets is determined using the income approach through annual appraisals based on a discounted cash flow analysis.

(2) Mutual funds categorized as debt securities consist of mutual funds for which debt securities are the primary underlying investment.
(3) Loans to participants are stated at cost, which approximates fair value.
The following table presents a reconciliation of all plan assets measured at fair value using significant unobservable inputs (Level 3) for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

Year Ended
December 31,

2011 2010
(in millions)

Balance at January 1 $ 703 $ 564
Actual return on plan assets:
Returns relating to assets still held at reporting date 167 104
Returns relating to assets sold during the period 28 �  
Purchases, sales and settlements, net (48) 3
Change due to exchange rate changes (95) 32

Balance at December 31 $ 755 $ 703

The following table summarizes the scheduled cash flows for U.S. and foreign expected employer contributions and expected future benefit
payments, both domestic and foreign:

U.S. Foreign
(in millions)

Expected employer contribution in 2012 $ 49 $ 174
Expected benefit payments for fiscal year ending:
2012 55 421
2013 56 435
2014 58 451
2015 59 465
2016 61 483
2017 - 2021 325 2,657

15. EQUITY

STOCK PURCHASE AGREEMENT

On March 12, 2010, the Company and Terrific Investment Corporation (�Investor�), a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation,
entered into a stockholder agreement (the �Stockholder Agreement�) in connection with the agreement discussed in the following paragraph.
Under the Stockholder Agreement, as long as Investor holds more than 5% of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company, Investor
has the right to designate one nominee, who must be reasonably acceptable to the Board, for election to the Board of Directors of the Company.
Effective December 9, 2011, Investor�s designated nominee was elected to the Board of Directors of the Company. In addition, until such time as
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outstanding shares of common stock, Investor has agreed to vote its shares in accordance with the recommendation of the Company on any
matters submitted to a vote of the stockholders of the Company relating to the election of directors and compensation matters. Otherwise,
Investor may vote its shares at its discretion. Further, under the Stockholder Agreement, Investor will be subject to a standstill restriction which
generally prohibits Investor from purchasing additional securities of the Company beyond the level acquired by it under the stock purchase
agreement entered into between Investor and the Company on November 6, 2009. The standstill and lock-up restrictions also terminate at such
time as Investor holds 5% or less of the outstanding shares of common stock. Investor has certain registration rights and preemptive rights under
the Stockholder Agreement with respect to its shares of common stock of the Company.

On March 15, 2010, the Company completed the sale of 125,468,788 shares of common stock to Investor. The shares were sold for $12.60 per
share, for an aggregate purchase price of $1.58 billion. Investor�s ownership in the Company�s common stock is now approximately 15% of the
Company�s total outstanding shares of common stock on a fully diluted basis.

STOCK REPURCHASE PROGRAM

In July 2010, the Company�s Board of Directors approved a stock repurchase program (the �Program�) under which the Company can repurchase
up to $500 million of AES common stock. The Board authorization permits the Company to repurchase stock through a variety of methods,
including open market repurchases and/or privately negotiated transactions. There can be no assurances as to the amount, timing or prices of
repurchases, which may vary based on market conditions and other factors. The Program does not have an expiration date and can be modified
or terminated by the Board of Directors at any time. During the year ended December 31, 2011, shares of common stock repurchased under this
plan totaled 25,541,980 at a total cost of $279 million plus a nominal amount of commissions (average of $10.93 per share including
commissions), bringing the cumulative total purchases under the program to 33,924,805 shares at a total cost of $378 million plus a nominal
amount of commissions (average of $11.16 per share including commissions).

The shares of stock repurchased have been classified as treasury stock and accounted for using the cost method. A total of 42,386,961 and
17,287,073 shares were held in treasury stock at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. The Company has not retired any shares held in
treasury during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 or 2009.
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COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

The components of comprehensive income for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 were as follows:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
Net income $ 1,530 $ 1,059 $ 1,755
Available-for-sale securities activity:
Change in fair value of available-for-sale securities, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $0, $3
and $(4), respectively 1 (5) 8
Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $0, $0 and $0, respectively (2) �  (2) 

Total change in fair value of available-for-sale securities (1) (5) 6
Foreign currency activity:
Foreign currency translation adjustments, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $18, $(11) and
$(78), respectively (484) 468 746
Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $0, $0 and $0, respectively 188 142 (4) 

Total foreign currency translation adjustments (296) 610 742
Derivative activity:
Change in derivative fair value, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $108, $56 and $34,
respectively (379) (242) 214
Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $(22), $(41) and $(41),
respectively 137 162 (141) 

Total change in fair value of derivatives (242) (80) 73
Pension activity:
Change in unfunded pension obligation, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $117, $57 and $70,
respectively (223) (111) (139) 
Reclassification to earnings, net of income tax (expense) benefit of $(6), $(12) and $(1),
respectively 13 23 �  

Total change in unfunded pensions obligation (210) (88) (139) 

Other comprehensive income (loss) (749) 437 682

Comprehensive income 781 1,496 2,437
Less: Comprehensive income attributable to noncontrolling interests(1) (1,098) (1,108) (1,485) 

Comprehensive income (loss) attributable to The AES Corporation $ (317) $ 388 $ 952

(1) Reflects the (income) loss attributed to noncontrolling interests in the form of common securities and dividends on preferred stock.
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The following table summarizes the balances comprising accumulated other comprehensive loss, net of tax, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
Foreign currency translation adjustment $ 1,967 $ 1,824
Unrealized derivative losses, net 534 344
Unfunded pension obligations 257 216
Unrealized (gain) loss on securities available for sale �  (1) 

Total $ 2,758 $ 2,383

EQUITY TRANSACTIONS WITH NONCONTROLLING INTERESTS

On July 7, 2011, a subsidiary of the Company completed the acquisition of an additional 10% equity interest in AES-VCM Mong Duong Power
Company Limited (�Mong Duong�), a 1,200 MW coal-fired power plant in development in the Quang Ninh province in Vietnam, from Vietnam
National Coal and Mineral Industries Group, its minority shareholder. On July 8, 2011, through a subsidiary, the Company sold 30% and 19%
equity interests in Mong Duong to PSC Energy Global Co., Ltd. (a wholly owned subsidiary of POSCO Corporation) and Stable Investment
Corporation (a wholly owned subsidiary of China Investment Corporation, a related party), respectively, resulting in the Company retaining a
51% indirect equity interest in Mong Duong. As a result of these transactions, the Company did not lose control of Mong Duong, which
continues to be accounted for as a consolidated subsidiary. A net gain of $19 million resulting from these transactions was recorded as an equity
transaction in additional paid-in capital.

The following table summarizes the net income attributable to The AES Corporation and transfers (to) from noncontrolling interests for the
years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010
(in millions)

Net income attributable to The AES Corporation $ 58 $ 9
Transfers (to) from the noncontrolling interests:
Net increase in The AES Corporation�s paid-in capital for sale of subsidiary shares 19 �  
Decrease in The AES Corporation�s paid-in capital for purchase of subsidiary shares �  (25) 

Net transfers (to) from noncontrolling interest 19 (25) 

Change from net income attributable to The AES Corporation and transfers (to) from noncontrolling interests $ 77 $ (16) 

16. SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION

The Company�s current management reporting structure is organized along our two lines of business (Generation and Utilities) and three regions:
(1) Latin America & Africa; (2) North America; and (3) Europe, Middle East & Asia (collectively �EMEA�). The segment reporting structure uses
the Company�s management reporting structure as its foundation to reflect how the Company manages the business internally. In October 2011,
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reporting structure will remain organized along two lines of business � Generation and Utilities, each led by a Chief Operating Officer, however,
we are continuing to evaluate both the timing and impact, if any, that the realignment will have on our reportable segments. For the year ended
December 31, 2011 the Company applied the segment reporting accounting guidance, which provides certain quantitative thresholds and
aggregation criteria, and concluded it has the following six reportable segments:

� Latin America�Generation;

� Latin America�Utilities;

� North America�Generation;

� North America�Utilities;

� Europe�Generation;

� Asia�Generation.
Corporate and Other�The Company�s Europe Utilities, Africa Utilities, Africa Generation, Wind Generation operating segments and climate
solutions and other renewables projects are reported within �Corporate and Other� because they do not meet the criteria to allow for aggregation
with another operating segment or the quantitative thresholds that would require separate disclosure under segment reporting accounting
guidance. None of these operating segments are currently material to our presentation of reportable segments, individually or in the aggregate.
AES Solar and certain other unconsolidated businesses are accounted for using the equity method of accounting; therefore, their operating
results are included in �Net Equity in Earnings of Affiliates� on the face of the Consolidated Statements of Operations, not in revenue or gross
margin. �Corporate and Other� also includes costs related to corporate overhead costs which are not directly associated with the operations of our
six reportable segments and other intercompany charges such as self-insurance premiums which are fully eliminated in consolidation.

The Company uses Adjusted Gross Margin, a non-GAAP measure, to evaluate the performance of its segments. Adjusted Gross Margin is
defined by the Company as: Gross Margin plus depreciation and amortization less general and administrative expenses.

Segment revenue includes inter-segment sales related to the transfer of electricity from generation plants to utilities within Latin America. No
material inter-segment revenue relationships exist between other segments. Corporate allocations include certain management fees and self
insurance activities which are reflected within segment Adjusted Gross Margin. All intra-segment activity has been eliminated with respect to
revenue and Adjusted Gross Margin within the segment. Inter-segment activity has been eliminated within the total consolidated results. All
balance sheet information for businesses that were discontinued or classified as held for sale as of December 31, 2011 is segregated and is shown
in the line �Discontinued Businesses� in the accompanying segment tables.
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The tables below present the breakdown of business segment balance sheet and income statement data as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2011 through 2009:

Total Revenue Intersegment External Revenue
2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
Revenue
Latin America�Generation $ 4,982 $ 4,281 $ 3,651 $ (1,148) $ (1,017) $ (864) $ 3,834 $ 3,264 $ 2,787
Latin America�Utilities 7,374 6,987 5,877 �  �  �  7,374 6,987 5,877
North America�Generation 1,465 1,453 1,381 (4) �  �  1,461 1,453 1,381
North America�Utilities 1,326 1,145 1,068 �  �  �  1,326 1,145 1,068
Europe�Generation 1,550 1,318 762 (2) (2) 2 1,548 1,316 764
Asia�Generation 625 618 375 �  �  �  625 618 375
Corp/Other and eliminations (48) 26 (4) 1,154 1,019 862 1,106 1,045 858

Total Revenue $ 17,274 $ 15,828 $ 13,110 $ �  $ �  $ �  $ 17,274 $ 15,828 $ 13,110

Total Adjusted Gross
Margin Intersegment

External Adjusted Gross
Margin

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Adjusted Gross Margin
Latin America�Generation $ 2,086 $ 1,698 $ 1,528 $ (1,090) $ (1,010) $ (852) $ 996 $ 688 $ 676
Latin America�Utilities 1,321 1,248 1,060 1,118 1,018 865 2,439 2,266 1,925
North America�Generation 533 540 537 9 2 (3) 542 542 534
North America�Utilities 394 407 401 1 2 2 395 409 403
Europe�Generation 469 395 273 8 3 4 477 398 277
Asia�Generation 176 255 111 2 2 4 178 257 115
Corp/Other and eliminations (27) 65 16 (48) (17) (20) (75) 48 (4) 

Reconciliation to Income from Continuing Operations before Taxes
Depreciation and amortization (1,209) (1,064) (908) 
Interest expense (1,603) (1,503) (1,461) 
Interest income 400 408 344
Other expense (156) (234) (104) 
Other income 149 100 459
Gain on sale of investments 8 �  131
Goodwill impairment (17) (21) (122) 
Asset impairment expense (225) (389) (20) 
Foreign currency transaction gains (losses) (38) (33) 35
Other non-operating expense (82) (7) (12) 

Income from continuing operations before taxes and equity in earnings of affiliates $ 2,179 $ 1,865 $ 2,268
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Total Assets
Depreciation and
Amortization Capital Expenditures

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Latin America�Generation $ 10,713 $ 10,373 $ 9,802 $ 261 $ 215 $ 183 $ 658 $ 641 $ 951
Latin America�Utilities 9,468 9,609 8,810 293 231 201 666 584 356
North America�Generation 4,326 4,519 4,914 150 160 158 64 71 64
North America�Utilities 9,384 3,139 3,035 178 161 157 232 177 116
Europe�Generation 3,276 3,317 3,147 136 114 53 140 233 212
Asia�Generation 1,717 1,762 1,594 33 33 32 129 10 22
Discontinued businesses 829 1,844 3,023 27 81 117 66 88 100
Corp/Other and eliminations 5,620 5,948 5,210 184 183 148 506 529 717

Total $ 45,333 $ 40,511 $ 39,535 $ 1,262 $ 1,178 $ 1,049 $ 2,461 $ 2,333 $ 2,538

Investment in and  Advances
to Affiliates Equity in Earnings (Loss)

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Latin America�Generation $ 188 $ 150 $ 129 $ 35 $ 48 $ 30
Latin America�Utilities �  �  �  �  �  �  
North America�Generation 18 �  3 (2) (2) (2) 
North America�Utilities �  �  �  �  �  �  
Europe�Generation 479 353 308 8 19 50
Asia�Generation 291 409 390 (1) 3 28
Discontinued businesses �  �  �  �  �  �  
Corp/Other and eliminations 446 408 327 (42) 116 (13) 

Total $ 1,422 $ 1,320 $ 1,157 $ (2) $ 184 $ 93
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The table below presents information, by country, about the Company�s consolidated operations for each of the years ended December 31, 2011
through 2009 and as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. Revenue is recorded in the country in which it is earned and assets are
recorded in the country in which they are located.

Revenue
Property, Plant &
Equipment, net

2011 2010 2009 2011 2010
(in millions)

United States(1) $ 2,256 $ 2,095 $ 1,987 $ 8,448 $ 6,027
Non-U.S.:
Brazil(2) 6,640 6,355 5,292 5,896 6,263
Chile 1,608 1,355 1,239 2,781 2,560
Argentina(3) 979 771 571 279 270
El Salvador 752 648 619 268 261
Dominican Republic 674 535 429 662 625
United Kingdom(4) 587 364 228 523 507
Philippines 480 501 250 766 784
Ukraine 418 356 286 94 86
Mexico 404 409 329 774 786
Cameroon 386 422 370 901 823
Colombia 365 393 347 384 387
Puerto Rico 298 253 267 581 596
Spain(5) 258 411 �  �  �  
Bulgaria(6) 251 44 �  1,619 1,825
Hungary(7) 204 252 259 6 73
Panama 189 194 168 1,040 921
Kazakhstan 145 138 123 86 63
Sri Lanka 140 100 109 22 69
Jordan 124 120 104 216 224
Qatar(8) �  �  �  �  �  
Pakistan(9) �  �  �  �  �  
Oman(10) �  �  �  �  �  
Other Non-U.S. (11) 116 112 133 385 279

Total Non-U.S. 15,018 13,733 11,123 17,283 17,402

Total $ 17,274 $ 15,828 $ 13,110 $ 25,731 $ 23,429

(1) Excludes revenue of $228 million, $519 million and $559 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and property, plant and equipment of $140 million as of December 31, 2010, related to Eastern Energy and Thames, which were reflected
as discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

(2)
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Excludes revenue of $124 million, $118 million and $102 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and property, plant and equipment of $151 million as of December 31, 2010, related to Brazil Telecom, which was reflected as
discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

(3) Excludes revenue of $102 million, $116 million and $113 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively,
and property, plant and equipment of $189 million as of December 31, 2010, related to our Argentina distribution businesses, which were
reflected as discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and
Consolidated Balance Sheets.
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(4) Excludes revenue of $17 million, $21 million and $11 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and
property, plant and equipment of $20 million as of December 31, 2010, related to carbon reduction projects, which were reflected as
discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

(5) Excludes property, plant and equipment of $620 million and $667 million as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively, related to
Cartagena, which was reflected as businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets.

(6) Maritza and our wind project in Bulgaria were under development and therefore not operational as of December 31, 2009. Our wind
project in Bulgaria started operations in 2010 and Maritza started operations in June 2011.

(7) Excludes revenue of $14 million, $44 million and $58 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively, and
property, plant and equipment of $7 million as of December 31, 2010, related to Borsod and Tiszapalkonya, which were reflected as
discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

(8) Excludes revenue of $129 million and $163 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, related to Ras Laffan,
which was reflected as discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(9) Excludes revenue of $299 million and $470 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, related to Lal Pir and
Pak Gen, which were reflected as discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of
Operations.

(10) Excludes revenue of $62 million and $101 million for the years ended December 31, 2010 and 2009, respectively, related to Barka, which
was reflected as discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations.

(11) Excludes revenue of $1 million for the year ended December 31, 2011, and property, plant and equipment of $2 million and $18 million as
of December 31, 2011, and 2010, respectively, related to alternative energy and carbon reduction projects, which were reflected as
discontinued operations and businesses held for sale in the accompanying Consolidated Statements of Operations and Consolidated
Balance Sheets.

17. SHARE-BASED COMPENSATION

STOCK OPTIONS�AES grants options to purchase shares of common stock under stock option plans. Under the terms of the plans, the
Company may issue options to purchase shares of the Company�s common stock at a price equal to 100% of the market price at the date the
option is granted. Stock options are generally granted based upon a percentage of an employee�s base salary. Stock options issued under these
plans in 2011, 2010 and 2009 have a three-year vesting schedule and vest in one-third increments over the three-year period. The stock options
have a contractual term of ten years. At December 31, 2011, approximately 17 million shares were remaining for award under the plans. In all
circumstances, stock options granted by AES do not entitle the holder the right, or obligate AES, to settle the stock option in cash or other assets
of AES.

The weighted average fair value of each option grant has been estimated, as of the grant date, using the Black-Scholes option-pricing model with
the following weighted average assumptions:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009

Expected volatility 31% 38% 66% 
Expected annual dividend yield 0% 0% 0% 
Expected option term (years) 6 6 6
Risk-free interest rate 2.65% 2.86% 2.01% 
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The Company exclusively relies on implied volatility as the expected volatility to determine the fair value using the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model. The implied volatility may be exclusively relied upon due to the following factors:

� The Company utilizes a valuation model that is based on a constant volatility assumption to value its employee share options;

� The implied volatility is derived from options to purchase AES common stock that are actively traded;

� The market prices of both the traded options and the underlying shares are measured at a similar point in time and on a date
reasonably close to the grant date of the employee share options;

� The traded options have exercise prices that are both near-the-money and close to the exercise price of the employee share options;
and

� The remaining maturities of the traded options on which the estimate is based are at least one year.
Pursuant to share-based compensation accounting guidance, the Company used a simplified method to determine the expected term based on the
average of the original contractual term and the pro rata vesting period. This simplified method was used for stock options granted during 2011,
2010 and 2009. This is appropriate given a lack of relevant stock option exercise data. This simplified method may be used as the Company�s
stock options have the following characteristics:

� The stock options are granted at-the-money;

� Exercisability is conditional only on performing service through the vesting date;

� If an employee terminates service prior to vesting, the employee forfeits the stock options;

� If an employee terminates service after vesting, the employee has a limited time to exercise the stock option; and

� The stock option is nonhedgeable and not transferable.
The Company does not discount the grant date fair values to estimate post-vesting restrictions. Post-vesting restrictions include black-out periods
when the employee is not able to exercise stock options based on their potential knowledge of information prior to the release of that information
to the public.
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Using the above assumptions, the weighted average fair value of each stock option granted was $4.54, $5.08 and $4.08, for the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, respectively.

The following table summarizes the components of stock-based compensation related to employee stock options recognized in the Company�s
financial statements:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
Pre-tax compensation expense $ 7 $ 9 $ 10
Tax benefit (2) (2) (3) 

Stock options expense, net of tax $ 5 $ 7 $ 7

Total intrinsic value of options exercised $ 8 $ 2 $ 3
Total fair value of options vested 7 11 13
Cash received from the exercise of stock options 4 2 6
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There was no cash used to settle stock options or compensation cost capitalized as part of the cost of an asset for the years ended December 31,
2011, 2010 and 2009. As of December 31, 2011, $3 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to stock options is expected to be
recognized over a weighted average period of 1.8 years. During the year ended December 31, 2011, modifications were made to stock option
awards affecting 2 million stock options.

A summary of the option activity for the year ended December 31, 2011 follows (number of options in thousands, dollars in millions except per
option amounts):

Options

Weighted
Average
Exercise
Price

Weighted Average
Remaining

Contractual Term
(in years)

Aggregate

Intrinsic
Value

Outstanding at December 31, 2010 20,482 $ 16.04
Exercised (958) 4.21
Forfeited and expired (11,197) 17.72
Granted 1,131 12.60

Outstanding at December 31, 2011 9,458 $ 13.82 4.8 $ 17

Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2011 9,379 $ 13.84 4.7 $ 16

Eligible for exercise at December 31, 2011 7,385 $ 14.58 4.1 $ 14

The aggregate intrinsic value in the table above represents the total pre-tax intrinsic value (the difference between the Company�s closing stock
price on the last trading day of the fourth quarter of 2011 and the exercise price, multiplied by the number of in-the-money options) that would
have been received by the option holders had all option holders exercised their options on December 31, 2011. The amount of the aggregate
intrinsic value will change based on the fair market value of the Company�s stock.

The Company initially recognizes compensation cost on the estimated number of instruments for which the requisite service is expected to be
rendered. In 2011, AES has estimated a forfeiture rate of 12.81% for stock options granted in 2011. This estimate will be revised if subsequent
information indicates that the actual number of instruments forfeited is likely to differ from previous estimates. Based on the estimated forfeiture
rate, the Company expects to expense $4.4 million on a straight-line basis over a three year period (approximately $1.5 million per year) related
to stock options granted during the year ended December 31, 2011.

RESTRICTED STOCK

Restricted Stock Units Without Market Conditions�The Company issues restricted stock units (�RSUs�) without market conditions under its
long-term compensation plan. The RSUs are generally granted based upon a percentage of the participant�s base salary. The units have a
three-year vesting schedule and vest in one-third increments over the three-year period. Units granted prior to 2011 are required to be held for an
additional two years before they can be converted into shares, and thus become transferable. There is no such requirement for units granted in
2011. In all circumstances, restricted stock units granted by AES do not entitle the holder the right, or obligate AES, to settle the restricted stock
unit in cash or other assets of AES.

For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009, RSUs issued without a market condition had a grant date fair value equal to the closing
price of the Company�s stock on the grant date. The Company does not discount the grant date fair values to reflect any post-vesting restrictions.
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granted to employees during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010, and 2009 had grant date fair values per RSU of $12.65, $12.18 and
$6.71, respectively. The total grant date fair value of RSUs granted in 2011 without a market condition was $20 million.

The following table summarizes the components of the Company�s stock-based compensation related to its employee RSUs issued without
market conditions recognized in the Company�s consolidated financial statements:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
RSU expense before income tax $ 11 $ 11 $ 11
Tax benefit (3) (2) (3) 

RSU expense, net of tax $ 8 $ 9 $ 8

Total value of RSUs converted(1) $ 5 $ 5 $ 7
Total fair value of RSUs vested $ 10 $ 12 $ 12

(1) Amount represents fair market value on the date of conversion.
There was no cash used to settle RSUs or compensation cost capitalized as part of the cost of an asset for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009. As of December 31, 2011, $14 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to RSUs without a market condition is
expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 1.9 years. There were no modifications to RSU awards during the
year ended December 31, 2011.

A summary of the activity of RSUs without a market condition for the year ended December 31, 2011 follows (number of RSUs in thousands):

RSUs

Weighted Average
Grant 

Date Fair
Values

Weighted 
Average

Remaining
Vesting
Term

Nonvested at December 31, 2010 2,167 $ 10.20
Vested (982) 10.91
Forfeited and expired (395) 12.16
Granted 1,565 12.65

Nonvested at December 31, 2011 2,355 $ 11.40 1.6

Vested at December 31, 2011 2,620 $ 13.97
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2011 4,788 $ 12.77

The table below summarizes the RSUs without a market condition that vested and were converted during the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009 (number of RSUs in thousands):
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December 31,
2011 2010 2009

RSUs vested during the year 982 929 619
RSUs converted during the year(1) 442 386 772

(1) Net of shares withheld for taxes of 150,000, 127,000 and 238,000 in the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
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Restricted Stock Units With Market and Performance Conditions�Restricted stock units were issued to officers of the Company during 2011
that contain market and performance conditions. 50% percent of the RSUs contained in the award include a market condition and the remaining
50% include a performance condition. Vesting will occur if the applicable continued employment conditions are satisfied and (a) for the units
subject to the market condition the Total Stockholder Return (�TSR�) on AES common stock exceeds the TSR of the Standard and Poor�s 500
(�S&P 500�) over the three-year measurement period beginning on January 1, 2011 and ending on December 31, 2013 and (b) for the units subject
to the performance condition if the actual Cash Value Added (�CVA�) meets the performance target over the three-year measurement period of
beginning on January 1, 2011 and ending on December 31, 2013. In all circumstances, restricted stock units granted by AES do not entitle the
holder the right, or obligate AES, to settle the restricted stock unit in cash or other assets of AES.

Restricted stock units with a market condition were awarded to officers of the Company in previous years and contained only the market
condition measuring the TSR on AES common stock. These units were required to be held for an additional two years subsequent to vesting
before they could be converted into shares and become transferable. There is no such requirement for the shares granted during 2011.

The effect of the market condition on restricted stock units issued to officers of the Company is reflected in the award�s fair value on the grant
date for the year ended December 31, 2011. A factor of 137% was applied to the closing price of the Company�s stock on the date of grant to
estimate the fair value to reflect the market condition for the portion of RSUs with market conditions granted during the year ended
December 31, 2011. RSUs that included a market condition granted during the year ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 had a grant date
fair value per RSU of $17.68, $11.57 and $6.68, respectively. The fair value of the RSUs with a performance condition had a grant date fair
value of $12.88 equal to the closing price of the Company�s stock on the grant date. The Company believes that it is probable that the
performance condition will be met. This will continue to be evaluated throughout the performance period. The total grant date fair value of
RSUs with market and performance conditions granted in 2011 was $12 million. If the factor was not applied to reflect the market condition for
RSUs issued to officers, the total grant date fair value of RSUs with a market condition granted during the year ended December 31, 2011 would
have decreased by $2 million.

The following table summarizes the components of the Company�s stock-based compensation related to its RSUs granted with market and
performance conditions recognized in the Company�s consolidated financial statements:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
RSU expense before income tax $ 5 $ 4 $ 4
Tax benefit (1) (1) (1) 

RSU expense, net of tax $ 4 $ 3 $ 3

Total value of RSUs converted(1) $ �  $ 3 $ 4
Total fair value of RSUs vested(2) $ �  $ �  $ �  

(1) Amount represents fair market value on the date of conversion.
(2) RSUs granted in 2008 with a market condition did not vest in 2011 because the TSR on AES common stock did not exceed the TSR of the

S&P 500 over the three year vesting period.
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There was no cash used to settle RSUs or compensation cost capitalized as part of the cost of an asset for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009. As of December 31, 2011, $6 million of total unrecognized compensation cost related to RSUs with market and performance
conditions is expected to be recognized over a weighted average period of approximately 2.0 years. There were no modifications to RSU awards
during the year ended December 31, 2011.

A summary of the activity of RSUs with market and performance conditions for the year ended December 31, 2011 follows (number of RSUs in
thousands):

RSUs

Weighted Average
Grant Date Fair

Values

Weighted Average
Remaining
Vesting Term

Nonvested at December 31, 2010 1,283 $ 9.80
Vested �  �  
Forfeited and expired (693) 13.94
Granted 767 15.28

Nonvested at December 31, 2011 1,357 $ 10.78 1.1

Vested at December 31, 2011 �  $ �  
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 2011 1,268 $ 10.55

The table below summarizes the RSUs with market and performance conditions that vested and were converted during the years ended 2011,
2010 and 2009 (number of RSUs in thousands):

December 31,
2011 2010 2009

RSUs vested during the year �  �  �  
RSUs converted during the year(1) �  245 410

(1) Net of shares withheld for taxes of 0, 102,000 and 153,000 during the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.
18. SUBSIDIARY STOCK

Subsidiaries of the Company held cumulative preferred stock of $78 million and $60 million at December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively,
consisting of preferred stock held by IPL and DPL.

IPL, the Company�s integrated utility in Indiana, had $60 million of cumulative preferred stock outstanding at December 31, 2011 and 2010,
which represented five series of preferred stock. The total annual dividend requirements were approximately $3 million at December 31, 2011
and 2010. Certain series of the preferred stock were redeemable solely at the option of the issuer at prices between $100 and $118 per share.
Holders of the preferred stock are entitled to elect a majority of IPL�s board of directors if IPL has not paid dividends to its preferred stockholders
for four consecutive quarters. Based on the preferred stockholders� ability to elect a majority of IPL�s board of directors in this circumstance, the
redemption of the preferred shares is considered to be not solely within the control of the issuer and the preferred stock is considered temporary
equity and presented in the mezzanine level of the Consolidated Balance Sheets in accordance with the relevant accounting guidance for
noncontrolling interests and redeemable securities.
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DPL, the Company�s newly acquired utility in Ohio, had $18 million of cumulative preferred stock outstanding at December 31, 2011, which
represented three series of preferred stock issued by DP&L, a wholly
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owned subsidiary of DPL. The total annual dividend requirements were approximately $1 million at December 31, 2011. The DP&L preferred
stock may be redeemed at DP&L�s option as determined by its board of directors at per-share redemption prices between $101 and $103 per
share, plus cumulative preferred dividends. In addition, DP&L�s Amended Articles of Incorporation contain provisions that permit preferred
stockholders to elect members of the DP&L Board of Directors in the event that cumulative dividends on the preferred stock are in arrears in an
aggregate amount equivalent to at least four full quarterly dividends. Based on the preferred stockholders� ability to elect members of DP&L�s
board of directors in this circumstance, the redemption of the preferred shares is considered to be not solely within the control of the issuer and
the preferred stock is considered temporary equity and presented in the mezzanine level of the Consolidated Balance Sheets in accordance with
the relevant accounting guidance for noncontrolling interests and redeemable securities.

In February 2009, in connection with a preemptive rights period associated with a share issuance (capital increase) at AES Gener, Inversiones
Cachagua Limitada (�Cachagua�), a wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, paid $175 million to AES Gener to maintain its current ownership
percentage of approximately 70.6%.

19. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSE

The components of other income are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
  2011    2010    2009  

(in millions)
Gain on extinguishment of tax and other liabilities $ 14 $ 62 $ 168
Tax credit settlement 31 �  129
Performance incentive fee �  �  80
Gain on sale of assets 47 12 14
Other 57 26 68

Total other income $ 149 $ 100 $ 459

Other income generally includes gains on asset sales and extinguishments of liabilities, favorable judgments on contingencies, and other income
from miscellaneous transactions.

Other income of $149 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 included an additional tax credit settlement from a favorable court decision
in 2011 concerning reimbursement of excess non-income taxes paid from 1989 to 1992 at Eletropaulo and the reimbursement of income tax
expense recognized related to an indemnity agreement between Los Mina and the Dominican Republic government. Other income also includes
the gain on the sale of assets at Gener and Eletropaulo, sale of Huntington Beach units 3 & 4 at Southland and sale of land and minerals rights at
IPL.

Other income of $100 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 included the extinguishment of a swap liability owed by two of our
Brazilian subsidiaries, resulting in the recognition of a $62 million gain. The net impact to the Company after taxes and noncontrolling interest
was $9 million. Other income also included a gain on sale of assets at Eletropaulo.

Other income of $459 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 included $165 million from the reduction in interest and penalties
associated with federal tax debts at Eletropaulo and Sul as a result of the Programa de Recuperacao Fiscal (�REFIS�) program and a $129 million
gain related to a favorable court
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decision enabling Eletropaulo to receive reimbursement of excess non-income taxes paid from 1989 to 1992 in the form of tax credits to be
applied against future tax liabilities. The net impact to the Company after income taxes and noncontrolling interests for these items was $44
million. In addition, the Company recognized income of $80 million from a performance incentive bonus for management services provided to
Ekibastuz and Maikuben in 2008.

The management agreement was related to the sale of these businesses in Kazakhstan in May 2008; see further discussion of this transaction in
Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions.

The components of other expense are summarized as follows:

Years Ended December 31,
  2011    2010    2009  

(in millions)
Loss on sale and disposal of assets $ 70 $ 84 $ 33
Gener gas settlement �  72 �  
Loss on extinguishment of debt 62 37 �  
Wind Generation transaction costs �  22 �  
Other 24 19 71

Total other expense $ 156 $ 234 $ 104

Other expense generally includes losses on asset sales, losses on extinguishment of debt, legal contingencies and losses from other
miscellaneous transactions.

Other expense of $156 million for the year ended December 31, 2011 included $36 million that is primarily related to the premium paid on early
retirement of debt at Gener, $15 million related to the early retirement of senior notes due in 2011 at IPALCO and loss on disposal of assets at
Eletropaulo and TermoAndes.

Other expense of $234 million for the year ended December 31, 2010 included $72 million for a settlement agreement of gas transportation
contracts at Gener. There were also previously capitalized transaction costs of $22 million that were incurred in connection with the preparation
for the sale of a noncontrolling interest in our Wind Generation business. These costs were written off upon the expiration of the letter of intent
on June 30, 2010. In addition, there were losses on disposal of assets at Eletropaulo, Panama, and Gener, an $18 million loss on debt
extinguishment at Andres and Itabo, and a $15 million loss at the Parent Company from the retirement of senior notes.

Other expense of $104 million for the year ended December 31, 2009 included a $13 million loss recognized when three of our businesses in the
Dominican Republic received $110 million par value bonds issued by the Dominican Republic government to settle existing accounts receivable
for the same amount from the government-owned distribution companies. The loss represented an adjustment to reflect the fair value of the
bonds on the date received. Other expenses also included losses on the disposal of assets at Eletropaulo and Andres and contingencies at Alicura
in Argentina and our businesses in Kazakhstan.
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20. IMPAIRMENT EXPENSE

Asset Impairment

Asset impairment expense for the year ended December 31, 2011 consisted of:

2011
(in millions)

Wind turbines & deposits $ 116
Tisza II 52
Kelanitissa 42
Other 15

Total $ 225

Wind Turbines & Deposits�During the third quarter of 2011, the Company evaluated the future use of certain wind turbines held in storage
pending their installation. Due to reduced wind turbine market pricing and advances in turbine technology, the Company determined it was more
likely than not that the turbines would be sold significantly before the end of their previously estimated useful lives. In addition, the Company
has concluded that more likely than not non-refundable deposits it had made in prior years to a turbine manufacturer for the purchase of wind
turbines are not recoverable. The Company determined it was more likely than not that it would not proceed with the purchase of turbines due to
the availability of more advanced and lower cost turbines in the market. These developments were more likely than not as of September 30,
2011 and as a result were considered impairment indicators and the Company determined that an impairment had occurred as of September 30,
2011 as the aggregate carrying amount of $161 million of these assets was not recoverable and was reduced to their estimated fair value of $45
million determined under the market approach. This resulted in asset impairment expense of $116 million. Wind Generation is reported in the
Corporate and Other segment. In January 2012, the Company forfeited the deposits for which a full impairment charge was recognized in the
third quarter of 2011, and there is no obligation for further payments under the related turbine supply agreement. Additionally, the Company
sold some of the turbines held in storage during the fourth quarter of 2011 and is continuing to evaluate the future use of the turbines held in
storage. The Company determined it is more likely than not that they will be sold, however they are not being actively marketed for sale at this
time as the Company is reconsidering the potential use of the turbines in light of recent development activity at one of its advance stage
development projects. It is reasonably possible that the turbines could incur further loss in value due to changing market conditions and advances
in technology.

Tisza II�During the fourth quarter of 2011, Tisza II, a 900 MW gas and oil-fired generation plant in Hungary entered into annual negotiations
with its offtaker. As a result of these negotiations, as well as the further deterioration of the economic environment in Hungary, the Company
determined that an indicator of impairment existed at December 31, 2011. Thus, the Company performed an asset impairment test and
determined that based on the undiscounted cash flow analysis, the carrying amount of Tisza II asset group was not recoverable. The fair value of
the asset group was then determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. The carrying value of the Tisza II asset group of $94 million
exceeded the fair value of $42 million resulting in the recognition of asset impairment expense of $52 million during the three months ended
December 31, 2011. Tisza II is reported in the Europe Generation reportable segment.

Kelanitissa�In 2011, the Company recognized asset impairment expense of $42 million for the long-lived assets of Kelanitissa, our diesel-fired
generation plant in Sri Lanka. We have continued to evaluate the recoverability of our long-lived assets at Kelanitissa as a result of both the
existing government regulation which
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may require the government to acquire an ownership interest and the current expectation of future losses. Our evaluation indicated that the
long-lived assets were no longer recoverable and, accordingly, they were written down to their estimated fair value of $24 million based on a
discounted cash flow analysis. The long-lived assets had a carrying amount of $66 million prior to the recognition of asset impairment expense.
Kelanitissa is a Build-operate-transfer (BOT) generation facility and payments under its PPA are scheduled to decline over the PPA term. It is
possible that further impairment charges may be required in the future as Kelanitissa gets closer to the BOT date. Kelanitissa is reported in the
Asia Generation reportable segment.

Asset impairment expense for the year ended December 31, 2010 consisted of:

2010
(in millions)

Southland (Huntington Beach) $ 200
Tisza II 85
Deepwater 79
Other 25

Total $ 389

Southland�In September 2010, a new environmental policy on the use of ocean water to cool generation facilities was issued in California that
requires generation plants to comply with the policy by December 31, 2020 and would require significant capital expenditure or plants�
shutdown. The Company�s Huntington Beach gas-fired generation facility in California, which is part of AES� Southland business, was impacted
by the new policy. The Company performed an asset impairment test and determined the fair value of the asset group using a discounted cash
flow analysis. The carrying value of the asset group of $288 million exceeded the fair value of $88 million resulting in the recognition of asset
impairment expense of $200 million for the year ended December 31, 2010. Southland is reported in the North America Generation reportable
segment.

Tisza II�During the third quarter of 2010, the Company entered into annual negotiations with the offtaker of Tisza II. As a result of these
preliminary negotiations, as well as the further deterioration of the economic environment in Hungary, the Company determined that an
indicator of impairment existed at September 30, 2010. Thus, the Company performed an asset impairment test and determined that based on the
undiscounted cash flow analysis, the carrying amount of the Tisza II asset group was not recoverable. The fair value of the asset group was then
determined using a discounted cash flow analysis. The carrying value of the Tisza II asset group of $160 million exceeded the fair value of $75
million resulting in the recognition of asset impairment expense of $85 million during the year ended December 31, 2010.

Deepwater�In 2010, Deepwater, our 160 MW petcoke-fired merchant power plant located in Texas, experienced deteriorating market conditions
due to increasing petcoke prices and diminishing power prices. As a result, Deepwater incurred operating losses and was shut down from time to
time to avoid negative operating margin. In the fourth quarter of 2010, management concluded that, on an undiscounted cash flow basis, the
carrying amount of the asset group was no longer recoverable. The fair value of Deepwater was determined using a discounted cash flow
analysis and $79 million of impairment expense was recognized. Deepwater is reported in the North America Generation reportable segment.
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Asset impairment expense for the year ended December 31, 2009 consisted of:

2009
(in millions)

Piabanha $ 11
Other 9

Total $ 20

During the fourth quarter of 2009, the Company recognized a pre-tax long-lived asset impairment charge of $11 million related to the Company�s
Piabanha hydro project in Brazil. The Company determined that the carrying value exceeded the future discounted cash flows and abandoned the
project. Piabanha is reported in the Company�s Latin America Generation segment.

21. INCOME TAXES

INCOME TAX PROVISION

The following table summarizes the expense for income taxes on continuing operations, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
Federal:
Current $ �  $ (8) $ 3
Deferred (146) (121) (164) 
State:
Current 1 1 �  
Deferred 2 (19) (10) 
Foreign:
Current 852 678 527
Deferred (73) 48 201

Total $ 636 $ 579 $ 557

EFFECTIVE AND STATUTORY RATE RECONCILIATION

The following table summarizes a reconciliation of the U.S. statutory federal income tax rate to the Company�s effective tax rate, as a percentage
of income from continuing operations before taxes for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:

December 31,

Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 138



2011 2010 2009
Statutory Federal tax rate 35% 35% 35% 
State taxes, net of Federal tax benefit 0% -2% -1% 
Taxes on foreign earnings -3% -2% -5% 
Valuation allowance -3% 0% 0% 
Gain (loss) on sale of businesses 0% 4% -3% 
Chilean withholding tax reversals 0% -3% 0% 
Other�net 0% -1% -1% 

Effective tax rate 29% 31% 25% 
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The current income taxes receivable and payable are included in Other Current Assets and Accrued and Other Liabilities, respectively, on the
accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The noncurrent income taxes receivable and payable are included in Other Assets and Other
Long-Term Liabilities, respectively, on the accompanying Consolidated Balance Sheets. The following table summarizes the income taxes
receivable and payable as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
Income taxes receivable�current $ 565 $ 504
Income taxes receivable�noncurrent 21 21

Total income taxes receivable $ 586 $ 525

Income taxes payable�current $ 773 $ 678
Income taxes payable�noncurrent 3 5

Total income taxes payable $ 776 $ 683

DEFERRED INCOME TAXES�Deferred income taxes reflect the net tax effects of (a) temporary differences between the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities for financial reporting purposes and the amounts used for income tax purposes and (b) operating loss and tax credit
carryforwards. These items are stated at the enacted tax rates that are expected to be in effect when taxes are actually paid or recovered.

As of December 31, 2011, the Company had federal net operating loss carryforwards for tax purposes of approximately $2.1 billion expiring in
years 2023 to 2031. Approximately $73 million of the net operating loss carryforward related to stock option deductions will be recognized in
additional paid-in capital when realized. The Company also had federal general business tax credit carryforwards of approximately $18 million
expiring primarily from 2020 to 2031, and federal alternative minimum tax credits of approximately $5 million that carryforward without
expiration. The Company had state net operating loss carryforwards as of December 31, 2011 of approximately $5.0 billion expiring in years
2013 to 2031. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had foreign net operating loss carryforwards of approximately $3.1 billion that expire at
various times beginning in 2012 and some of which carryforward without expiration, and tax credits available in foreign jurisdictions of
approximately $23 million, $1 million of which expire in 2012 to 2014, $4 million of which expire in 2015 to 2022 and $18 million of which
carryforward without expiration.

Valuation allowances decreased $374 million during 2011 to $0.9 billion at December 31, 2011. This net decrease was primarily the result of the
release of a valuation allowance against certain foreign operating loss carryforwards which were written off in 2011 and a release of a valuation
allowance at one of our Brazillian subsidiaries.

Valuation allowances decreased $322 million during 2010 to $1.3 billion at December 31, 2010. This net decrease was primarily the result of the
release of valuation allowances against deferred tax assets at foreign subsidiaries.

The Company believes that it is more likely than not that the net deferred tax assets as shown below will be realized when future taxable income
is generated through the reversal of existing taxable temporary differences and income that is expected to be generated by businesses that have
long-term contracts or a history of generating taxable income. The Company continues to monitor the utilization of its deferred tax asset for its
U.S. consolidated net operating loss carryforward. Although management believes it is more likely
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than not that this deferred tax asset will be realized through generation of sufficient taxable income prior to expiration of the loss carryforwards,
such realization is not assured.

The following table summarizes the deferred tax assets and liabilities, as of December 31, 2011 and 2010:

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
Differences between book and tax basis of property $ 1,895 $ 1,260
Cumulative translation adjustment 38 94
Other taxable temporary differences 341 390

Total deferred tax liability 2,274 1,744

Operating loss carryforwards (1,482) (1,615) 
Capital loss carryforwards (112) (84) 
Bad debt and other book provisions (465) (522) 
Retirement costs (359) (313) 
Tax credit carryforwards (46) (52) 
Other deductible temporary differences (517) (390) 

Total gross deferred tax asset (2,981) (2,976) 

Less: valuation allowance 906 1,280

Total net deferred tax asset (2,075) (1,696) 

Net deferred tax (asset)/liability $ 199 $ 48

The Company considers undistributed earnings of certain foreign subsidiaries to be indefinitely reinvested outside of the United States and,
accordingly, no U.S. deferred taxes have been recorded with respect to such earnings in accordance with the relevant accounting guidance for
income taxes. Should the earnings be remitted as dividends, the Company may be subject to additional U.S. taxes, net of allowable foreign tax
credits. It is not practicable to estimate the amount of any additional taxes which may be payable on the undistributed earnings.

Income from operations in certain countries is subject to reduced tax rates as a result of satisfying specific commitments regarding employment
and capital investment. The Company�s income tax benefits related to the tax status of these operations are estimated to be $60 million,
$60 million and $35 million for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively. The per share effect of these benefits after
noncontrolling interests was $0.07, $0.07 and $0.04 for the year ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, respectively.

The following table summarizes the income (loss) from continuing operations, before income taxes, net equity in earnings of affiliates and
noncontrolling interests, for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009:
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December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
U.S. $ (514) $ (527) $ (1,028) 
Non-U.S. 2,693 2,392 3,296

Total $ 2,179 $ 1,865 $ 2,268
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UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS

Uncertain tax positions have been classified as noncurrent income tax liabilities unless expected to be paid in one year. The Company�s policy for
interest and penalties related to income tax exposures is to recognize interest and penalties as a component of the provision for income taxes in
the Consolidated Statements of Operations.

As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, the total amount of gross accrued income tax related interest included in the Consolidated Balance Sheets
was $15 million and $12 million, respectively. The total amount of gross accrued income tax related penalties included in the Consolidated
Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 was $4 million and $4 million, respectively.

The total expense (benefit) for interest related to unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 amounted to
$3 million, $(10) million and $4 million, respectively. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the total expense (benefit) for
penalties related to unrecognized tax benefits amounted to $0 million, $(1) million and $0 million, respectively.

We are potentially subject to income tax audits in numerous jurisdictions in the U.S. and internationally until the applicable statute of limitations
expires. Tax audits by their nature are often complex and can require several years to complete. The following is a summary of tax years
potentially subject to examination in the significant tax and business jurisdictions in which we operate:

Jurisdiction

Tax Years
Subject to
Examination

Argentina 2005-2011
Brazil 2006-2011
Cameroon 2007-2011
Chile 1998-2011
Colombia 2008-2011
El Salvador 2008-2011
United Kingdom 2008-2011
United States (Federal) 1994-2011

As of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, the total amount of unrecognized tax benefits was $471 million, $437 million and $510 million,
respectively. The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits that would benefit the effective tax rate as of December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is
$424 million, $412 million and $484 million, respectively, of which $47 million, $51 million and $55 million, respectively, would be in the form
of tax attributes that would warrant a full valuation allowance.

The total amount of unrecognized tax benefits anticipated to result in a net decrease to unrecognized tax benefits within 12 months of
December 31, 2011 is estimated to be between $25 million and $34 million.
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The following is a reconciliation of the beginning and ending amounts of unrecognized tax benefits for the years ended December 31, 2011,
2010 and 2009:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Balance at January 1 $ 437 $ 510 $ 554
Additions for current year tax positions 7 14 72
Additions for tax positions of prior years 49 51 7
Reductions for tax positions of prior years (18) (46) (9) 
Effects of foreign currency translation (1) (2) 6
Settlements �  (67) (104) 
Lapse of statute of limitations (3) (23) (16) 

Balance at December 31 $ 471 $ 437 $ 510

The amount of settlements of uncertain tax positions in 2009 was primarily the result of a non-cash audit settlement for $105 million at a
Brazilian subsidiary which resulted in no tax expense or benefit.

The Company and certain of its subsidiaries are currently under examination by the relevant taxing authorities for various tax years. The
Company regularly assesses the potential outcome of these examinations in each of the taxing jurisdictions when determining the adequacy of
the amount of unrecognized tax benefit recorded. While it is often difficult to predict the final outcome or the timing of resolution of any
particular uncertain tax position, we believe we have appropriately accrued for our uncertain tax benefits. However, audit outcomes and the
timing of audit settlements and future events that would impact our previously recorded unrecognized tax benefits and the range of anticipated
increases or decreases in unrecognized tax benefits are subject to significant uncertainty. It is possible that the ultimate outcome of current or
future examinations may exceed our provision for current unrecognized tax benefits in amounts that could be material, but cannot be estimated
as of December 31, 2011. Our effective tax rate and net income in any given future period could therefore be materially impacted.

22. DISCONTINUED OPERATIONS AND HELD FOR SALE BUSINESSES

Discontinued operations include the results of the following businesses:

� Argentina distribution businesses (sold in November 2011);

� Eletropaulo Telecomunicacões Ltda. and AES Communications Rio de Janeiro S.A. (collectively, �Brazil Telecom�), our Brazil
telecommunication businesses (sold in October 2011);

� Carbon reduction projects (held for sale in December 2011);

� Wind projects (abandoned in December 2011);
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� Eastern Energy in New York (held for sale in March 2011);

� Borsod in Hungary (held for sale in March 2011);

� Thames in Connecticut (disposed of in December 2011);

� Barka in Oman (sold in August 2010);

� Lal Pir and Pak Gen in Pakistan (sold in June 2010); and

� Ras Laffan in Qatar (sold in October 2010).
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Information for businesses included in discontinued operations and the income (loss) on disposal and impairment on discontinued operations for
the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 is provided in the tables below:

Year ended December 31,
2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
Revenue $ 485 $ 1,310 $ 1,579

Income (loss) from operations of discontinued businesses, before taxes $ (124) $ (745) $ 146
Income tax (expense) benefit 27 270 (45) 

Income (loss) from operations of discontinued businesses, after taxes $ (97) $ (475) $ 101

Gain (loss) on disposal of discontinued businesses, after taxes $ 86 $ 64 $ (150) 

Gain (Loss) on Disposal of Discontinued Businesses

Year ended December 31,
Subsidiary 2011 2010 2009

(in millions)
Argentina distribution businesses $ (338) $ �  $ �  
Brazil Telecom 446 �  �  
Wind projects (22) �  �  
Barka �  80 �  
Lal Pir �  (6) (74) 
Pak Gen �  (16) (76) 
Ras Laffan �  6 �  

Gain (loss) on disposal, after taxes $ 86 $ 64 $ (150) 

Argentina distribution businesses�On November 17, 2011, the Company completed the sale of its 90% equity interest in Edelap and Edes, two
distribution companies in Argentina serving approximately 329,000 and 172,000 customers, respectively, and its 51% equity interest in Central
Dique, a 68 MW gas and diesel generation plant (collectively, �Argentina distribution businesses�) in Argentina. Net proceeds from the sale were
approximately $4 million. The Company recognized a loss on disposal of $338 million, net of tax, including $208 million due to the recognition
of cumulative translation losses. These businesses were previously reported in the Latin America Utilities segment.

Brazil Telecom�In October 2011, a subsidiary of the Company completed the sale of its ownership interest in two telecommunication companies
in Brazil. The Company held approximately 46% ownership interest in these companies through the subsidiary. The subsidiary received net
proceeds of approximately $893 million. The gain on sale was approximately $446 million, net of tax. These businesses were previously
reported in the Latin America Utilities segment.

Carbon reduction projects � In December 2011, the Company�s board of directors approved plans to sell its 100% equity interests in its carbon
reduction businesses in Asia and Latin America. The aggregate carrying amount of $49 million of these projects was written down as their
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of discontinued businesses. The impairment expense recognized was limited to the carrying amounts of the
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individual assets within the asset group, where the fair value was greater than the carrying amount. When the disposal group met the held for
sale criteria, the disposal group was measured at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost to sell. Carbon reduction projects were
previously reported in �Corporate and Other�.

Wind projects�In the fourth quarter of 2011, the Company determined that it would no longer pursue certain development projects in Poland and
the United Kingdom due to revisions in its growth strategy. As a result, the Company abandoned these projects and recognized the related
project development rights, which were previously included in intangible assets, as a loss on disposal of discontinued operations of $22 million,
net of tax. These wind projects were previously reported in �Corporate and Other�.

Eastern Energy�In March 2011, AES Eastern Energy (�AEE�) met the held for sale criteria and was reclassified from continuing operations to held
for sale. AEE operates four coal-fired power plants: Cayuga, Greenidge, Somerset and Westover, representing generation capacity of 1,169 MW
in the western New York power market. In 2010, AEE had recognized a pre-tax impairment expense of $827 million due to adverse market
conditions. AEE along with certain of its affiliates is currently under bankruptcy protection and is recorded as a cost method investment. See
Note 1 �General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further information. AEE was previously reported in the North America
Generation segment.

Borsod�In March 2011, Borsod, which holds two coal/biomass-fired generation plants in Hungary with generating capacity of 161 MW, met the
held for sale criteria and was reclassified from continuing operations to held for sale. Borsod is currently under liquidation and is recorded as a
cost method investment. See Note 1 �General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies for further information. Borsod was previously
reported in the Europe Generation segment.

Thames�In December 2011, Thames, a 208 MW coal-fired plant in Connecticut, met the discontinued operations criteria and its operating results
were retrospectively reflected as discontinued operations. Thames is currently under liquidation and is recorded as a cost method investment
with the historical operating results reflected in discontinued operations. See Note 1 �General and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
for further information. Thames was previously reported in the North America Generation segment.

Barka�On August 19, 2010, the Company completed the sale of its 35% ownership interest in Barka, a 456 MW combined cycle gas facility and
water desalination plant in Oman, and its 100% interest in two Barka related service companies. Total consideration received in the transaction
was approximately $170 million, of which $124 million was AES� portion. The Company recognized a gain on disposal of $80 million, net of
tax, during the year ended December 31, 2010. Barka was previously reported in the Asia Generation segment.

Lal Pir and Pak Gen�On June 11, 2010, the Company completed the sale of its 55% ownership in Lal Pir and Pak Gen, two oil-fired facilities in
Pakistan with respective generation capacities of 362 MW and 365 MW. Total consideration received in the transaction was approximately $117
million, of which $65 million was AES� portion. The Company recognized a loss on disposal of $150 million, net of tax, during the year ended
December 31, 2009 and impairment losses totaling $22 million, net of tax, during the year ended December 31, 2010 to reflect the change in the
carrying value of net assets of Lal Pir and Pak Gen subsequent to meeting the held for sale criteria as of December 31, 2009. These businesses
were previously reported in the Asia Generation segment.

Ras Laffan�On October 20, 2010, the Company completed the sale of its 55% equity interest in Ras Laffan, a 756 MW combined cycle gas plant
and a water desalination facility in Qatar, and the associated operations
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company for an aggregate proceeds of approximately $234 million. The Company recognized a gain on disposal of $6 million, net of tax, during
the year ended December 31, 2010. Ras Laffan was previously reported in the Asia Generation segment.

23. ACQUISITIONS AND DISPOSITIONS

Acquisitions

DPL� On November 28, 2011, AES completed its acquisition of 100% of the common stock of DPL for approximately $3.5 billion, pursuant to
the terms and conditions of a definitive agreement (the �Merger Agreement�) dated April 19, 2011. DPL serves over 500,000 customers, primarily
West Central Ohio, through its operating subsidiaries DP&L and DPL Energy Resources (�DPLER�). Additionally, DPL operates over 3,800 MW
of power generation facilities and provides competitive retail energy services to residential, commercial, industrial and governmental customers.
The Acquisition strengthens the Company�s U.S. utility operations by expanding in the Midwest and PJM, a regional transmission organization
serving several eastern states as part of the Eastern Interconnection. The Company expects to benefit from the regional scale provided by
Indianapolis Power & Light Company, its nearby integrated utility business in Indiana. AES funded the aggregate purchase consideration
through a combination of the following:

� the proceeds from a $1.05 billion term loan obtained in May 2011;

� the proceeds from a private offering of $1.0 billion notes in June 2011;

� temporary borrowings of $251 million under its revolving credit facility; and

� the proceeds from private offerings of $450 million aggregate principal amount of 6.50% senior notes due 2016 and $800 million
aggregate principal amount of 7.25% senior notes due 2021 (collectively, the �Notes�) in October 2011 by Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc.
(�Dolphin II�), a wholly-owned special purpose indirect subsidiary of AES, which was merged into DPL upon the completion of
acquisition.

The fair value of the consideration paid for DPL was as follows (in millions):

Agreed enterprise value $  4,719
Less: fair value of assumed long-term debt outstanding, net (1,255) 

Cash consideration paid to DPL�s common stockholders 3,464
Add: cash paid for outstanding stock-based awards 19

Total cash consideration paid $ 3,483
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The preliminary allocation of the purchase price to the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed is as follows (in millions):

Cash $ 116
Accounts receivable 278
Inventory 124
Other current assets 41
Property, plant and equipment 2,549
Intangible assets subject to amortization 166
Intangible assets�indefinite-lived 5
Regulatory assets 201
Other noncurrent assets 58
Current liabilities (401) 
Non-recourse debt (1,255) 
Deferred taxes (558) 
Regulatory liabilities (117) 
Other noncurrent liabilities (195) 
Redeemable preferred stock (18) 

Net identifiable assets acquired 994
Goodwill 2,489

Net assets acquired $ 3,483

At December 31, 2011, the assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition were recorded at provisional amounts based on the
preliminary purchase price allocation. The Company is in the process of obtaining additional information to identify and measure all assets
acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition within the measurement period, which could be up to one year from the date of acquisition.
Such provisional amounts will be retrospectively adjusted to reflect any new information about facts and circumstances that existed at the
acquisition date that, if known, would have affected the measurement of these amounts. Additionally, key input assumptions and their sensitivity
to the valuation of assets acquired and liabilities assumed are currently being reviewed by management. It is likely that the value of the
generation business related property, plant and equipment, the intangible asset related to the Electric Security Plan with its regulated customers
and long-term coal contracts, the 4.9% equity ownership interest in the Ohio Valley Electric Corporation, and deferred taxes could change as the
valuation process is finalized. DPLER, DPL�s wholly-owned Competitive Retail Electric Service (�CRES�) provider, will also likely have changes
in its initial purchase price allocation for the valuation of its intangible assets for the trade name, and customer relationships and contracts.

As noted in the table above, the preliminary purchase price allocation has resulted in the recognition of $ 2.5 billion of goodwill. Factors
primarily contributing to a price in excess of the fair value of the net tangible and intangible assets include, but are not limited to: the ability to
expand the U.S. utility platform in the Mid-West market, the ability to capitalize on utility management experience gained from IPL, enhanced
ability to negotiate with suppliers of fuel and energy, the ability to capture value associated with AES� U.S. tax position, a well-positioned
generating fleet, the ability of DPL to leverage its assembled workforce to take advantage of growth opportunities, etc. Our ability to realize the
benefit of DPL�s goodwill depends on the realization of expected benefits resulting from a successful integration of DPL into AES� existing
operations and our ability to respond to the changes in the Ohio utility market. For example, utilities in Ohio continue to face downward pressure
on operating margins due to the evolving regulatory environment, which is moving towards a market-based competitive pricing mechanism. At
the same time, the declining energy prices are also reducing operating
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margins across the utility industry. These competitive forces could adversely impact the future operating performance of DPL and may result in
impairment of its goodwill. Goodwill resulting from the acquisition has been assigned to two reporting units identified within DPL (i.e., DP&L,
the regulated utility component and DPLER, the competitive retail component). However, the majority of the goodwill has been assigned to
DP&L. DPL has been included in the North America Utility segment, which is primarily expected to benefit from the acquisition.

Actual DPL revenue and net income attributable to The AES Corporation included in AES� Consolidated Statement of Operations for the year
ended December 31, 2011, and AES� unaudited pro forma 2011 and 2010 revenue and net income attributable to AES, including DPL, as if the
acquisition had occurred January 1, 2010, are as follows:

Revenue

Net Income (Loss)
Attributable to The

AES
Corporation

(in millions)
Actual from November 28, 2011�December 31, 2011 $ 154 $ (6) 
Pro forma for 2011 (unaudited) $ 18,945 $ 116
Pro forma for 2010 (unaudited) $ 17,659 $ 101

The pro forma financial information has been presented for illustrative purposes only and is not necessarily indicative of the results of operations
that would have been achieved had the acquisition been completed on the dates indicated, or the future consolidated results of operations of
AES.

Net income attributable to The AES Corporation in the table above has been reduced by the net of tax impact of pro forma adjustments of $92
million and $198 million for the years ended December 31, 2011 and 2010, respectively. These pro forma adjustments primarily include: the
amortization of fair value adjustment of DPL�s generation plant and equipment and intangible assets subject to amortization; interest expense on
additional borrowings made to finance the acquisition; third-party acquisition-related costs (primarily investment banking, advisory, accounting
and legal fees); and a reversal of bridge financing costs incurred in connection with the acquisition.

Ballylumford�In the second quarter of 2011, the Company finalized the purchase price allocation related to the acquisition of Ballylumford. There
were no significant adjustments made to the preliminary purchase price allocation recorded in the third quarter of 2010 when the acquisition was
completed.

Dispositions

Cartagena� On February 9, 2012, a subsidiary of the Company completed the sale of 80% of its interest in the wholly-owned holding company of
AES Energia Cartagena S.R.L. (�AES Cartagena�), a 1,199 MW gas-fired generation business in Spain. AES owned approximately 71% of AES
Cartagena through this holding company structure. Net proceeds from the sale were approximately �172 million ($229 million). Under the terms
of the sale agreement, Electrabel International Holdings B.V., the buyer (a subsidiary of GDF SUEZ S.A. or �GDFS�), has an option to purchase
AES� remaining 20% interest in the holding company for a fixed price of �28 million ($36 million) during a five month period beginning 13
months from February 9, 2012. Concurrent with the sale, GDFS settled the outstanding arbitration between the parties regarding certain
emissions costs and other taxes that AES Cartagena sought to recover from GDFS as energy manager under the existing commercial
arrangements. GDFS agreed to pay �71 million ($92 million) to AES Cartagena for such costs incurred by
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AES Cartagena for the 2008�2010 period and for 2011 through the date of sale close, of which �28 million ($38 million) was paid at closing. See
Item 3�Legal Proceedings of this Form 10-K for further information. Due to the Company�s expected continuing ownership interest extending
beyond one year from the completion of the sale of its 80% interest, prior period operating results of AES Cartagena have not been reclassified
as discontinued operations.

Ekibastuz and Maikuben� In 2009, the Company recognized $80 million performance incentive bonus as �Other income� and $98.5 million upon
termination of a management agreement as �Gain on sale of investments.� These amounts related to the sale of two wholly-owned subsidiaries in
Kazakhstan: Ekibastuz, a coal-fired generation plant, and Maikuben, a coal mine, which the Company had previously completed in 2008. Due to
the Company�s continuing involvement in the operations of these businesses extending beyond one year, their prior period operating results were
not reclassified as discontinued operations. Excluding the amounts mentioned above, Ekibastuz and Maikuben generated no revenue or net
income in 2011, 2010 and 2009.

24. EARNINGS PER SHARE

Basic and diluted earnings per share are based on the weighted average number of shares of common stock and potential common stock
outstanding during the period. Potential common stock, for purposes of determining diluted earnings per share, includes the effects of dilutive
restricted stock units, stock options and convertible securities. The effect of such potential common stock is computed using the treasury stock
method or the if-converted method, as applicable.

The following table presents a reconciliation of the numerators and denominators of the basic and diluted earnings per share computations for
income from continuing operations. In the table below, income represents the numerator (in millions) and shares represent the denominator
(in millions):

December 31, 2011 December 31, 2010 December 31, 2009

Income Shares
$ per
Share Income Shares

$ per
Share Income Shares

$ per
Share

BASIC EARNINGS PER SHARE
Income from continuing operations attributable to The
AES Corporation common stockholders $ 458 778 $ 0.59 $ 484 769 $ 0.63 $ 724 667 $ 1.09
EFFECT OF DILUTIVE SECURITIES
Stock options �  2 �  �  2 �  �  1 �  
Restricted stock units �  3 �  �  3 �  �  2 (0.01) 

DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE $ 458 783 $ 0.59 $ 484 774 $ 0.63 $ 724 670 $ 1.08

The calculation of diluted earnings per share excluded 6,479,841, 16,618,137 and 18,035,813 options outstanding at December 31, 2011, 2010
and 2009, respectively, that could potentially dilute basic earnings per share in the future. Those options were not included in the computation of
diluted earnings per share because the exercise price of those options exceeded the average market price during the related period. In 2011, 2010
and 2009, all convertible debentures were omitted from the earnings per share calculation because they were antidilutive. In arriving at income
attributable to AES Corporation common stockholders in computing basic earnings per share, dividends on preferred stock of our subsidiary
were deducted.

In addition, on March 15, 2010, the Company issued 125,468,788 shares of common stock to an investor as described in Note 15�Equity.
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25. RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

AES is a global power producer in 28 countries on five continents. See additional discussion of the Company�s principal markets in
Note 16�Segment and Geographic Information. Our principal lines of business are Generation and Utilities. The Generation line of business uses
a wide range of technologies, including coal, gas, hydroelectric, and biomass as fuel to generate electricity. Our Utilities business is comprised
of businesses that transmit, distribute, and in certain circumstances, generate power. In addition, the Company has operations in the renewables
area. These efforts include projects primarily in wind and solar.

OPERATING AND ECONOMIC RISKS�The Company operates in several developing economies where economic downturns could have a
significant impact on the overall macroeconomic conditions including the valuation of businesses. Deteriorating market conditions often expose
the Company to the risk of decreased earnings and cash flows due to, among other factors, adverse fluctuations in the commodities and foreign
currency spot markets. Additionally, credit markets around the globe continue to tighten their standards, which could impact our ability to
finance growth projects through access to capital markets. Currently, the Company has a below-investment grade rating from Standard & Poor�s
of BB-. This may limit the ability of the Company to finance new and existing development projects to cash currently available on hand and
through reinvestment of earnings. As of December 31, 2011, the Company had $1.7 billion of unrestricted cash and cash equivalents.

During 2011, approximately 87% of our revenue, and 53% of our revenue from discontinued businesses, was generated outside the United States
and a significant portion of our international operations is conducted in developing countries. We continue to invest in projects in developing
countries because the growth rates and the opportunity to implement operating improvements and achieve higher operating margins may be
greater than those typically achievable in more developed countries. International operations, particularly the operation, financing and
development of projects in developing countries, entail significant risks and uncertainties, including, without limitation:

� economic, social and political instability in any particular country or region;

� inability to economically hedge energy prices;

� volatility in commodity prices;

� adverse changes in currency exchange rates;

� government restrictions on converting currencies or repatriating funds;

� unexpected changes in foreign laws and regulations or in trade, monetary or fiscal policies;

� high inflation and monetary fluctuations;
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� restrictions on imports of coal, oil, gas or other raw materials required by our generation businesses to operate;

� threatened or consummated expropriation or nationalization of our assets by foreign governments;

� unwillingness of governments, government agencies, similar organizations or other counterparties to honor their commitments;

� unwillingness of governments, government agencies, courts or similar bodies to enforce contracts that are economically
advantageous to subsidiaries of the Company and economically unfavorable to counterparties, against such counterparties, whether
such counterparties are governments or private parties;

261

Edgar Filing: ERICKSON INC. - Form 4

Table of Contents 157



Table of Contents

THE AES CORPORATION

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS�(Continued)

DECEMBER 31, 2011, 2010, AND 2009

� inability to obtain access to fair and equitable political, regulatory, administrative and legal systems;

� adverse changes in government tax policy;

� difficulties in enforcing our contractual rights or enforcing judgments or obtaining a just result in local jurisdictions; and

� potentially adverse tax consequences of operating in multiple jurisdictions.
Any of these factors, individually or in combination with others, could materially and adversely affect our business, results of operations and
financial condition. In addition, our Latin American operations experience volatility in revenue and earnings which have caused and are
expected to cause significant volatility in our results of operations and cash flows. The volatility is caused by regulatory and economic
difficulties, political instability, indexation of certain PPAs to fuel prices, and currency fluctuations being experienced in many of these
countries. This volatility reduces the predictability and enhances the uncertainty associated with cash flows from these businesses.

Our inability to predict, influence or respond appropriately to changes in law or regulatory schemes, including any inability to obtain reasonable
increases in tariffs or tariff adjustments for increased expenses, could adversely impact our results of operations or our ability to meet publicly
announced projections or analysts� expectations. Furthermore, changes in laws or regulations or changes in the application or interpretation of
regulatory provisions in jurisdictions where we operate, particularly our Utilities businesses where electricity tariffs are subject to regulatory
review or approval, could adversely affect our business, including, but not limited to:

� changes in the determination, definition or classification of costs to be included as reimbursable or pass-through costs;

� changes in the definition or determination of controllable or noncontrollable costs;

� adverse changes in tax law;

� changes in the definition of events which may or may not qualify as changes in economic equilibrium;

� changes in the timing of tariff increases;

� other changes in the regulatory determinations under the relevant concessions; or

� changes in environmental regulations, including regulations relating to GHG emissions in any of our businesses.
Any of the above events may result in lower margins for the affected businesses, which can adversely affect our results of operations.
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FOREIGN CURRENCY RISKS�AES operates businesses in many foreign countries and such operations may be impacted by significant
fluctuations in foreign currency exchange rates. The Company�s financial position and results of operations have been significantly affected by
fluctuations in the value of the Brazilian real, the Argentine peso, the Dominican Republic peso, the Euro, the Chilean peso, the Colombian peso
and the Philippine peso relative to the U.S. Dollar.

CONCENTRATIONS�The Company does not have any significant concentration of customers and the sources of fuel supply. Although the
Company operates in primarily two lines of business, its operations are very
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diversified geographically. Several of the Company�s generation businesses rely on PPAs with one or a limited number of customers for the
majority of, and in some case all of, the relevant business� output over the term of the PPAs. However, no single customer accounted for 10% or
more of total revenue in 2011, 2010 or 2009.

The cash flows and results of operations of our businesses are dependent on the credit quality of their customers and the continued ability of
their customers and suppliers to meet their obligations under PPAs and fuel supply agreements. If a substantial portion of the Company�s
long-term PPAs and/or fuel supply were modified or terminated, the Company would be adversely affected to the extent that it was unable to
replace such contracts at equally favorable terms.

26. RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS

Our generation businesses in Panama are partially owned by the Government of Panama (the �Panamanian Government�). The Panamanian
Government, in turn, partially owns the distribution companies within Panama. For the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, our
Panamanian businesses recognized electricity sales to the Panamanian Government totaling $144 million, $146 million and $143 million,
respectively. For the same period, our Panamanian businesses purchased electricity, which excludes transmission charges from the Panamanian
Government, totaling $65 million, $21 million and $25 million, respectively. As of December 31, 2011 and 2010, our Panamanian businesses
owed the Panamanian Government $1 million and $4 million, respectively, payable on normal trade terms. For the same period, the Panamanian
Government owed our Panamanian businesses $19 million and $12 million, respectively, payable on normal trade terms.

Our generation businesses in the Dominican Republic are partially owned by the Government of the Dominican Republic (the �Dominican
Government�). The Dominican Government, in turn, owns the distribution companies within the Dominican Republic. For the years ended
December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009, our Dominican Republic businesses recognized electricity sales to the Dominican Government totaling
$227 million, $179 million and $204 million, respectively. For the same period, the Dominican Government owed our Dominican Republic
businesses $100 million and $88 million, respectively, payable on normal trade terms.

During the year, the Company sold 19% of its interest in Mong Duong to Stable Investment Corporation, a subsidiary of China Investment
Corporation. See Note 15�Equity for further information.
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27. SELECTED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL DATA (UNAUDITED)

Quarterly Financial Data

The following tables summarize the unaudited quarterly statements of operations for the Company for 2011 and 2010. Amounts have been
restated to reflect discontinued operations in all periods presented and reflect all adjustments necessary in the opinion of management for a fair
statement of the results for interim periods.

Quarter Ended 2011

Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30
Dec
31(1)

(in millions, except per share data)
Revenue $ 4,189 $ 4,471 $ 4,345 $ 4,269 

Gross margin 1,005 1,005 1,029 1,095 

Income from continuing operations, net of tax(2) 489 435 208 409 
Discontinued operations, net of tax (6) (8) (33) 36 

Net income $ 483 $ 427 $ 175 $ 445 

Net income (loss) attributable to The AES Corporation $ 224 $ 174 $ (131) $ (209)  

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax $ 0.30 $ 0.24 $ (0.08) $ 0.13 
Discontinued operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax (0.02) (0.02) (0.09) (0.40)  

Basic income (loss) per share attributable to
The AES Corporation $ 0.28 $ 0.22 $ (0.17) $ (0.27) 

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax $ 0.30 $ 0.24 $ (0.08) $ 0.12
Discontinued operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax (0.02) (0.02) (0.09) (0.39)  

Diluted income (loss) per share attributable to
The AES Corporation $ 0.28 $ 0.22 $ (0.17) $ (0.27) 
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Quarter Ended 2010
Mar 31 June 30 Sept 30 Dec 31

(in millions, except per share data)
Revenue $ 3,836 $ 3,838 $ 3,924 $ 4,230 

Gross margin 954 989 963 1,030 

Income from continuing operations, net of tax(3) 378 422 285 385 
Discontinued operations, net of tax 24 7 112 (554)  

Net income $ 402 $ 429 $ 397 $ (169)  

Net income (loss) attributable to The AES Corporation $ 187 $ 144 $ 114 $ (436)  

Basic income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax $ 0.25 $ 0.19 $ 0.05 $ 0.16 
Discontinued operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax 0.02 (0.01) 0.09 (0.71)  

Basic income (loss) per share attributable to
The AES Corporation $ 0.27 $ 0.18 $ 0.14 $ (0.55) 

Diluted income (loss) per share:
Income from continuing operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax $ 0.25 $ 0.19 $ 0.05 $ 0.16 
Discontinued operations attributable to
The AES Corporation, net of tax 0.02 (0.01) 0.09 (0.71)  

Diluted income (loss) per share attributable to
The AES Corporation $ 0.27 $ 0.18 $ 0.14 $ (0.55) 

(1) DPL was acquired on November 28, 2011 and its results of operations have been included in AES� consolidated results of operations from
the date of acquisition. See Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions for further information.

(2) Includes pretax impairment expense of $33 million, $147 million and $62 million, for the second, third and fourth quarters of 2011,
respectively. See Note 20�Impairment Expense and Note 9�Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets for additional discussion on these
impairment expenses.

(3) Includes pretax impairment expense of $315 million and $95 million, for the third and fourth quarters of 2010, respectively. See Note
20�Impairment Expense and Note 9�Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets for additional discussion on these impairment expenses.

28. SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
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Cartagena�The partial sale of Company�s interest in Cartagena was completed on February 9, 2012. See Note 23�Acquisitions and Dispositions for
further information.

Red Oak�On February 10, 2012, a subsidiary of the Company signed a sale agreement with a newly-formed portfolio company of Energy Capital
Partners II, LP for the sale of 100% of its membership interest in AES Red Oak, LLC and AES Sayreville, two wholly-owned subsidiaries, that
hold the Company�s interest in Red Oak, an 832 MW gas-fired generation business in New Jersey, for $147 million, subject to customary
purchase price adjustments. Under the terms of the sale agreement, the buyer will assume the existing net
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indebtedness of Red Oak. The sale is expected to close by the end of the first quarter of 2012 and the Company does not expect to recognize a
loss on the sale. Red Oak is reported in the North America Generation segment.

Ironwood�On February 23, 2012, a subsidiary of the Company signed a sale agreement with an indirect wholly-owned subsidiary of PPL
Corporation for the sale of 100% of its equity interest in AES Ironwood, Inc., a wholly-owned subsidiary, that holds the Company�s interest in
Ironwood, a 710 MW gas-fired generation business in Pennsylvania, for $87 million, subject to customary purchase price adjustments. Under the
terms of the sale agreement, the buyer will assume the existing net indebtedness of Ironwood. The sale is expected to close by the end of the first
quarter of 2012 and the Company does not expect to recognize a loss on the sale. Ironwood is reported in the North America Generation
segment.
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ITEM 9. CHANGES IN AND DISAGREEMENTS WITH ACCOUNTANTS ON ACCOUNTING AND FINANCIAL DISCLOSURE
None

ITEM 9A. CONTROLS AND PROCEDURES
Conclusion Regarding the Effectiveness of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

The Company maintains disclosure controls and procedures that are designed to ensure that information required to be disclosed in the reports
that the Company files or submits under the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended (the �Exchange Act�) is recorded, processed,
summarized and reported within the time periods specified in the SEC�s rules and forms, and that such information is accumulated and
communicated to the Chief Executive Officer (�CEO�) and Chief Financial Officer (�CFO�), as appropriate, to allow timely decisions regarding
required disclosures.

The Company carried out the evaluation required by Rules 13a-15(b) and 15d-15(b), under the supervision and with the participation of our
management, including the CEO and CFO, of the effectiveness of our �disclosure controls and procedures� (as defined in the Exchange Act
Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)). Based upon this evaluation, the CEO and CFO concluded that as of December 31, 2011, our disclosure controls
and procedures were effective.

On November 28, 2011, AES completed the acquisition of DPL and as a result, assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition have
been included in AES�s consolidated balance sheet at December 31, 2011. DPL�s total assets and total liabilities represented 13% and 11% of
AES�s consolidated total assets and total liabilities, respectively, at December 31, 2011. DPL�s net loss of $6 million for the period November 28,
2011 through December 31, 2011 was included in AES�s consolidated statement of operations for the year ended December 31, 2011. As
permitted by the SEC guidance, DPL�s internal control over financial reporting has been excluded from management�s formal evaluation of the
effectiveness of AES�s disclosure controls and procedures due to the timing of acquisition.

Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting

Management of the Company is responsible for establishing and maintaining adequate internal control over financial reporting, as defined in
Rule 13a-15(f) under the Exchange Act. The Company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable
assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with
GAAP and includes those policies and procedures that:

� pertain to the maintenance of records that in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the
assets of the Company;

� provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance
with GAAP, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of
management and directors of the Company; and

� provide reasonable assurance that unauthorized acquisition, use or disposition of the Company�s assets that could have a material
effect on the financial statements are prevented or detected timely.

Management, including our CEO and CFO, does not expect that our internal controls will prevent or detect all errors and all fraud. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operated, can provide only reasonable, not absolute, assurance that the objectives of the control system
are met. Further, the design of a control system must reflect the fact that there are resource constraints, and the benefits of controls must be
considered relative to their costs. In addition, any evaluation of the effectiveness of controls is subject to risks that those internal controls may
become inadequate in future periods because of changes in business conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures
deteriorates.
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Management assessed the effectiveness of our internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011. In making this assessment,
management used the criteria established in Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations
(�COSO�). Based on this assessment management, believes that the Company maintained effective internal control over financial reporting as of
December 31, 2011.

The effectiveness of the Company�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011, has been audited by Ernst & Young LLP,
an independent registered public accounting firm, as stated in their report, which appears herein.

The evaluation of internal control over financial reporting excludes DPL due to the reasons discussed in the Conclusion Regarding the
Effectiveness of Disclosure Control and Procedures above.

Changes in Internal Control Over Financial Reporting:

AES is currently evaluating the impact of DPL�s acquisition on its internal control over financial reporting. There were no changes that occurred
during the quarter ended December 31, 2011 that have materially affected, or are reasonably likely to materially affect, our internal control over
financial reporting.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

The Board of Directors and Stockholders of The AES Corporation:

We have audited The AES Corporation�s internal control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2011 based on criteria established in
Internal Control�Integrated Framework issued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission (the COSO criteria).
The AES Corporation�s management is responsible for maintaining effective internal control over financial reporting, and for its assessment of
the effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting included in the accompanying Management�s Report on Internal Control over
Financial Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the company�s internal control over financial reporting based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether effective internal control over financial reporting was
maintained in all material respects. Our audit included obtaining an understanding of internal control over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk, and
performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our
opinion.

A company�s internal control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial
reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A
company�s internal control over financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance
that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in accordance with authorizations of management and
directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized acquisition, use or
disposition of the company�s assets that could have a material effect on the financial statements.

Because of its inherent limitations, internal control over financial reporting may not prevent or detect misstatements. Also, projections of any
evaluation of effectiveness to future periods are subject to the risk that controls may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that
the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

As indicated in Item 9A, Management�s Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting, management�s assessment of and conclusion on the
effectiveness of internal control over financial reporting did not include the internal controls of DPL Inc., which is included in the 2011
consolidated financial statements of The AES Corporation and constituted 13% and 11% of total assets and total liabilities, respectively, as of
December 31, 2011 and 0.9% of revenue and contributed $6 million of net loss, respectively, for the year then ended. Our audit of internal
control over financial reporting of The AES Corporation also did not include an evaluation of the internal control over financial reporting of
DPL Inc.

In our opinion, The AES Corporation maintained, in all material respects, effective internal control over financial reporting as of December 31,
2011, based on the COSO criteria.

We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the consolidated
balance sheets of The AES Corporation as of December 31, 2011 and 2010, and the related consolidated statements of operations, stockholders�
equity, and cash flows for each of the three years in the period ended December 31, 2011 of The AES Corporation and our report dated
February 24, 2012 expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.

/s/ Ernst & Young LLP

McLean, Virginia

February 24, 2012
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ITEM 9B. OTHER INFORMATION.
None.

PART III

ITEM 10. DIRECTORS, EXECUTIVE OFFICERS AND CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
The following information is incorporated by reference from the Registrant�s Proxy Statement for the Registrant�s 2012 Annual Meeting of Stock
Holders which the Registrant expects will be filed on or around February 28, 2012 (the �2012 Proxy Statement�):

� information regarding the directors required by this item found under the heading Board of Directors;

� information regarding AES�s Code of Ethics found under the heading AES Code of Business Conduct and Corporate Governance
Guidelines;

� information regarding compliance with Section 16 of the Exchange Act required by this item found under the heading Governance
Matters�Section 16(a) Beneficial Ownership Reporting Compliance; and

� information regarding AES�s Financial Audit Committee found under the heading The Committees of the Board�Financial Audit
Committee (the �Audit Committee�).

Certain information regarding executive officers required by this Item is set forth as a supplementary item in Part I hereof (pursuant to
Instruction 3 to Item 401(b) of Regulation S-K). The other information required by this Item, to the extent not included above, will be contained
in our 2012 Proxy Statement and is herein incorporated by reference.

ITEM 11. EXECUTIVE COMPENSATION
The following information is contained in the 2012 Proxy Statement and is incorporated by reference: the information regarding executive
compensation contained under the heading Compensation Discussion and Analysis and the Compensation Committee Report on Executive
Compensation under the heading Report of the Compensation Committee.

ITEM 12. SECURITY OWNERSHIP OF CERTAIN BENEFICIAL OWNERS AND MANAGEMENT AND RELATED
STOCKHOLDER MATTERS

(a) Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners.
See the information contained under the caption �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors, and Executive Officers� of the
Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Registrant, which information is incorporated herein by reference.

(b) Security Ownership of Directors and Executive Officers.
See the information contained under the caption �Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners, Directors, and Executive Officers� of the
Proxy Statement for the 2012 Annual Meeting of Shareholders of the Registrant, which information is incorporated herein by reference.
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None.
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(d) Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans.
The following table provides information about shares of AES common stock that may be issued under AES� equity compensation plans, as of
December 31, 2011:

Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compensation Plans (As of December 31, 2011)

(a) (b) (c)

Plan category

Number of securities to
be issued upon

exercise
of outstanding

options,
warrants and right

Weighted average
exercise price of

outstanding options,
warrants and

rights

Number of securities
remaining available for
future issuance under

equity compensation plans
(excluding securities
reflected in column

(a))
Equity compensation plans approved by
security holders(1) 17,162,642(2) $ 13.85 17,298,997
Equity compensation plans not approved
by security holders(3) 32,339 $ 5.49 �  

Total 17,194,981 $ 13.82 17,298,997

(1) The following equity compensation plans have been approved by the Company�s Stockholders:
(A) The LTC Plan was adopted in 2003 and provided for 17,000,000 shares authorized for issuance thereunder. In 2008, an amendment

to the Plan to provide an additional 12,000,000 shares was approved by AES�s stockholders, bringing the total authorized shares to
29,000,000. In 2010, an additional amendment to the Plan to provide an additional 9,000,000 shares was approved by AES�s
stockholders, bringing the total authorized shares to 38,000,000. The weighted average exercise price of Options outstanding under
this plan included in Column (b) is $14.60 (excluding RSU awards), with 17,298,997 shares available for future issuance.

(B) The AES Corporation 2001 Stock Option Plan adopted in 2001 provided for 15,000,000 shares authorized for issuance. The
weighted average exercise price of Options outstanding under this plan included in Column (b) is $3.17. In conjunction with the
2010 amendment to the 2003 Long Term Compensation plan, ongoing award issuance from this plan was discontinued in 2010. Any
remaining shares under this plan, which are not reserved for issuance under outstanding awards, are not available for future issuance
and thus the amount of 5,393,189 shares is not included in Column (c) above.

(C) The AES Corporation 2001 Plan for outside directors adopted in 2001 provided for 2,750,000 shares authorized for issuance. The
weighted average exercise price of Options outstanding under this plan included in Column (b) is $8.16. In conjunction with the
2010 amendment to the 2003 Long Term Compensation plan, ongoing award issuance from this plan was discontinued in 2010. Any
remaining shares under this plan, which are not reserved for issuance under outstanding awards, are not available for future issuance
and thus the amount of 2,029,678 shares is not included in Column (c) above.

(D) The AES Corporation Second Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan for directors provided for 2,000,000 shares
authorized for issuance. Column (b) excludes the Director stock units granted thereunder. In conjunction with the 2010 amendment
to the 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan, ongoing award issuance from this plan was discontinued in 2010 as Director stock units
will be issued from the 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan. Any remaining shares under this plan, which are not reserved for
issuance under outstanding awards, are not available for future issuance and thus the amount of 105,341 shares is not included in
Column (c) above.

(E) The AES Corporation Incentive Stock Option Plan adopted in 1991 provided for 57,500,000 shares authorized for issuance. The
weighted average exercise price of Options outstanding under this plan included in Column (b) is $35.56. This plan terminated on
June 1, 2001, such that no additional grants may be granted under the plan after that date. Any remaining shares under this plan,
which are not reserved for issuance under outstanding awards, are not available for future issuance in light of this plan�s termination
and thus 24,353,052 shares are not included in Column (c) above.

(2) Includes 6,768,096 (of which 2,619,902 are vested and 4,148,194 are unvested) shares underlying RSU awards (assuming performance at a
maximum level), 969,117 shares underlying Director stock unit awards, and 9,425,429 shares issuable upon the exercise of Stock Option
grants, for an aggregate number of 17,162,642 shares.
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(3) The AES Corporation 2001 Non-Officer Stock Option Plan provided for 12,000,000 shares authorized for issuance. The weighted
average exercise price of Options outstanding under this plan shown in Column (b) is $5.49. In conjunction with the 2010
amendment to the 2003 Long Term Compensation plan, ongoing award issuance from this plan was discontinued in 2010. Any
remaining shares under this plan, which are not reserved for issuance under outstanding awards, are not available for future
issuance and thus the amount of 7,101,270 shares is not included in Column (c) above. This plan is described in the narrative
below.

The AES Corporation 2001 Non-Officer Stock Option Plan (the �2001 Plan�) was adopted by the Board on October 18, 2001, and became
effective October 25, 2001. The 2001 Plan did not require approval of AES�s stockholders under the SEC or NYSE rules and/or regulations at
that time. All employees that are not officers, directors or beneficial owners of more than 10% of AES�s common stock are eligible to participate
in the 2001 Plan. The total aggregate number of shares for which Options can be granted pursuant to the 2001 Plan is 12 million. As of
December 31, 2011, 16 employees held Options under the 2001 Plan. The exercise price of each Option awarded under the 2001 Plan is equal to
the fair market value of AES�s common stock on the grant date of the Option. Options under the 2001 Plan generally vest as to 50% of their
underlying shares on each anniversary of the Option grant date; however, grants dated October 25, 2001 vested in one year. Unless otherwise
provided by the Compensation Committee of the Board, upon the death or disability of an employee, or a change of control (as defined therein),
all Options granted under the 2001 Plan will become fully vested and exercisable. Unless otherwise provided by the Compensation Committee
of the Board, in the event that the employee�s employment with the Company terminates for any reason other than death or disability, all Options
held by such employee will automatically expire on the earlier of (a) the date the Option would have expired had the employee continued in such
employment, and (b) 180 days after the date that such employee�s employment ceases. The 2001 Plan expired on October 25, 2011.

ITEM 13. CERTAIN RELATIONSHIPS AND RELATED TRANSACTIONS, AND DIRECTOR INDEPENDENCE
The information regarding related party transactions required by this item is included in the 2012 Proxy Statement found under the headings
Transactions with Related Persons, Proposal I: Election of Directors and The Committees of the Board and are incorporated herein by reference.

ITEM 14. PRINCIPAL ACCOUNTANT FEES AND SERVICES
The information concerning principal accountant fees and services included in the 2012 Proxy Statement contained under the heading
Information Regarding The Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm�s Fees, Services and Independence and is incorporated herein by
reference.
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PART IV

ITEM 15. EXHIBITS AND FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

(a) Financial Statements.

Financial Statements and Schedules: Page
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2011 and 2010 167
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 168
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the years ended December 31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 169
Consolidated Statements of Changes in Stockholders� Equity for the years ended December  31, 2011, 2010 and 2009 170
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements 171
Schedules S-2-S-8

(b) Exhibits.

3.1 Sixth Restated Certificate of Incorporation of The AES Corporation is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the
Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

3.2 By-Laws of The AES Corporation, as amended and incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 3.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed
on August 11, 2009.

4 There are numerous instruments defining the rights of holders of long-term indebtedness of the Registrant and its consolidated
subsidiaries, none of which exceeds ten percent of the total assets of the Registrant and its subsidiaries on a consolidated basis. The
Registrant hereby agrees to furnish a copy of any of such agreements to the Commission upon request. Since these documents are
not required filings under Item 601 of Regulation S-K, the Company has elected to file certain of these documents as
Exhibits 4.(a)�4.(o).

4.(a) Junior Subordinated Indenture, dated as of March 1, 1997, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as successor to Bank One, National Association (formerly known as The First National Bank of Chicago) is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.(a) of the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

4.(b) Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 14, 1999, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as successor to Bank One, National Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.(b) of the Company�s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

4.(c) Senior Indenture, dated as of December 8, 1998, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association, as
successor to Bank One, National Association (formerly known as The First National Bank of Chicago) is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.01 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on December 11, 1998 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

4.(d) Form of Second Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 11, 1999, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as successor to Bank One, National Association (formerly known as The First National Bank of Chicago) is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.01 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on June 11, 1999 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

4.(e) Third Supplemental Indenture, dated as of September 12, 2000, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as successor to Bank One, National Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.(e) of the Company�s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

4.(f) Form of Fifth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 9, 2001, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association, as successor to Bank One, National Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company�s
Form 8-K filed on February 8, 2001 (SEC File No. 001-12291).
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 4.(g) Form of Sixth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 22, 2001, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association, as successor to Bank One, National Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the
Company�s Form 8-K filed on February 21, 2001 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

 4.(h) Ninth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 3, 2003, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association (as successor by consolidation to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association) is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 4.6 of the Company�s Form S-4 filed on December 7, 2007.

 4.(i) Form of Tenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of February 13, 2004, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank,
National Association (as successor by consolidation to Wells Fargo Bank Minnesota, National Association) is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on February 13, 2004 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

 4.(j) Eleventh Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 15, 2007, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.7 of the Company�s Form S-4 filed on December 7, 2007.

 4.(k) Twelfth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of October 15, 2007, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.8 of the Company�s Form S-4 filed on December 7, 2007.

 4.(l) Thirteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of May 19, 2008, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.(l) of the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

 4.(m) Fourteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of April 2, 2009, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on April 2, 2009.

 4.(n) Fifteenth Supplemental Indenture, dated as of June 15, 2011, between The AES Corporation and Wells Fargo Bank, National
Association is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on June 15, 2011.

 4.(o) Indenture, dated October 3, 2011, between Dolphin Subsidiary II, Inc. and Wells Fargo Bank, National Association is incorporated
herein by reference to Exhibit 4.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on October 5, 2011.

10.1 The AES Corporation Profit Sharing and Stock Ownership Plan are incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4(c)(1) of the
Registration Statement on Form S-8 (Registration No. 33-49262) filed on July 2, 1992.

10.2 The AES Corporation Incentive Stock Option Plan of 1991, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.30 of the
Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1995 (SEC File No. 00019281).

10.3 Applied Energy Services, Inc. Incentive Stock Option Plan of 1982 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.31 of the
Registration Statement on Form S-1 (Registration No. 33-40483).

10.4 Deferred Compensation Plan for Executive Officers, as amended, is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.32 of
Amendment No. 1 to the Registration Statement on Form S-1(Registration No. 33-40483).

10.5 Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.9 of the Company�s Form 10-Q for the
quarter ended March 31, 1998 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

10.6 The AES Corporation Stock Option Plan for Outside Directors as amended is incorporated herein by reference to Appendix C of
the Registrant�s 2003 Proxy Statement filed on March 25, 2003 (SEC File No. 001-12291).
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10.7 The AES Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.63 of the Company�s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 1994 (SEC File No. 00019281).

10.7A Amendment to The AES Corporation Supplemental Retirement Plan, dated March 13, 2008 is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 10.9.A of the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

10.8 The AES Corporation 2001 Stock Option Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Company�s Form 10-K
for the year ended December 31, 2000 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

10.9 Second Amended and Restated Deferred Compensation Plan for Directors is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.13 of
the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2000 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

10.10 The AES Corporation 2001 Non-Officer Stock Option Plan is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.12 of the Company�s
Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2002 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

10.10A Amendment to the 2001 Stock Option Plan and 2001 Non-Officer Stock Option Plan, dated March 13, 2008 is incorporated herein
by reference to Exhibit 10.12.A of the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2007.

10.11 The AES Corporation 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan, as amended and restated on April 22, 2010, is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on April 27, 2010.

10.12 Form of AES Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement under The AES Corporation 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan
(Outside Directors) is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.2 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on April 27, 2010.

10.13 Form of AES Performance Stock Unit Award Agreement under The AES Corporation 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan (filed
herewith).

10.14 Form of AES Restricted Stock Unit Award Agreement under The AES Corporation 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan (filed
herewith).

10.15 Form of AES Performance Unit Award Agreement under The AES Corporation 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan (filed
herewith).

10.16 Form of AES Nonqualified Stock Option Award Agreement under The AES Corporation 2003 Long Term Compensation Plan
(filed herewith).

10.17 The AES Corporation Restoration Supplemental Retirement Plan, as amended and restated, dated December 29, 2008 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.15 of the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

10.18 The AES Corporation International Retirement Plan, as amended and restated on December 29, 2008 is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 10.16 of the Company�s Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2008.

10.19 The AES Corporation Severance Plan, as amended and restated on October 28, 2011(filed herewith).

10.20 The AES Corporation Executive Severance Plan dated October 6, 2011 is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.3 of the
Company�s Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2011.

10.21 The AES Corporation Performance Incentive Plan, as amended and restated on April 22, 2010 is incorporated herein by reference
to Exhibit 10.4 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on April 27, 2010.
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10.22 The AES Corporation Deferred Compensation Program For Directors dated February 17, 2012 (filed herewith).

10.23 The AES Corporation Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Paul Hanrahan is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 99.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on December 31, 2008.

10.24 The AES Corporation Amended and Restated Employment Agreement with Victoria D. Harker is incorporated herein by
reference to Exhibit 99.2 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on December 31, 2008.

10.25 The AES Corporation Employment Agreement with Andrés Gluski is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 99.3 of the
Company�s Form 8-K filed on December 31, 2008.

10.26 Separation Agreement, between Paul T. Hanrahan and The AES Corporation dated September 4, 2011 is incorporated by
reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2011.

10.27 Mutual Agreement, between Andrés Gluski and The AES Corporation dated October 7, 2011 is incorporated by reference to
Exhibit 10.2 of the Company�s Form 10-Q for the period ended September 30, 2011.

10.28 Amendment No. 2 to the Fourth Amended and Restated Credit and Reimbursement Agreement dated as of July 29, 2010 among
the Company, the Subsidiary Guarantors, Citicorp USA, Inc., as Administrative Agent, Citibank N.A. as Collateral Agent and
various lenders named therein is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on July 30,
2010.

10.28A Fifth Amended and Restated Credit and Reimbursement Agreement dated as of July 29, 2010 among The AES Corporation, a
Delaware corporation, the Subsidiary Guarantors listed herein, the Banks listed on the signature pages thereof, Citicorp USA, Inc.,
as Administrative Agent, Citibank, N.A. as Collateral Agent, Citigroup Global Markets Inc., as Lead Arranger and Book Runner,
Banc of America Securities LLC, as Lead Arranger and Book Runner and Co-Syndication Agent, Barclays Capital, as Lead
Arranger and Book Runner and Co-Syndication Agent, RBS Securities Inc., as Lead Arranger and Book Runner and
Co-Syndication Agent, RBS Securities Inc., as lead Arranger and Book Runner and Co-Syndication Agent, and Union Bank,
N.A., as Lead Arranger and Book Runner and Co-Syndication Agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1.A of the
Company�s Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2010.

10.28B Appendices and Exhibits to the Fifth Amended and Restated Credit and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of July 29, 2010 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1.B of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on July 30, 2010.

10.28C Exhibits B-1-B-7 to the Fifth Amended and Restated Credit and Reimbursement Agreement, dated as of July 29, 2010 are
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibits 10.1.N-10.1.T of the Company�s Form 10-Q for the period ending June 30, 2009.

10.28D Amendment No.1 to and Waiver Under the Fifth Amended and Restated Credit and Reimbursement Agreement dated January 13,
2012 (filed herewith).

10.29 Collateral Trust Agreement dated as of December 12, 2002 among The AES Corporation, AES International Holdings II, Ltd.,
Wilmington Trust Company, as corporate trustee and Bruce L. Bisson, an individual trustee is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.2 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2002 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

10.30 Security Agreement dated as of December 12, 2002 made by The AES Corporation to Wilmington Trust Company, as corporate
trustee and Bruce L. Bisson, as individual trustee is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 4.3 of the Company�s Form 8-K
filed on December 17, 2002 (SEC File No. 001-12291).
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 10.31 Charge Over Shares dated as of December 12, 2002 between AES International Holdings II, Ltd. and Wilmington
Trust Company, as corporate trustee and Bruce L. Bisson, as individual trustee is incorporated herein by reference to
Exhibit 4.4 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on December 17, 2002 (SEC File No. 001-12291).

 10.32 Stock Purchase Agreement between The AES Corporation and Terrific Investment Corporation dated November 6, 2009 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s form 8-K filed on November 11, 2009.

 10.33 Stockholder Agreement between The AES Corporation and Terrific Investment Corporation dated March 12, 2010 is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on March 15, 2010.

 10.34 Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated April 19, 2011, by and among The AES Corporation, DPL Inc. and Dolphin Sub, Inc. is
incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 2.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on April 20, 2011.

 10.35 Credit Agreement dated as of May 27, 2011 among The AES Corporation, as borrower, the banks listed therein and Bank of
America, N.A., as administrative agent is incorporated herein by reference to Exhibit 10.1 of the Company�s Form 8-K filed on
June 1, 2011.

 12 Statement of computation of ratio of earnings to fixed charges (filed herewith).

 21 Subsidiaries of The AES Corporation (filed herewith).

 23.1 Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, Ernst & Young LLP (filed herewith).

 24 Powers of Attorney (filed herewith).

 31.1 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Andrés Gluski (filed herewith).

 31.2 Rule 13a-14(a)/15d-14(a) Certification of Victoria D. Harker (filed herewith).

 32.1 Section 1350 Certification of Andrés Gluski (filed herewith).

 32.2 Section 1350 Certification of Victoria D. Harker (filed herewith).

101.INS XBRL Instance Document (furnished herewith as provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T).

101.SCH XBRL Taxonomy Extension Schema Document (furnished herewith as provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T).

101.CAL XBRL Taxonomy Extension Calculation Linkbase Document (furnished herewith as provided in Rule 406T of Regulation
S-T).

101.DEF XBRL Taxonomy Extension Definition Linkbase Document (furnished herewith as provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T).

101.LAB XBRL Taxonomy Extension Label Linkbase Document (furnished herewith as provided in Rule 406T of Regulation S-T).

101.PRE XBRL Taxonomy Extension Presentation Linkbase Document (furnished herewith as provided in Rule 406T of Regulation
S-T).

(c) Schedules
Schedule I�Condensed Financial Information of Registrant

Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the Company has duly caused this
report to be signed on its behalf by the undersigned, thereunto duly authorized.

THE AES CORPORATION

(Company)

Date: February 24, 2012 By: /s/    ANDRÉS GLUSKI

Name: Andrés Gluski
President, Chief Executive Officer

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, this report has been signed below by the following persons on
behalf of the Company and in the capacities and on the dates indicated.

Name Title Date

*

Andrés Gluski
President, Chief Executive Officer (Principal
Executive Officer) and Director

February 24, 2012

*

Samuel W. Bodman, III

Director February 24, 2012

*

Zhang Guobao

Director February 24, 2012

*

Kristina Johnson

Director February 24, 2012

*

Tarun Khanna

Director February 24, 2012

*

John A. Koskinen

Director February 24, 2012

*

Philip Lader

Director February 24, 2012

*

John B. Morse

Director February 24, 2012

*

Sandra O. Moose

Director February 24, 2012

*

Philip A. Odeen

Chairman of the Board and

Lead Independent Director

February 24, 2012
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*

Charles O. Rossotti

Director February 24, 2012

*

Sven Sandstrom

Director February 24, 2012

/s/    VICTORIA D. HARKER        

Victoria D. Harker
Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer (Principal Financial Officer)

February 24, 2012

/S/     MARY E. WOOD        

Mary E. Wood
Vice President and Controller (Principal
Accounting Officer)

February 24, 2012

*BY: /S/    BRIAN A. MILLER        

Attorney-in-fact

February 24, 2012
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THE AES CORPORATION AND SUBSIDIARIES

INDEX TO FINANCIAL STATEMENT SCHEDULES

Schedule I�Condensed Financial Information of Registrant S-2
Schedule II�Valuation and Qualifying Accounts S-8
Schedules other than those listed above are omitted as the information is either not applicable, not required, or has been furnished in the financial
statements or notes thereto included in Item 8 hereof.

S-1
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THE AES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE I CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

UNCONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

December 31,
2011 2010

(in millions)
ASSETS

Current Assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 189 $ 594
Restricted cash 50 10
Accounts and notes receivable from subsidiaries 871 839
Deferred income taxes 24 23
Prepaid expenses and other current assets 43 31

Total current assets 1,177 1,497
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries and affiliates 12,088 10,741
Office Equipment:
Cost 81 93
Accumulated depreciation (67) (59) 

Office equipment, net 14 34
Other Assets:
Deferred financing costs (net of accumulated amortization of $74 and $39, respectively) 92 64
Deferred income taxes 525 352
Debt service reserves and other deposits 222 1

Total other assets 839 417

Total $ 14,118 $ 12,689

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS� EQUITY
Current Liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 21 $ 14
Accounts and notes payable to subsidiaries 317 253
Accrued and other liabilities 199 175
Term loan �  200
Senior notes payable�current portion 305 263

Total current liabilities 842 905
Long-term Liabilities:
Senior notes payable 5,663 3,632
Junior subordinated notes and debentures payable 517 517
Accounts and notes payable to subsidiaries 1,007 1,055
Other long-term liabilities 143 107

Total long-term liabilities 7,330 5,311
Stockholders� equity:
Common stock 8 8
Additional paid-in capital 8,507 8,444
Retained earnings 678 620
Accumulated other comprehensive loss (2,758) (2,383) 
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Treasury stock (489) (216) 

Total stockholders� equity 5,946 6,473

Total $ 14,118 $ 12,689

See Notes to Schedule I
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THE AES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE I CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

STATEMENTS OF UNCONSOLIDATED OPERATIONS

For the Years Ended
December 31

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Revenues from subsidiaries and affiliates $ 59 $ 34 $ 39
Equity in earnings of subsidiaries and affiliates 357 590 983
Interest income 199 279 131
General and administrative expenses (241) (261) (218) 
Interest expense (490) (461) (485) 

Income before income taxes (116) 181 450
Income tax benefit (expense) 174 (172) 208

Net income $ 58 $ 9 $ 658

See Notes to Schedule I

S-3
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THE AES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE I CONDENSED FINANCIAL INFORMATION OF REGISTRANT

STATEMENTS OF UNCONSOLIDATED CASH FLOWS

For the Years Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Net cash provided by operating activities $ 1,569 $ 488 $ 178
Investing Activities:
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries (2,823) (1,185) (452) 
(Purchase)/sale of short term investments, net 2 (3) (5) 
Return of capital 363 300 166
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash (261) (2) 4
Additions to property, plant and equipment (28) (22) (8) 

Net cash used in investing activities (2,747) (912) (295) 
Financing Activities:
Borrowings under the revolver, net 295 �  �  
Borrowings of notes payable and other coupon bearing securities 2,050 �  503
Repayments of notes payable and other coupon bearing securities (477) (914) (154) 
Loans (to) from subsidiaries (744) (154) 205
Proceeds from issuance of common stock 3 1,569 14
Purchase of treasury stock (279) (99) �  
Payments for deferred financing costs (75) (12) (23) 

Net cash provided by financing activities 773 390 545

Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents (405) (34) 428
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning 594 628 200

Cash and cash equivalents, ending $ 189 $ 594 $ 628

Supplemental Disclosures:
Cash payments for interest, net of amounts capitalized $ 392 $ 412 $ 410
Cash payments for income taxes, net of refunds $ (6) $ �  $ �  

See Notes to Schedule I

S-4
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THE AES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE I

NOTES TO SCHEDULE I

1. Application of Significant Accounting Principles

Accounting for Subsidiaries and Affiliates�The AES Corporation (the �Company�) has accounted for the earnings of its subsidiaries on the equity
method in the unconsolidated financial information.

Revenue�Construction management fees earned by the parent from its consolidated subsidiaries are eliminated.

Income Taxes�Positions taken on the Company�s income tax return which satisfy a more-likely-than-not threshold will be recognized in the
financial statements. The unconsolidated income tax expense or benefit computed for the Company reflects the tax assets and liabilities of the
Company on a stand-alone basis and the effect of filing a consolidated U.S. income tax return with certain other affiliated companies.

Accounts and Notes Receivable from Subsidiaries�Certain prior period amounts have been reclassified to conform with current year
presentation. Such amounts have been shown in current or long-term assets based on terms in agreements with subsidiaries, but payment is
dependent upon meeting conditions precedent in the subsidiary loan agreements.

Selected Unconsolidated Balance Sheet Data:

December 31,
2011

December 31,
2010

(in millions)
Assets
Investment in and advances to subsidiaries and affiliates $ 12,088 $ 10,741
Deferred income taxes $ 525 $ 352
Total other assets $ 839 $ 417
Total assets $ 14,118 $ 12,689

Liabilities and Stockholders� Equity
Other long-term liabilities $ 143 $ 107
Total long-term liabilities $ 7,330 $ 5,311
Additional paid-in capital $ 8,507 $ 8,444
Retained earnings $ 678 $ 620
Accumulated other comprehensive loss $ (2,758) $ (2,383) 
Total stockholders� equity $ 5,946 $ 6,473
Total liabilities and stockholders� equity $ 14,118 $ 12,689
Selected Unconsolidated Operations Data:

For the Year Ended
December 31,

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Equity in earnings of subsidiaries and affiliates $ 357 $ 590 $ 983
Income before income taxes $ (116) $ 181 $ 450
Income tax benefit (expense) $ 174 $ (172) $ 208
Net income attributable to The AES Corporation $ 58 $ 9 $ 658

S-5
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2. Notes Payable

December 31,

Interest Rate Maturity 2011 2010
(in millions)

Senior Secured Term Loan LIBOR + 1.75% 2011 $ �  $ 200
Senior Unsecured Note 8.875% 2011 �  129
Senior Unsecured Note 8.375% 2011 �  134
Senior Unsecured Note 7.75% 2014 500 500
Revolving Loan under Senior Secured Credit Facility(1) LIBOR + 3.00% 2015 295 �  
Senior Unsecured Note 7.75% 2015 500 500
Senior Unsecured Note 9.75% 2016 535 535
Senior Unsecured Note 8.00% 2017 1,500 1,500
Senior Secured Term Loan LIBOR + 3.25% 2018 1,042 �  
Senior Unsecured Note 8.00% 2020 625 625
Senior Unsecured Note 7.375% 2021 1,000 �  
Term Convertible Trust Securities 6.75% 2029 517 517
Unamortized discounts (29) (28) 

SUBTOTAL $ 6,485 $ 4,612
Less: Current maturities (305) (463) 

Total $ 6,180 $ 4,149

(1) Subsequent to year end the loan was substantially repaid and is expected to be repaid in full prior to March 31, 2012.

December 31,
Annual

Maturities
(in millions)

2012 $ 305
2013 11
2014 509
2015 511
2016 523
Thereafter 4,626

Total debt $ 6,485

3. Dividends from Subsidiaries and Affiliates

Cash dividends received from consolidated subsidiaries and from affiliates accounted for by the equity method were as follows:

2011 2010 2009
(in millions)

Subsidiaries $ 1,059 $ 944 $ 948
Affiliates $ 25 $ 10 $ 60
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4. Guarantees and Letters of Credit

GUARANTEES�In connection with certain of its project financing, acquisition, and power purchase agreements, the Company has expressly
undertaken limited obligations and commitments, most of which will only be effective or will be terminated upon the occurrence of future
events. These obligations and commitments, excluding those collateralized by letter of credit and other obligations discussed below, were
limited as of December 31, 2011, by the terms of the agreements, to an aggregate of approximately $351 million representing 22 agreements
with individual exposures ranging from less than $1 million up to $53 million.

LETTERS OF CREDIT�At December 31, 2011, the Company had $12 million in letters of credit outstanding under the senior unsecured credit
facility representing 11 agreements with individual exposures ranging from less than $1 million up to $7 million, which operate to guarantee
performance relating to certain project development and construction activities and subsidiary operations. At December 31, 2011, the Company
had $261 million in cash collateralized letters of credit outstanding representing 13 agreements with individual exposures ranging from less than
$1 million up to $221 million, which operate to guarantee performance relating to certain project development and construction activities and
subsidiary operations. During 2011, the Company paid letter of credit fees ranging from 0.250% to 3.250% per annum on the outstanding
amounts.

S-7
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THE AES CORPORATION

SCHEDULE II

VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS

(IN MILLIONS)

Balance at
Beginning of
the Period

Charged to
Cost

and Expense
Amounts
Written off

Translation
Adjustment

Balance at
the End

of
the

Period
Allowance for accounts receivables
(current and noncurrent)
Year ended December 31, 2009 $ 239 $ 104 $ (109) $ 42 $ 276
Year ended December 31, 2010 276 53 (37) 3 295
Year ended December 31, 2011 295 43 (41) (24) 273

S-8
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